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South Dakota Public Utilities Commission
500 East Capitol
Pierre, South Dakota 57501

Re:  Joint Application of Cherry Communications Incorporated, WAXS, Inc., Maxxis
Group, Inc. and Maxxis Communications, Inc. for Approval of Acquisition of Assels
and for Assignment of Authorization (“Joint Application™)

Dear Sir or Madam:

Enclosed are the original and eleven (11) copies of the Joint Application. Please file the
Application in your usual fashion and return one (1) file-stamped copy to us in the enclosed
envelope,

Also enclosed is a check in the amount of $250.00 1o cover the cost of filing the Joint
Application.
If you have any questions or comments, please call the undersigned.

Sincerely,

YA~

Michael K. Stewart

Maxxis Group, Irc.
{with enclosure)
Charles A. Hudak, Esq
(without enclosun:)
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SOUTH DAKOTA PUBLIC
SOUTH DAKOTA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION’T/L/TIES COMMISSION

BEFORE THE

In the Matter of:

)
)
JOIM | APPLICATION OF CHERRY )
COMMUNICATIONS INCORPORATED, )
WAXS INC., MAXXIS GROUP, INC. AND) DOCKET NO
)
)
)
)

MAXXIS COMMUNICATIONS, INC. FOR
APPROVAL OF ACQUISIT'ON OF
ASSETS AND FOR ASSIGNMENT OF
AUTHORIZATION

JOINT APPLICATION FOR ACOUISITION OF ASSETS
AND ASSIGNMENT OF AUTHORIZATION

COMES NOW WAXS INC. ("WAXS), Cherry Communications Incorporated (*CCI"),
Maxxis Group, Inc. (*Maxxis™) and Maxxis Communications, Inc. (*Maxxis Communications”)
(collectively the “Applicants™ or the “Parties™), pursuant to the South Dakota State
Telecommunications Laws and hereby respectfully request approval for the acquisition of assets
and for the ‘assignment. authority, consent and approval of the sale and transfer of the
authorization to provide intrastate, long distance telecommunications services within the Siate
of South Dakota, as described herein. The Parties respectfully request that the Commission act
upon this Joint Appli. tion expeditiously inasmuch as the approval sought herein concerns a non-
controversial transaction between competitive, non-dominant telecommunications companies.
In support of this Joint Application, the Parties hereby state as follows.

I. DESCRIPTION OF THE PARTIES
1. )
Cherry Communications Incorporated ("CCI") is an Illinois corporation which is

headquartered in Lombard, Illinois. CCI curiently is a facilities-based provider of network




access. The Commission has previously granted authority to CCl for interexchange carmer
service to the public statewide in South Dakota. In addition, CCl is authorized, by virme of
certification, repistration or tariff requirements, or on an unregulated basis, o provide resold
intrastate telecommaunications services in over 35 states.’

2.

WAXS is a Delaware corporation headquartered a1 945 East Paces Ferry Road, Suite
2240, Atlanta, Georgia 30326. WAXS, a publicly-traded company (NASDAQ: "WAXS™),
provides telecommunications systems, products and services to companies competing in the
global telecommunications marketplace. Specifically, WAXS develops, manufactures and
markets wireline and wireless switching, transport and access services (o companies in the
United States, in the Caribbean basin, and in Latin America. WAXS also provides design,
engineering, manufacturing, testing, installation, repair and other value-added services to
companies in the telecommunications industry. WAXS does not provide nor is it authorized to
provide intrastate telecommunications services within the State of South Dakota.’

3.

Maxxis, a Georgia corporation headquartered at 1901 Montreal Road, Suite 108, Tucker,
Genrria 30084, was incorporated in January, 1997. Maxxis, through its subsidiaries, markets
commun cations and other consumer products and services in the Unilted States through a multi-
level marieting system of “independent associates™ (“IAs”). Maxxis Communications (f/k/a

Maxxis Telecom, Juc.), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Maxxis, provides independent contractor

‘In South Dakota, Docket No. TC95-059 for Cenificate of Authority to provide
intrastate telecommunications services effective April 23, 1996.

‘Additional information regarding WAXS and CCI is attached hereto at Exhibit "A™
which is the previous'y filed Joint Application of CCI/'WAXS Transfer of Control.




marketing services in connection with the sale of long distance telecommunications services by
centificated interexchange carriers.” These long distance services include direct dial (*1+*) long
distance services, toll-free “800™ and “885" long distance services, and prepaid calling card
services.
II. DESCRIFTION OF TRANSACTION
4.

On September 29, 1998, CCI, WAXS and Maxxis entered info an Asset Purchase
Agreement which provided, inter alia, for the acquisition of cermin telecommunications
equipment, and authorizations to provide intrastate, long distance telecommunications services
which is attached herein and incorporated by reference as Exhibit "B".

0L MAXXIS' AND MAXXIS COMMUNICATIO! S' QUALIFICATIONS

5.

Maxyis and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Maxxis Communications, possess all financial,
manmagerial and technical qualifications necessary 1o acquire and to operate the ascets of CCL.
Specifically, Maxxis" and Maxxis Communications’ qualification are described as follows.

6.

A. Corporste Information. Maxxis' correct name and address are:

Maxxis Group, Inc.
1901 Montreal Road, Suite 108
Tucker, Georgia 30084
TI0-696-6343

In February, 1997, Maxxis Communications contracted with Colorado River
Communications Corp. ("CRC") 1o market and sell CRC's long distance services.




The cocrect name and address of Maxxis Commuceications are:
Maxxis Communications, Inc.
1901 Moutreal Road, Suite 108
Tucker, Georg.a 30084
T70-696-6343
Maxxis Communications, a2 Georgia corporation, will filc an application for qualification to
transact busine<s in the State of South Dakota. Copies of Maxxis Communications’ Application
for a Certificate 10 the South Dakota Secretary of State, (1o be supplied), Certificaic of
Incorporation and Articles of Incorporation are attached hereto at Exhibit *C”
7.
B. Description of Proposed Serviges. Maxxis Communications proposes tc utilize
the acquired assets to resell switched, intrastate, long distance (interLATA and intraLATA toll)

voice comumunications services of certificated common carriers (e.g., AT&T Corp., MCI

Telecommunications Corp. and Sprint Communications Company, L.P.) for the pl.lr[:mtl of

providing direct dial (* 1+ ™) services, measured toll service, toli-free “800" and “888" services
| prepeid calling card services within the entire State of South Dakota. Maxxis
Commnications will not own, lease, control or install any transmission facilities (except for a
telecor municaiions switch located in Chucago, Illinois), but instead will utilize the existing
equipment and facilitics of onc or more of the above-described carriers.
8.

Maxxis Communications intends to market the proposed telecommunications services
exclusively through Maxxis' network of IAs. The [IAs will market Maxxis Communications’
services 1o persons with whom the 1As have an ongoing relationship, such as family members, .
friends and busines; associates, Notably, Maxxis® IAs will not be required to purchase inventory

and will not be subject to sales quotas or account collection matters.




9.

Maxxis Communications intends to bill its customers directly for long distance
tclecommunications resale services. The charges, based upon the rates which will be set forth
in Maxxis Communications’ ©riff, Maxxis Communications' name, and its toll free telephone
number for customer assistance will all appear on monthly cusiomer statements. In addition.
customers may contact Maxxis Communications® customer service representatives regarding a
broad rangs of service matters, iocluding: (i) the types of services offered by Maxxis
Communications and the rates associated with such services; (ii) monthly billing statements; and
(i) problems or concerns periaining (0 the customer’s current service.  Maxxis
Communications’ customer service representatives will be available to assist customers twenty-
four {24) hours per day, seven (7) days per weck.

10.

C.  Techoical And Managerisl Capability. Both Maxxis and Maxxis

Communications are led by higily qualified teams of management personnel who have the

requisite  technical, financial and managerial experience to provide long distance

telecommunications resale services in South Dakota. Brief biographical statements concern’ g

each of Maxxis' and Maxxis Communications’ managememt personnel are attached hereto at
Exhibit "D~ and Exhibit "E".
1§
D. Fipancial Capability. As a wholly-owned subsidiary of Maxxis, Maxxis
Communications has the assurance of its parent that it will be provided the financial resources
pecessary (o operate its telecommunications resale business in a continuous manner. For the

period of January 24, 1997 to June 30, 1997 and the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998, Maxxis




generated aggregate revenues of approximately $2,691,000 and $6,991,000, respectively.*
12,

E. Complisnce With Laws. Maxxis C:mmunivtions has not been denied authority
to provide intrastale telecommunications services in an; siate »nd has not been subject to any
rcgulatory penalties for violation of state or federal f:ecommunications statutes, rules or
regulations (e.g. . slamming). Copies of Maxxis Commu nications’ internal guideiines to prevent
slamming and proposed ietter of authorization are attached hereto at Exhibit *F". By submitting
to the Commission’s jurisdiction for approvai (o acquire the assets and 10 assign the authorization
discussed herein, Maxxis Communications hereby asserts its willingness and ability to comply
with all rules and reguiations that the Commission may impose subject to Scuth Dakota laws
s now or hereafier enacted.

IV. CONFRENTIALITY
13.
Exhibits *A", "B" and *F" contain commercial information which is proprietary due to

the highly competitive nature of the teleccommunications marketplace. The Parties deem these

cxhibits © be proprictary, Accordingly, the 2 exhibits are being submitted to the Commission
subject © confidential treatment.
V. PUBLIC INTEREST, CONVENIENCE AND NECESSITY
14.
Commission soproval of Maxxis acquisition of CCI's and WAXS' assets, and of Maxxis*

subsequent transfer of cenain assets to Maxxis Communications, is in the public interest. The |

‘A copy of Maxxis" Securities and Exchange Commission Form 10-K is attached
hereto at Exhibit *E-.




infosion of CCl's and WAXS' assets into Maxxis' and Maxxis Communications’ existing
operations will allow Maxxis Communications to compete in the South Dakota market for long
distance telecommunications services. South Dakota consumers will benefit from the availability

of increased long distance telecommunications products and service options.

Maxxis and Maxxis Communications:
Charles A. Hudak, Esq.
Gerry, Friend & Sapronov, LLP
Three Ravinia Drive, Suite 1450
Atlanta, Georgia 30346-2131
Tel: 770-399-9500
Fax: 7T70-395-0000

WAXS:
Robernt C. Hussle, Esq.
Rogers & Hardin, LLP
2700 Intcrnational Tower
229 Peackiree Street, N.E.
Atlanta, Georgia 30303
Tel: 404-522-4700
Fax: 404-525-2224

Richard Heidecke, Esq., L.C.E.

One of Cherry Communications Incorporated’s Attorneys
Cherry Communications Incorprrated

1919 South Highland Avenue, Suite 129-D

Lombard, lllinois 60148

Tel: 630-268-6620

Fax: 630-268-6898

VII. CONCLUSION
16,

WEEREFORE, the Partics respectfully request that this Commission:

(1) Issuc an order approving this application in all respects, including without

limitation the acquisition of CCI's and WAXS" assets by Maxxis and Maxxis Communications,




as described herein or . the exhibits amached hereto;

(2)  Issue an order approving the assignment, authority, coisent and approval of the
sale and transfer of CCI's cxisting authorization to Maxxis, and subsequently, to Maxxis
Communications; and

(3) Grant any other and additional relief that the Commission may deem just and
m_

Respectfully submitted this _ dayof _ 1998,

By: ﬁﬁ :
Steven A. Odom,

WAXS Inc.

945 East Paces Ferry Road, Suite 2240
Atlanta, Georgia 30326

(404) 231-2025

By: “Q‘&\M—\

W. Todd Chmar, Executive Vice President
Cherry Communications Incorporated
43 Eas Pnu:s Ferry Road, Suite 2210

1901 Montreal Road Srme
Atlanta, Georgia 30084
(T70) 696-6343
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DOCXET WUMBER : 382680538
CONTROL ETMRER: 5705835
EFFECTIVE DATE: 09/25/1998
RITEREFRCE : 0077
FRINT DATE : 09/25/193%8
PORM NUMBER : 611

CERTIFICATE OF MAME CHANGE AMENDMENT

I, Lewis A. Massey, the Secretary of State and the Corporation
Comaiysioner of the State of Georgia, do herehy certify under the
seal of my office that

MAXITS TELECOM, INC.
A DOMESTIC PROFIT CORPORATION

has filed articles of amendment in the office of the Secretary of
State changing.its name to

MAXXYIS COMMUMICATIONS, INC.
and has paid the required fees as provided by Title 14 of the
Official Code of Georgia Annotated. Attached hereto is a true and
correct copy of said articles of amendmwent.

WITRESS my hand and official seal in the City of Atlanta and the
State of Georgia on the date set forth above.

-;oéfa-é &- /yw?,




L
The name of the corporation is “MAXXIS TELECOM, INC." ¢the *Corporation™).
.

Effective the date bereof, Article One of the Articles of Incorporation of the Corporation
is amended by deleting Article One in its entirety and substituting therefor the following:

=The name of the corporation is Maxxis Communications, Inc.”
M.

The amendment contained herein was duly adopted by unanimous written consent of the
Board of Directors of the Corporation dated as of September 22/, 1998. Pursuant to Section 14-

2-1002 of the Georgia Business Corporation Code, sharcholder action with respect w ihe
amendiment was not required.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the jon has caused these Articles of Amendment 10
be exrcuted by its duly authorized officer this day of September, 1998.

MAXXIS TELECOM, INC.




CERTIFICATE REGARDING 1
REQUEST FOR PUBLICATION OF
NOTICE OF CHANGE OF CORPORATE NAME

The undersigned officer of MAXXIS TELECOM, INC. (the *Corporation®), a Georgia
corporation, does bereby verify that a request for publication of a notice of intent to file
articles of amendment to change the name of the Corporation and payinent therefor has been
made as required by Section 14-2-1006.1 of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned does hereby set his hand this 2% day of
September, 1998. )
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Business Information and Services i i

} Suite 315, Hllest Uower o031
2 Martin Muther King Ir. Br. S
Atlanta, Georgia 30334-1530

NELSON MULLINS RILEY & SCARBOROUGH
PETER C. QUITTMEYER, ESQ.

1201 PEACHTREE STREET, STE 2200
ATLANTA, GA 30361

CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION

I, the Secretary of State and the Corporation
Coomissioner of the State of Georgia, do hereby certify under the
seal of my office that

MAXXIS TELECOM, INC.
A DOMESTIT PROFIT CORPORATION

has been duly incorporated under the laws of the State of Georgia
on the eff=ctive date stated above by the filing of articles of
incorporation in the office of the Secretary of State and by cthe
paying of fees as provided by Titla 14 of the Official Code of
Gecrgia Annotated.

WITNESS my hand and official seal in che City of Atlanta and the
State of Georgia on the date set forth above.




The name of the corporation is "Maxxis Telecom, Inc.®
ARTICLE IT

The corporation shall have authority (o issue not more than 1,000,000 shares of
capital stock.
ARTICLE III

The street address and county of the initial registered office of the corporation is
1201 Peachtree Street, Suite 2200, Atlanta, Georgia 30361; the registered office is in
Fulton County. The initial registered agent of the corporation at such address is Peter
C. Quittmeyer. .

ARTICLE IV
The name and address of the incorporator is:
Peter C. Quittmeyer
Nelson, Mullins, Riley & Scarborough
400 Colony Square, Cvite 2200
1201 Peachtres Strest
Atlanta, Georgia 30361
ARTICLL V
The mailing address of the initial principal office of the corporation is:
11205 Alpharetta Highway

Suite G 3 ‘ -3
Roswell, Georgia 30076




" . “u pa #%e Wt A4
o S AT

ARTICLE VI

The initial Board of Directors shall consist of Three (3) members.

Purmm: o Sﬁ:ﬂun 14-2-701 of thé Gmrgia Busmcss Cdrpnratmn Code, any
action required by the Georgia Business Corporation Code to be taken at 2 meeting of the
shareholders and any action which may be taken at a meeting of the shareholders may be
tzken without a meeting if written consent, setting forth the action so taken, shall be
signed by persons who would be eatitled to vote at a meeting those shares having voting
power 10 cast not less than the minimum number (or numbers, in the case of voting by
classes entitled to separate vote) of votes that would be necessary to authorize or take
such action at a meeting of shareholders at which all shares entitled 1o vote were present
and voted, subject to the limitations and notice requirements of Section 14-2-704,

ARTICLE VI

No director of the corporation shall be personally liable to the corporation or its
sharcholders for monetary damages for breach of the director's duty of care or other duty
as a director, provided, that this provision shall eliminate or limit the liability of a
director only to the extent permitted from time to time by the Georgia Business
Corporation Code as amended from time to time, or any law governing such matters
which replaces the Georgia Business Corporaticn Code.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the unc rsigned has executed these Articles of
Incorporatic . as of the 17th day of Feb ., 1997.

(T) ¥s9

L& Hgon g L] my

ARI'ICLE \TII o ..;-',."7,.",.-_" -..-_.,_Lll-_" _*_, ..

311540 AUVL3493S




. Secretary of State
m’l Information anp Seruices
te 315, West Sower RESERVATION NUMBER: 313"!.3'.';;,
Slartin Buther King VE DATE h
;ﬂn:h. sa:n-gu 20 _ﬂzfmgrn g:fg':'mu DATE 05/1171997
LICENSE NUMBER

N/&
COMSENT ON FILE HSA
PRINT DATE 02/11/1997
FORM NUMBER 506

w8 B8 BN BE w4 w4

KYLE FRISCH

1201 P'TREE ST
STE 2200

ATLANTA GA 30361

MARE RESERVATION CERTIFICATE

|, the Secretary of State of the State of Gesrgia, de hereby certify under the
seal of my office that the records of the Secretary of State have been reviewed

and the name

RAXXIS TELECOM, INC.

is not identical to, and appears to be distinguishable from, the name of any other
existing entity on file pursuant to Title 14 of the Official Code of GSecrgia
Annotated.

This ‘certificate shall be valid for a nonrenewable period of ninety days from the
date of this certificate. Please submit this original certificate with any
subsequent formation filing.

lame reservations are not renewable after expiration of the statutory reservation
period statzd above.

o5 & /%ﬂ?
LEWIS A. MASSEY

SECRETARY OF STATE
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Law offiCLa

NELSON MULLINS RILEY & SCARBOROUGH, L.L.P.

& MECISTERED LIMITED LIABILITY PARTRIRINNGS teCLUDING PEOFLIIIONAL CORPOR ATIONE
08 COLOWT JQUARE
EVLE M. Pusce TR 1308
l-lﬂ-l-l-*-ﬂl:: 1181 MLACHTRLE STREEY, W .
(s04) 51761 ATLANTA, GEORGIA 30361
TeLernosg (404) B17-6000
ToLEcorIn (404) E17-6050

February 17, 1997

YIAU.S. MAIL

Fulton County Daily Report
Business Office

190 Pryor Strzet, SW
Atlanta, Georgia 30303

Re: Maxxis Telecom, Inc.
Dear Sir or Madam:
You are requested to publish cnce a week for two consecutive

weeks, commencing within ten days of receipt of this letter, a
notice in the following form:

*NOTICE OF INTENT TO INCORPORATE

fotice is given that articles of incecrporation which
incorsorate Maxxis Telecom, Inc. will be delivered to the
Secretary of State in accordance with the Georgia Business
Corporation Code. The initial registered cfiice of the
corporation will be located at 1201 Peachtree St., Ste. 2200,
Fulton County, Atlanta, Ceocrgia 30361 and cthe initial
registered agent at such address is: Peter C. Quittmeyer.®

Enclosed is a check in the amount of $40.00 in payment of the
cost of publication.

Very truly yours,
‘ﬂ k
Kyle M. Frisch
Encl.

cCc: Andrew L. Howell
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AMENDED AND RESTATED ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION
OF

MAXXIS GROUP, INC.

ARTICLE I

The name of the corporation is “Maxxis Group, Inc.” The principal executive office of
the corporation is 1901 Montreal Road, Suite 108, Tucker, Georgia 30084.

ARTICLE II

The corporation shall have authority (o issue not more than 30,000,000 shares of capital
stock which shall consist of:

(i) 20,000,000 shares of Common Stock, no par value per share (the "Common
Stock™); and

(ii) 10,000,000 shares of preferred stock, no par value per share (the "Preferred
Stock™).

A.  Common Stock.

Subject to all of the rights of the Preferred Stock as expressly provided berein, by law
or by rhe Board of Directors pursuant to this Article I, the Common Stock shall possess all such
rights and privileges as are afforded to capital stock by applicable law in the absence of anmy
mmnf@mmmhﬁmﬂmmm&hﬂm
including, Hut pot limited to, the following rizhts and privileges:

(i)  dividends may be declared and paid or set apart for payment upon the Common
Swiock out of any assets or funds of the corporation legally available for the paymem of
d. /idends;

(i) the holders of Common Stock shail have the right to vote for the election of

directors and on all other matters requiring sharcholder action, each share being entitled to one
vote; and

(iii) upon the voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of the
corporation, the net assets of the corporation available for distribution shall be distributed pro
rata to the holders of the Common Stock in accordance with their respeétive rights and interests.

B.  Pn [emed Stock.

In addition 1* the Common Stock, the corporation shall have the authority, exercisable
by its Board of Directors, to issue up to 10,000,000 shares of Preferred Stock, any part or all
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of which shares of Preferred Stock may be established and designated from time to time by the
Board of Directors by filing an amendment to these Amended and Restated Asticles of
jon, which shall be effective without sharcholder action. in accordance with the
appropriate provisions of the Georgia Business Corporation Act (the "Act”) and any amendment
or supplement thereto (a "Preferred Stock Designation®), in such series and with such
preferences, limitations and relative rights as may be determined by the Board of Directors. The
pumber of authorized shares of Preferred Stock may be increased or decreased (but not below
the number of shares thereof then outstanding) by the affinmative vote of a majority of the votes
of the Common Stock, without a vote of the holders of the shares of Preferred Stock, or of any
serics thereof, unless a vote of any such holders is required by law or pursuant to the Preferred
Stock Designation or Preferred Stock Designations establishing the series of Preferred Stock.

100,000 shares of the corporation’s Preferred Stock shall be cesignated “Series A
Convertible Preferred Stock.” The Series A Preferred Stock shall have the rights, preferences,
privileges, restrictions, and other martters as follows:

1. Liquidation Preference.

(a) In the event of any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the
corporation, either voluntary or involuntary, the holders of the Series A Convertible Preferred
Stock (the "Serics A Holders®) shall be entitled to receive, prior and in preference to any
distribution of any ¢” the assets or surplus funds of the corporation to the holders of the
Common Stock by reason of their owaership thereof, the amount of $5.50 per share (as adjusted
for any combinations, consolidations, stock distributions or stock dividends with respec’ to such
shares) plus all declared or accumulated but unpaid dividends on such share for each share of
Series A Convertible Preferred Stock then held by them and no more. [f upon the occ rence
of, such event, the assets and funds thus distributed among the Series A Holders shall be
insufficient to permit the payment to such holders of the full aforesaid preferential amount, then
the entire assets and funds of the corporation legally available for distribution shall be distributed

among the Series A Holders in propontion to the shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock
then held by them.

() In the event of any liquidatica, dissolution or winding up of the
corporation, either voluntary or involuntary, and subjec: to the payment in full of the liquidation
preferences with respect to the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock as provided in subparagraph
(a) of this Section 1, the holders of the Common Stock shall be entitled to receive, prior and in
preference to any further distribution of any of the assets or surplus funds of the corporation to
the Series A Holders by reason of their ownership thereof, an amount equal to the per share
book value for each share of Common Stock then held by them and no more. Subject to the
payment in full of the liquidation preferences with respect to the Series A Converuble Preferred
Stock as provided in subparagraph (2) of this Sectioa 1, if upon the occurrence of such event,
the assets and funds thus distributed among the holders of the Common Stock shall He
insufficient to permit the payment to such holders of the full aforesaid preferential amount, then
the entire remaining assets and funds of the corporation legally available for distribution shall
be distributed among the holders of the Common Stock in proportion to the shares of Common
Stock then held by them. After payment to the Series A Hclders and the holders of Common
Stock of the amounts set forth in subparagraph (a) above and this subparagraph (b), the entire
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remaining assets and funds of the corporation legally available for distribution, if any, shall be
distributed among the holders of the Common Stock and the Series A Convertible Preferred
Stock in proportion to the shares of Common Stock then held by them and the shares of
Common Stock which the Series A Holders have the right (o acquire upon conversion of their
shares.

(¢) A consolidation or merger of the corporation with or into any other
corporation or corporations, or a sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the corporation,
shall not be deemed to be a liquidation, dissolution or winding up within the meaning of this
Section 1, but shall be subject to the provisions of Section 4 hereof.

2. Voting Rights. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein or as
required by law, the Series A Holders shall have o voting rights on account of the ownership
of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock and shall not be entitled to notice of any sharcholders
meeting.

3. Conversion. The Series A Holders shall bave conversion rights as follows
(the "Conversion Rights®):

()  Right to Converi. Each share of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock
shall be convertible, at the option of the holder thereof, at any ume at least 14 months afier the
date of issuance of such share, at the office of ths corporation or any transfer agent for such
stock. into such number of fully paid and nonassessable shares of Common Stock as is
determined by dividing $5.50 plus all declared or accumulated but unpaid dividends on each
share of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock by the then applicable Conversion Price, :
determine- 1 as hereinafier provided (the "Conversion Price"), in effect on the date the certificate i
is surrendered for conversion. The initiai Conversion Price shall be §5.50. Such initial
Comversi.a Price shall be adjusted as hereinafter provided.

(o) Awomatic Conversion. Each share of Serics A Convertible Preferred
Stock that has been outstanding for at least 14 months shall automatically be converted into
shares of Common Stock at the then effective Conversion Price immediately upon the closing
of a public offering that occurs at least 14 months following the date of issuance and that
provides gross proceeds to the corperation of at least $7,500,000.

(¢)  Mechanics of Conversion. Before any Series A Holder shall be entitled
to convert his shares of Series A Converntible Preferred Stock into shares of Common Stock, he
shall surrender the certificate or certificates thereof, duly endorsed, at the office of the
corporation or of any transfer agent for such stock, and shail give written notice to the
corporation at *~h office that he elects to convert the same and shall state therein the name or
names in which he wishes the centificate or cenificates for shares of Commeon Stock to be
issued. The corporntion shall, as soon as practicable thereafter, issue and deliver at such office
to such Series A Holder, a certificate or centificates for the number of shares of Common Stock
to which he shall be entitled as aforesaid. Such conversion shall be deemed to have been made
immediately prior to the close of business on the date of surrender of the shares of Series A
Convertible Preferred Stock to be converted, and the person or persons enlitled to receive the
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shares .f Common Stock issuable upon such conversion shall be treated for all purposes as the
record holder or holders of such shares of Common Stock on such date.

(d)  Adjustments to Conversion Price.

(i)  Special Definitions. For purposes of this Section 3, the following
definitions apply:

"Original Issue Date” shall mean the date on which a share of Series A
Convertible Preferred Stock was first issued.

~Additional Shares of Commeon Stock” shall mean all shares of Common
Stock issued by the corporation after the Original Issue Date, other than shares
of Common Stock issued or issuable:

(A) uponconversion of shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock;

(B) 1o officers, directors or employet of, or consultants to, the
corporation, on terms approved by the Board of Directors; or

(C) as a dividend or distribution on Series A Convertible Preferred
Stock.

(i) Adjustments for Combinations or Subdivisions. No adjustment in
the Conversion Price o 2 particular share of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock shall be made
unless this corporation at any time or from time to time after the Original Issue Date shall
declare or pay any dividend on the Common Stock payable in Common Stock or in any right
o acquire Common S'ock, or shall effect a subdivision of the outstanding shares of Common
Stock into a greater pumber of shares of Common Stock (by stock split, reclassification or
otherwise), or in the event the outstanding shares of Common Stock shall be combined or
consolidzied, by reclassification or otherwise, into a lesser number of shares of Common Stock,
then the Conversion Price in effect immedistely prior to such event shall, concurreatly with the
effectiveness of such event, be proportionately decreased or increased, as appropriate.

()  Other Distributions. In the event the corporation shall at any time or from
time to time make or issue, or fix a record date for the determination of holders of Common
Stock entitled to receive, a dividend or other distribution payable in securities of the corporation
or any of its subsidiaries other than Additional Shares of Common Steck, then in each such
event provision shall be made so that the Series A Holders shall receive the securities of the

corporation which they would have received had their stock been converted into Common Stock
on the date of such event.

2 !

(D  Nolmpaimmeni- The corporation will not, by amendment of its Amended
and Restated Amicles of Incorporation or through any reorganization, transfer of assets,
consolidation, merger, dissolution, issue or sale of securities or any other voluntary action, avoid
or seck to avoid the observance or performance of any of the terms to be observed or performed
hercunder by the corperation, but will at all times in good faith assist in the carrying out of all
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the provisions of this Section 3 and in the taking of all such action az may be necessary or
appropriate in order to protect the Conversion Rights of the Series A Holders against
=S8 o

Notices of Record Date. In the event of any taking by the corporation of
2 record of the holders of any class of securities for the purpose of determining the holders
thereaf who are entitled to receive any dividend (other than a cash dividend) or other distribution
of: (i) any security or right convertible into or entitling the holder thereof to receive Additional
Shares of Common Stock; (ii) any right to subscribe for, purchase or otherwise acquire any
shares of stock of any class or any other securities or property; or (iii) any other similar right,
the corporation shall mail to each Series A Holder at least 20 days prior to the date specified
therein, a notice specifying the date on which any such record is to be taken for the purpose of
such dividend, distribution, security or right, and the amount and character of such dividend,
distribution, security or right.

(h)  Issue Taxes. The corporation shall pay any and all issue and other taxes
that may be payable in respect of any issue or delivery of shares of Common Stock on
conversion of shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock.

(Y  Reservation of Stock Issuable Upon Conversion. The corporation shall at
all tirnes reserve and keep available out of its authorized but unissued shares of Common Stock,
solely for the purpose of effecting the conversion of the shares of the Series A Converuble
Preferred Siock, such number of its shares of Common Stock as shall from time to time be
sufficient to effect the conversioa of all outstanding shares of the Series A Convertible Preferred
Stock; and if at any time the number of authorized but unissued shares of Common Stock shall
pnot b~ <ufficient to effect the conversion of all then outstanding shares of the Series A
Convertible Preferred Stock, the corporation will take such corporate action as may, in the
opinion of its counsel, be necessary 1o increase its authorized but unissued shares of Common
Stock to such number of shares as shall be -ufficient for such purpose, including, without

limitation, agaging in best efforts to obtin the requisite sharcholder approval of any necessary
amendment (o these Articles.

)] Fractional Shares. No fractional share shall be issued upon the conversion
of any shares of Series A Converuble Preferred Stock. All shares of Common Stock (including
fractions thercof) issuable vpon conversion of more than one share of Series A Convertible
Preferred Stock by a Series A Holder shall be aggregated for purposes of determining whether
the conversion would result in the issuance of any fractional share of Common Stock. In lieu
of any fractional share of Common Stock to which a Series A Holder would otherwise be
entitled, the corporation shall make a cash payment equal to the fair market value of such
fractional share of Commeon Stock, as determined in good faith by the Board of Directors.

(k) Adjustments. In case of any reorganization or any reclassification of the
capital stock of th corporation, any consolidation or merger of the corporation with or into
another corporation or corporations, or the convevance of all or substantially all of the assets
of the corporation ¢ nother corporation, each share of Series A Converntible Preferred Stock
shall thereafter be convertible into the number of shares of stock or other securities or property
(including cash) to which a holder of the number of shares of Common Stock deliverable upon
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comversion of such share of Series A Converuble Preferred Stock would have been entitled upon
e record date of (or date of if no record date is fixed) such reorganization, reclassification,
consolidation, merger or conveyance; and, in any case, appropriate adjustment (as determined
& by the Board of Directors) shall be made in the application of the provisions herein set forth with
- respect to the rights and interests thercafter of the Series A Holders, to the end that the
provisioos set forth berein shall thereafier be applicable, as nearly as equivaleat as is practicable,
in relation to amy shares of stock or the securities or property (including cash) thereafter
defiverable upon the coaversion of the shares of such Series A Convertible Preferred Stock.

4.  Merger, Consolidation.

(a) At any time, in the event of:

w a consobidation or merger of the corporation with or into any other
corporation, or any other entity or persor other than a wholly-owned
bsidiary:

(i)  any corporale reorganization in which the corporation shall not be
the continuing or surviving entity of such reorganization;

(u1) asale of all or substantially all of the assets of the corporation; or

(i) any transaction approved by the corporation in which more than
50% of the outstanding stock of the corporation (on an as<converted basis)
is exchanged in any three month period;

thcScrnhi!nldm;hllbepud(unlusmhpaymcmumwcﬂbythchuldmofamjmty
of the outstanding shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock) in cash or in securities
received from the acquiring corporation or in a combination thereof, at the clesing of any such
transaction, an amount equal to the amount per share which would be payable to such holders
pursuant to Section 1 if ail consideration received by the corporation and its shareholders in
connection with such event were being distributed in a liquidation of the corporation.

(b)  Any securitics to be deliverc ! to the Series A Holders pursuant 1o Section
4{a) above shall be valued as follows:

()] Securities not subject 1o investment letter or other similar
restrictions on free marketability:

(A) If traded on a securities exchange, the value shall be
deemed to be the average of the security’s closing prices on such
exchange over the 30-day period ending three (3) days prior to the
closing;

(B) If actively traded over-the-counter, the value shall be
deemed 10 be the average of the closing bid prices over the 30-day
period ending three (3) days prior to the closing; and
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(C) If there is no active public market, the value shall be the
fair market value thereof (as determined in good faith by the Board
of Directors of the corporation).

(ii) The method of valuation of securities subject to investment letter
or other restrictions on free marketability shall be to make an appropriale
discount from the market value determined as above in (b)(1)(2), (X(1)(b)
or (b)(1Xc) to reflect the approximate fair market value thereof (as
determined in good faith by the Board of Directors of the corporation).

(c) The corporation shall give cach Series A Holder wrinten notice of such
impending transaction not later than 30 days prior to the shareholders” meeting called to approve
such transaction or 30 days prior to the closing of such transaction, whichever is earlier, and
shall also notify such holders in writing of the final approval of such transaction, The first of
said notices shall describe the material terms and conditions of the contemplated transaction as
well as the terms and conditions of this Section 4, and the corporation shall thereafier give such
holders prompt notice of any material changes. The transaction shall in no event tzke place
sooner than 30 days after the mailing by the corporation of the first notice provided for herein
or sooner than 20 days after the mailing by the corporation of any notice of material changes
provided for herein; provided, however, that such periods may be shortened upon the written
consent of the holders of not less than 50% of the then outstanding Series A Convenible
Preferred Stock.

5. Amendment. Any term relating to the Series A Convertible Preferred
Stwock may be amended and the observance of any term relating to the Series A Convertible
Preferred Stock may be waived (either generally or in a particular instance and either
retroactively or prospectively) only with the vote ur written consent of holders of more than 50%
of all Serie: A Coavertible Preferred Stock then outstanding and the corporation. Any
amendment or waiver so effected shall be binding upon the corporation and any Series A Holder.

6.  Restrictions and Limitations. So long as any shares of Series A
Convertible Preferred Stock remain ocutstanding, the corporation shall not, without the vole or

written consent by the holders of more than 50% of the then outstanding shares of Series A
Convertible Preferred Stock:

(a)  Effect any reclassification, recapitalization or other change with respect
o any outstanding shares of stock or create any new class or series of capital stock which results
in the issuance of shares of stock having any preference or priority as to dividend or redemption
rights, liquidation preferences, conversion rights, or otherwise, supenor to (but not on a parity
with) any such preference or priority of the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock;

(b) Increase or decrease (other than by redemption.or conversion) the total
mumber of authorized shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock; or

(c)  Declare or pay any cash dividends on the corporation's Common Stock
unless the Series A Holders receive dividends of like amount on an as-if-converted 1o Common
Stock basis.
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7.  No Reissuance of Serjes A Convertible Preferred Stock. No share or
shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock acquired by the corporation by reason of

redemption, purchase, conversion or otherwise shall be reissued, and all such shares shall be
returned to the status of undesignated shares of Preferred Stock.

ARTICLE I

The corporation shall have not more than fifteen directors, and the number of directors
shall be set by the Board of Directors as set forth in the corporation’s Amended and Restated
Bylaws. The Board of Directors shall be divided into three classes to be knowr as Class I, Class
I, and Class IIi, which shail be as nearly equal in number as possible, Except in case of death,
resignation, disqualification or removal for cause, each director shall serve for a term ending
on the date of the third annual meeting of shareholders followin the annual meeting at which
the director was clected; provided, however, that each initial director in Class | shail hold office
until the first anmeal meeting of sharcholders after his election; each initial director in Class II
shall bold office unti! the second anmual meeting of shareholders after his election; and each
initial director in Class [II shall hold office until the third annual meeting of shareholders after
his election. Despite the expiration of a director’s term, he shall continue to serve until his
successor, if there is to be any, has been elected and qualified. In the event of any increase or
decrease in the authorized number of directors, the pewly created or eliminated directorships
resulting from such an increase or decrease shall be appoertioned among the three classes of
directors so that the three classes remain as nearly equal in size as possible; provided, however,
that there chall be oo classification of additional directors elected by the Board of Directors  atil
the next meeting of shareholders called for the purpose of electing directors, at whick meeting
the terms of all such addirional directors shall expire, and such additional directors positions,
if they are to be continued, shall be apportioned among the classes of directors and nominees
therefor shall be submined to the shareholders for their vote. Any vacancy occurring oa the
Board of Directors, including a vacancy resulting from an increase in the number of directors,
may only be filled by the affumative vote of the remaining direciors even if the remaining
directors constifute less than 2 quorum of the Board of Directors. Any director or the entire
Board o1 Directors may be removed with or without cause by a majority vote of the holders of
Common Stock then entitled 1o vote thereon.

ARTICLE IV

No director of the corporation shall be personally liable for monetary damages to the
corporation or its shareholders for breach of the dury of care or any other duty as a director,
except that such liability shall not be eliminated for:

()] any appropriation, in violation of the director’s duties, of any business
opporunity of the corporation:

(i)  acts or omissions which involve intentioral misconduct or a knowing
violation of law,

(i) bability under Section 14-2-832 (or any successor provision or
redesignation thereof) of the Act; and
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(iv) any tansaction from which the director reccived an improper personal
benefit.

If at any time the Act shall have been amended to authorize the further climination or
limitation of the liability of a director, then the liability of each director of the corporation shall
be eliminated or limited to the fullest extent perminted by the Act, as so amended, without
further action by the shareholders, unless the provisions of the Act, as amended, require further
action by the shareholders. Any repeal or modification of the foregoing provisions of this
Article [V shall not adversely affect the elimination or limitation of liability or alleged liability
pursuant hereto of any director of the corporation lor or with respect to any alleged act or
omission of the director occurring prior to such repeal or modification.

ARTICLE V

All actions by the sharcholders shall be taken at a meeting, with prior notice which
complies with the potice provisions of the corporation's Amended and Restated Bylaws, and with
a vote of the holders of the outstanding stock of each voting group entitled to vote thereon.

ARTICLE VI

[n discharging the duties of their respective positions and in determining what is believed
to be in the best interests of the corporatica, the Board of Directors, commitiees of the Board
of Directors and individual directors, in addition to considering the effects of any action on the
corporation or its shareholders, may consider the interests of the employees, customers, -
suppliers and creditors of the corporation and its subsidiaries, the communities in which offices -
or other establishments of the corporation and its subsidiaries are located and all other factors
such directors consider pertinent; provided, however, that any such provision shall be deemed

solely 1o grant discretionary authonity 1o directors and shall not be deemed to provide 1o any
constituency any right to be considered.

These Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation were duly adopted by the Board

of Directors of Maxxis Group, Inc. pursuant to a wrinten consent dated March 2, 1998.
Sharcuolder action was not required.

execuled these Amended and Restated
Eu‘ ¥ lg‘gﬂ.

2 : | /

President and Chiefl Executive\Officer

-

IN WITNESS WHEREQOF, the ;ndusiqncd
Articles of ‘ncorporation as of the 45 day
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DIRECTORS OF MAXXIS GROUP, INC,

Ivey J. Stoles

Thomas O. Cordy

James W. Brown

Larry W. Gates, 11

Charles P. Bermnstein

Alvin Curry

Robert J. Glover, Jr.

Terry Hamis

Philip E. Lundquist

1901 Moatreal Road, Suite 108
Tucker, Georgia 30084
(770) 552 - 4766

1901 Montreal Road, Suite 108
Tucker, Georgia 30084
(770) 552 - 4766

1901 Montreal Road, Suite 108
Tucker, Georgia 30084
(770) 552 - 4766

1901 Montreal Road, Suite 108
Tucker, Georgiz 30084
(770) 552 - 4766

1501 Montreal Road, Suite 108
Tucker, Georgia 30084
(770) 552 - 4766

1901 Mentreal Road, Suite 108
Tucker, Georgia 30084
(770) 552 - 4766

1901 Montreal Road, Suite 108
Tucker, Georgia 30084
(770) 552 - 4766

1901 Montreal Road, Suite 108
Tucker, Georgia 30084
(770) 552 - 4766

1901 Montreal Road, Suite 108
Tucker, Georgia 30084
(770) 552 - 4766




OFFICERS OF MAXXIS GROUP,INC,

THOMAS 0. CORDY 1901 Montreal Road, Suite 108
Chief Executive Officer and President Tucker, Georgia 30084
(770) 552 - 4766

Thomas O. Cordy has served as Chief Executive Officer, President and Director of Maxxis Group,
Inc. since May 1997. Prior 1o that time, he has served as President and Chuef Executive Officer of
Cl1 Cascade Corp., and has served as a Director of Southern Bell, Kimberly Clark and First Union
Bank. Mr. Cordy currently serves as Vice Chairman of the Board of Trustees for Clark Atlanta
University, Chairman of the Board of Renaissance Capital Corporation and a Director of Cox
Enterprises. Mr. Cordy has a bachelor’s degree from Morehouse College and a master’s degree from
Atlanta University, and he has attended the Stanford Executive Program at the Stanford School of
Business and the University of Oklahoma National Lending School.

DANIEL MCDONOUGH 1901 Mnntreal Road, Suite 108

Chief Financial Officer Tucker, Seorgia 30084
(770) 552 - 4766

Daniel McDonough hias served as Chief Financial Officer of Maxxis Group, Inc. since October
1997. Prior to his employment with Maxxis Group, Inc,, Mr. McDonough provided financial
consulting services to a number of start up companies at Creative Benefits, Inc. In addition, from
1992 to 1994, Mr. McDonough was the controller of Jostens Leaming Corporation, a $75 million
technology company sp-cializing in educational software. Prior to his employment with Jostens,
Mr. McDonough served as assistant controller to Alumax, Inc., a $2.5 billion integrated aluminum
company with more than 100 manufactunng operations throughout the United States. From 1973
to 1980, Mr. McDonough was cmployed by Price Waterhouse & Co. Mr. McDonough is a licenend
CPA and also holds a master of business administration degree from the University of BufTalo.

JAMES W. BROWN 1901 Montreal Road, Suite 108
Executive Vice President and Secretary Tucker, Georgia 30084
(770) 552 - 4766

James W. Brown currently serves as Executive Vice President and Secretary of Maxxis Group, Inc.
and ha: “cen a Director of the company since May 1997, He served as Pres ident and Chief
Executive Officer of Maxxis Group from its inceptior. until April 1997. He has also served as Chief
Execative Officer, President and a Director of Maxxis 2000, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Maxxis
Group, Inc., since its inception. From 1995 to 1997, Mr. Brown served as a manager of NetWorld
Communications, LLC. Since 1979, Mr. Brown has also served as President and Chief Executive
Officer of Marketing Ideas, Ltd. Mr. Brown has a bachelor’s degree from the University of Georgia.
He also attended the John Marshall School of Law and the American Mutual Institute of

Management.




OFFICERS OF MAXXIS GROUP, INC, (CoalL.

LARRY W. GATES, Il 1901 Montreal Road, Suite 108
Vice President if Human Resources Tucker, Georgia 30084
(770) 552 - 4766

Larry W. Gates, II has served as Vice President if Human Resources since Maxxis Group, Inc.'s
inception and as a Director of the Company since May 1997. Mr. Gates became a part-time
independent insurance agent for A L. Williams in 1989 while serving in the U.S. Army. In 1993,
he lefl the financial services industry and became a full-time independent marketer of
an associste’s degree from Pierre College.




DIRECTORS OF MAXXIS COMMINICATIONS, INC.

Thomas O. Cordy

Termrell Chambers

Pat Kelly

Shawr J. Dinwiddic

Naomi Kirkman Bey

Richard Willis

1901 Montreal Road, Suite 108
Tucker, Georgia 30084
(770) 552 - 4766

1901 Montreal Road, Suite 108
Tucker, Georgia 30084
(770) 552 - 4766

1901 Montreal Road, Suite 108
Tucker, Georgia 30084
(770) 552 - 4766

1901 Moantreal Road, Suite 108
Tucker, Georgia 30084
(770) 557 - 4766

1901 Montreal Road, Suite 108
Tucker, Georgia 30084
(770) 552 - 4766

1901 Montreal Road, Suite 108
Tucker, Georgia 30084
(770) 552 - 4766

1901 Montreal Road, Suite 108
Tucker, Georgia 30084
(770) 552 - 4766




OFFICFRS OF MAXXIS COMMUNICATIONS, INC,

THOMAS 0. CORDY 1901 Montreal Road, Suite 108
Chief Executive Officer and President Tucker, Georgia 30084
(770) 552 - 4766

Thomas O. Cordy has served as Chief Executive Officer, President and Director of Maxxis
Communications, 'nc. since its inception, and has served as Chief Executive Officer, President and
Director of Maxxis Group, Inc. since May 1997, Prior to that time, he has served as President and
Chief Executive Officer of CI Cascade Corp., and has served as a Director of Southem Bell,
Kimberly Clark and First Union Bank. Mr. Cordy currently serves as Vice Chairman of the Board
of Trustees for Clark Atlanta University, Chainman of the Board of Renaissance Capital Corporation
and a Director of Cox Enterprises. Mr. Cordy has a bachelor's degree from Morchouse College and
a muasier’s degree from Atlanta University, and he has attended the Stanford Executive Program at
the Stanford School of Business and the University of Oklahoma National Lending School.

PATRICK J. LENTZ 1901 Montreal Road, Suite 108
Executive Vice President Tucker, Georgia 30084
(770) 552 - 4766

Patrick J. Lentz joins Maxxis Communications, Inc. after fifteen years’ experience in the technical
aspects of the telecommunications and computing industry. During his employment with BellSouth
and LDDS Communications (now WorldCom), Mr. Lentz was instrumental in designing and
implementing network applications 1o process long distance, cellular and satellite telephony, 1o
perform billing and customer care functions and to assist in administrative recordkeeping. Mr. Lentz
15 als~ ~xperienced in Inicret applications, having designed customer-registration sofiware for
BeliSouth Net. He holds a masters in Mathematical Sciences from Clemson University and a
bachelors in Mathematics and Computer Science from Georgia Southern College.

DANIEL M “DONOUGH 1901 Montreal Road, Suite 108
Chief Finaucial Officer Tucker, Georgia 30084
(770) 552 - 4766

Daniel McDoaough scrves as Chief Financial Officer of both Maxxis Communications, Inc. and
Maxxis Group, Inc. Prior to his employment with Maxxis Group, Inc., Mr. McDonough provided
financial consulting services to a number of stzrt up companies at Creative Benefits, Inc. In addition,

¥ from 1992 10 1994, Mr. McDonough was the controller of Jostens Leaming Corporation, a $75
million technology company specializing in educational software. Prior to his employment with
Jostens, Mr. McDonough served as assistant controller to Alumax, Inc., a $2.5 villion integrated
aleminum company with more than 100 manufacturing operations throughout the United States.
From 1973 10 1980, Mr. McDonough was employed by Price Waterhouse & Co. Mr. McDonough -
is a icensed CPA and also holds a master of business administration degree ffom the University of *
Baffalo.




OFFICERS OF MAXXIS COMMUNICATIONS, INC. (Cont.)

ALBERT F. EOGHOLZ 1901 Meatreal Road, Suite 108
Network Engineer Tucker, Georgia 30084
(770) 552 - 4766

Albert F. Bogholz serves as Network Engineer for Maxxis Communications, Inc., bringing to the
company over thirty years® experience in the telecommunications and cellular communications
industry. He began his carcer in 1966 at Westem Union Telegraph Company, and, since 1983, Mr.
Bogholz has served as network engineer and transmissions director for several major
telecommunications providers, including LDDS/Metromedia, Resurgens Communications Group,
Continental Telecom and ATC. Mr. Bogholz has a bachelor’s degree in physics from the City
College of New York nd an associate degree in Engineering from Bronx Community College
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PART IV

ITEM1. BUSINESS

This Report contains statements which constitute forward-looking
staterfients within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended, and the Securnitics Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. These statements
appear in a number of places in this Report and include all statements that are
not historical statements of fact regarding the intent, belief or current



expectations of the Company or its directors or officers with respeci 1o, among
other things: (i) the Company’s financing plans; (ii) trends afTecting the
Company's financial condition or results of operations; (iii) the Company’s
growth strategy and opcrating strategy; and (iv) the Company's anticipated
capital needs. When used in this Repont, the words "expects,” “intends,”
"believes,” "anticipales,” "estimates,” "may,” "could,” "should,” "would,"

"will," “plans" and similar expressions and variations thercof are intended to
identify forward-looking statements. Investors are cautioned that any such
forward-looking statements are not guaranices of future performance and involve
risks and uncertainties, many of which are beyond the Company's ability to
control, and that actual results may differ materially from those projecied in

the forward-looking statements as a result of various factors discussed herein

and those factors discussed in detail in the Company’s filings with the

Securities and Exchange Commission, including the "Risk Factors" section of the
Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Registration Number 333-38623).
d Maxxis Group, Inc., a Georgia corporation ("Maxxis” or the "Company”),
markets communications and Intemet services and nutritional and health
enhancement products in the United States through its multi-level network
marketing system of “independent associates,” or "[As.” The Company operates
through its subsidianes: Maxxis 2000, Inc. ("Maxxis 2000"), which conducts
network marketing operations, Maxxis Communications, Inc. (formerly known as
Maxxis Telscom, Inc., “Maxxis Communications™), which provides long distance and
Intermet-related services; and Maxxis Nutritionals, Inc. (formerly known as
Maxxis Nutritional, Inc., “Maxxis Nutritionals"), which provides private label
nutritional and health enhancement products. The Company currently markets
1-Plus long distance service and other communications services, such as Intemnet
access and prepaid phone cards, and nutritional and health enhancement products.
The Company was incorporated in January 1997 and began accepting IAs and
markeling conmunications services in March 1997. For the period of January 24,
1997 to June 30, 1997 (ithe "Inception Period") and the fiscal year ended June

30, 1998, the Company generated aggregate revenues of approximately 52,691,000
and $6,991,000, respectively.

The Company has built a customer base without committing capital or
management resources 1o construct its own communications network and
tr>rmission facilities. In February 1997, Maxxis Communications contracted
with Cclorado River Communications Corp. ("CRC") 1o obtain switching and
network services and to allow CRC's communicaticns services o be sold by the
Company’s lAs. In the future, the Company . 1ay contract with other providers of
long distunce services and intends to analyze the feasibility of devaloping its .
own long distance Metwork. In November 1997, the Company began marketing
severhl private label dictary supplements to its customers and 1As. Recently,
wc Company began marketing additional nutritional and health enhancement
products. The Company's nutritional and hezlth enhancement producis are
manufactured by various suppliers. In September 1998, the Company began




providing Internet access and Web-page dev=lopment and hosting services.
Internet access is provided through InteReach Internet Services, LLC
("InteReach"), and Web-page development and hosting services are provided by

the Company.

The Company conducts its marketing activities exclusively through its
network of IAs. The Company believes that IAs are generally attracted to the
Company’s multi-level network marketing system because of the potential for
supplemental income and because the IAs are not required to purchase any
inventory, have no monthly sales quotas or account collection issues, have
minimal required paperwork and have a flexible work schedule. The Company
encourages [As to market services and products to persons with whorm the IAs
have an ongeing relationship, such as family members, friends, business
associates and neighbors. The Company also sponsors meetings at which current
IAs are encouraged to bring in others for an introduction to the Company's
marketing system. The Company's multi-level network markeling system and the
Company's reliance upon 1As are intended to reduce marketing ce sts, customer
acquisition costs and customer attrition. The Company believes that its
multi-level network marketing system will continue to build a base of potential
customers for additional services and products.
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STRATEGY

The Company's goal is to develop a national distribution system
through which large volumes of products and services may be sold. The Company
intends to achieve its goal by:

- Growing and Developing its Network of IAs by enhancing the
sponsoring and training services offered to [As, conlinuing to
support the marketing c{forts of .45 and introducing new income
onportunities for [As.

Maintaining and Expanding the Number of Customers by offenng
high quality, competitively-priced products and services through
a highly motivated network of JAs,

- Offering Additional Communications Products by entering into
agreements for the marketing of additional products that meet the
needs of customers, which may include, among others, paging,
conference calling, wircless cable, cellular and local phone - o
strvice.

- Improving and Expanding its Product and Service Lines by
continuing to evaluate and offer products and services that are
altractive to its IAs and customers. The Company recently began




providing Internet access and Web-page development and hosting
services. In addition lo communications products and services,
the Company markets a line of private label nutritional and

health enhancement products to its customers and [As.

- Obtaining Competitive Prices on products and services through
the purchasing power of the Company’s nationwide network.

MARKETING

The Company markets products and services exclusively through its
network of IAs. Currently, the Company has five 1A positions in its marketing
system: associale; senior associate; director, regional director; and executive
director. IAs pay an annual non-refundable fee in order to maintain their
status as JAs. [As are paid on a commission basis and do not receive any salary
from the Company. To become an associate, individuals (other than individuals
in North Dakot2) must complete an application and purchase a distributor Kit
for $99. The distributor kit is a package of basic materials which assists an
associate in beginning his or her business. The Company designates a portion of
its gross commissions as “commission value,” or "CV," and allocates the CV
among eligible participants in its marketing system. Associates may gather long
distance customers and receive a portion of the CV generated by such customers.
Associates are also entitled to purchase products from the Company al
discounted prices for retail sales. An associate becomes a senior associate
when the associate purchases or sells $100 of bonus-eligible products. Senior
associates continue 10 receive a percentage of CV with regard to all long
distance customers personally gathered and are also entitled to purchase
products ‘rom the Company at discounted prices {or retail sales.

To secome a director, a senior associate must sponsor two additional
senior associale positions. A director increases the size of the director’s
s.les organization by sponsoring additional persons to become senior
associates. These senior associates, and all senior associates that they, in
turn, sponsor, become part of the sales organization of the director who
sponsored them. Senior associates, tkrough the growth of their sales
organizations, may become directors, regional directors or executive directors
and thereby increase the size of the sales organization of the person who was
their original sponsor. The organization that grows below each director through
this process is called a "downline.” Directors arc cligible to receive the same
commissions as senior associates and, if they directly gather and maintain a
minimum of four active 1-Plus long distance customers, are eligible to recoive
a percentage of thr CV produced by each A that is within 15 levels below them
in théir downline. In ovder to encourage the growth of the Company's marketing
system, the Company also pays eligible directors a bonus amount, which is
designated as "bonus value,” or "BV,” for cach sale or purchase of
bonus-eligible products or services. The Company primarily designates retail




priced phone cards, nutritional paks and Web-page development and hosting
services as
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bonus-eligible. Directors become regional directors and executive directors
upon the achievement of certain IA sales goals. Regional directors and
executive directors are also =ligible to receive the same commissions as
directors. Regional directors and executive directors are also eligible to

scrve on the Maxxis 2000 Advisory Board, which advises management on issues
regarding field leadership.

The maximum aggregate long distance usage commissions the Company may
be required to pay to TAs with respect te a single customer’s long distance
usage arc approximately 40% of the gross commissions payable to the Company
with respect to such usage, but the Company anticipates that the actual amounts
paid will be less than 40% as the usage increases. The difference between
actual commission payments and the maximum payment is expected to occur because
certain LAs f2il to maintain active status necessary o receive commissiors
from sales made by persons in their downline.

RELATIONSHIP WITH IAS

The Company secks lo contractually limit the statements that [As make
sbout the Company's business. Each IA also must agree to policies and
procedures to be foilowed in order to maintain the IA's status in the
orgamzation. [As are expressly forbidden from making any representation as to
the possible camings of any IA from the Company or from making any
representation with r-gard to the Company's public offering of its Common Stock
(the "Securities Offering”). IAs are also prohibited from creating any
marketing literature that has not been pre-approved by the Company. While the
Company has these policies and procedures in place governing the conduct of the
[As, it is difficult to enforce such policies and procedures. Because the IAs
are classified as independent contractors, the Company is unable to provide
them the same level of direction and oversight as Company employees. Violations
of the Company’s policies and procedures may reflect negatively on the Company
and could have a material adverse effect on the Company's business, financial
condition and results of operations. i

TRALUKING AND MARKETING SUPPORT

The Company offers its IAs a number of support services. The Company
currently provides to each IA without charge one printed report describing such




IA's downline and provides additional reports for a fee. In addition, the
Company offers training, information and motivational support to the IA network
through its training program and regional meetings.

The Company provides all IAs with the opportunity o receive training
through the Company's training program. The training program is conducted by
the Company'’s national training directors and includes a detailed explanation
of the Company’s products, the IA compensation plan and the use of the various
marketing tools available to IAs. In addition, the Company encourages senior
associates, directors and regional directors to become managing directors
("MDs"). MDs provide personal training to IAs. To become a MD, a senior
associate, director or regional director must attend a Company approved
training school. The fee to attend the training school is currently $99, and
MDs must aitend continuing education training schools each year which also are
subject 10 a fee. National training directors that are selected by the Company
are paid a fee by the Company for training MDs. The Company does not receive
any fees from IAs for the training provided by MDs.

The Company's second annual convention was held in September 1998, and
the Company intends to continue to hold additional annual conventions for [As.
This event provides recognition to the top performers, direct access to senior
management and a chance for IAs o share expenences and develop support
systems. The Company intends to organize additional conventions throughout the
country that current 1As and potential new IAs can attend to leam more about
the Company. The Company also intends to publish a newsletter for the [As
comlaining informative and motivalional articles and recognizing [A
achievements.
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FPRODUCTS AND SERVICES

Following is a summary of the various products and services the
Company currently offers lo its IAs and cusiomers.

Communications Services and Products. The Company's [As market a
variety of long distance and other communications services and products, which
currently include 1-Plus long distance service, prepaid phone cards and
Internet-related services.

- 1-Plus Long Distance. The Company's 1-Plus long distance
service serves as a replacement for a customer’s former long
distance service (such as the long distance services provided




by AT&T Corporation ("AT&T™), MCI WorldCom, Inc. ("MCI
WorldCom™) and Sprint Corporation ("Sprint™)). The 1-Plus
services marketed by the Company are billed on a flat rate
basis, where the cost of a call does not vary depending upon

the distance of a call or the time of day or day of week when
the call is origizated or terminated. Residential 1-Plus

services marketed by the Company are billed based on one
minute increments, and business 1-Plus service is billed

based on 6-second increments with a 30-second minimum.

- Prepaid Phone Cards. The Company offers prepaid phone cards
in domestic ume increments of 1 hour, 30 minutes and 10
minutes. These cards may be used for domestic and
intemational calls. The Company also offers international
prepaid phone cards that are denominated in dollar amounts
Charges are deducted from these cards based upon the raies
applicable to the calls placed by cardholders.

- MAXXCONNECT. In September 1998, the Comprny began providing
Internet access through InteReach and also began p. sviding
Web-page development and hosting services for [As.

The Company may 2dd and remove services and products from its communications
services and product lines from time to lime.

Nutritional and Health Enhancement Products. The Company markets a
line of private labe. nutritional and health enhancement products 1o its 1As
and customers. Representative products include:

- 40/30/32 Maxxis Bar is an eneigy bar intended as 2 meal
replacement which contains approximately 40% carbohydrates,
30% protein, 30% dietary fat and various vitamins and
minerals.

- Maxx-A-Chol is 2 dietary supplement which is a specialized
combination of six herbs.

- MAXXIS MSM is a dietary supplement consisting of
methylsulfonylmethane, vitamin C, citrus bioflavonoid complex
and ginseng.

- MAXXIS Multivitamin is a multivitamin nutritional supplentent
S *  which is delivered by means of a spray.

B MAXXIS 02 is a nutritional supplement that contains
clectrolytes, oxygen, trace clements, enzymes and amino




acids.

. BetaShield is a nutritional product containing an extract
from the cell walls of baker’s yeast.

- Maxx-Life is a dictary supplement containing amino acids and
other ingredients, including lysine, arginine, GABA,
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- Weight-ldeal is a dietary supplement in capsule and spray
forms which contains a blend of nutrients, including chromium

- Maxxis Skin Care System consists of the following health and
beauty products: shampoo; conditioner; body wash; hand and
body conditioner; face wash; skin toner; and moisturizer.

Centain nutritional products are sold as a nutritional pak, and the skin care
products are sold as a complete system or individually. The Company anticipates
adding products to and may remove products from its nutritional and health
enhancement product lines from time to time.

Promotional Matenials. The Company also derives revenues from the sale
of . uiovs educational and promotional materials designed to aid its IAs in
maintaining and building their businesses. Such materials include various sales
aids, informational videotapes and cassette recordings and product and
marketine brochures.

IA SUPPORT AND INFORMATION SYSTEMS

The Company operates a call center where advisors answer IA questions
and provide information to 1As. The call center maintains a system that
includes a current database of all IAs, their downlines and their long distance
customers. The Company believes that maintaining sophisticated and reliable
transaction processing systems is essential for multi-level network marketing
companies. The Company vses a commission processing software system that
incorporates the prévisions of the Company’s marketing program for purposes of
procéssing detailed and customized IA commission payments, monitoring and
analyzing financial and opesating trends and tracking each IA's downline. The
Company also maintains transaction processing systems that facilitate the
shipment of IA b uning and marketing materials. In addition, the Company’s




order processing system tracks the receipt, storage, shipment and sale of the
Company's sales aid products.

SUFrLIERS

The Company does not own a long disiance network. As a result, Maxxis
Communications has entered into an agreement (the "1-Plus Agreement”) with CRC
to oblain switching and nctwork services. The Company depends primarily on CRC
for the transmission of subscriber phone calls and the activation of prepaid
phone cards. Long distance customers are customers on CRC's network, and CRC
provides customer suppon for the Company. Customers have the right to change
their service at any time. The Company’s 1-Plus Agreement with CRC, which
expires on February 20, 2000, provides that the Company will have cenain
rights with respect to the customer base developed under the agreement upon
achieving certain minimum levels of monthly revenues on CRC's network. The
Company recently reached these minimum levels, and, therefore, the Company has
the right to market other cammiers to the customer base. In the event the
Company contracts with such carriers, minimum monthly revenues may be mo-e
difficult to raintain, and the Company could be subject to additional minimum
commitments including, but not limited to, minimum monthly revenues or minimum
monthly minutes of usage, with such new camiers. The accurate : 1d prompt
billing of the Company’s customers is also dependent upon CRC. The fatlure of
CRC to accurately and promptly bill customers could lead 10 a loss of customers
and could have a maienal adverse effect on the Company's business, financial
condition and results of operations. The Company would be required to use
another carrier if the 1-Plus Agreement were terminated, the usage or number of
customers originated by the Company’s IAs exceeded the capacity of CRC, CRC
failed to provide qual™y service or became unable 1o provide service at all or
CRC experienced financial difficulties. 1f the 1-Plus Agreement is terminated,
there can be no assurance that the Company could enter into new coniracts with
other providers on terms favorable to the Company or at all. The termination of
the 1-Plus Agreement could have a material adverse effect on the Company's
business, financial condition and results of operations.

The Company began marketing a line of private label nutritional
products in November 1997. The Company recently began marketing new health
enhancem =nt products and additional nutritional products, including a weight
management program and skin care system. All of the nutritional and health
enhancement products offered and distributed by the Coinpany are developed and
manufactured by third-party suppliers. Certain of the nutiitional
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and health enhancement products offered by the Company are proprictary to such
suppliers. The Company docs not have any written contracts with or commitments
from any of its suppliers or manufaciurers to continue to sell nutritional and
health enhancement preducts to the Company. The Company belicves ‘hat its
relationships with supplicrs are satisfactory; however, there can be no

assurance that any or all of these suppliers will continue to be reliable

suppliers to the Company. Accordingly, there is a nisk that any or all of the
Company's suppliers or manufacturers, including supplicrs which provide
proprietary products to the Company, could discontinue selling their

nutritional and health enhancement products to the Company. In the event any of
the third-party manufacturers become unable or unwilling to continue to provide
the nutritional and health enhancement products in required volumes, the
Company would be required to identify and obtain acceptable replacement
sources, and no assurance can be given that any altemalive manufaciuring
sources would become available to the Company on a timely basis.

In September 1998, the Company began providing Intemet access and
Web-page development and hosting services. The Company provides Intemet access
through iis agreement with InteReach. IntcReach is a third-party reseller of
Internet access. InteReach provides all billing and customer support for the
Company's customers. The failure of Int¢éReach to accurately and promptly bill
customers, to effcctively provide customer support or to provide acceptable
service could lead 10 a loss of subscribers and could have a material adverse
effect on the Company’s business, financial condition and results of
operations. In addition, 1f InteReach were to default on its contract with, or
have its contract terminated by, its Intemet service provider (an "ISP"), or
if the Company’s contract with InteReach is terminated, the Company would be
required to contract with another ISP. There can be no assurance that the
Company could enter into a new contract with another ISP on terms favorable to
the wompany or at all.

CUSTO" {ER SUPPORT

CF Z is responsible for the billing of long distance customers and for
providing customer service. Certain communications services, including 1-Plus
'amg distance and prepaid phone cards, are provided under CRC's state, national
and intemnational tariffs. The Company has been informed that CRC possesses all
tariffs necessary Lo offer such services. The Company provides its Internet
access services through InteReach, which is responsible for billing the
Company’s Intemet access customers and for providing customer support. The
Company provides all of the software necessary to automatically sign up for its
Intemet access services thrcugh UscfulWare Incarporated.

COMPETITION

The Company faces compelition in the United States for both the




products and services it sells and for the sponsonng and retaining of
independent salespeople.

Communications Servi.cs. The United States long distance
communications industry is intensely competitive, rapidly evolving and subject
to rapid technological change. In addition, the industry is significantly
influenced by the marketing and pricing praclices of the major industry
participants. AT&T, MCI WorldCom and Sprint are the dominant competitors in the
domestic long distance communications indusiry. All of these companies are
significantly larger than the Company and have substantially greater resources.
Many of the Company's current and potential competitors have longer operating
histories, greater name recognition, larger customer bases and substantially
greater financial, personnel, marketing, technical and other resources than the
Company. These competitors employ vanious means to atlract new customers,
including television and other advertising campaigns, telemarketing programs,
network marketing and cash payments and other incentives 1o new customers.
The Company's ability to compete effectively depends upon, ame 1g other factors,
its ability to offer high quality products and services at competitive prices
There can be no assurance that the Company will be able 1o compete
successfully.

The evolving regulatory environment of the United Siates
communications industry significantly influences the Company’s ability to
compete. On February 8, 1596, President Chinton signed into law the
Telecommunications -.ct of 1996, as amended (the *1996 Telecommunications Act™),
that will allow local exchange camers ("LECs"), including the Bell operating
comparies ("BOCs"), 1o provide long distance telephone service inter-LATA (a

<PAGE> 9

"LATA' is a Local Access and Transport Arca), which will likely significantly
increz- -~ competition for long distance services. The new lzgislation also
grants the Federal Communications Commission (*he "FCC™) the authority to
deregulate other aspects of the communications industry. Such increased
competition could have a matenial adverse effect on the Company’s business,
financial condition and results of operations.

Telecommunications companies compete for customers based on pnice,
among other things,"with major long distance camriers conducting extensive
advertising campaigns to capture market share. There can be no assurance that a
decrease in the rates charged for commuunications services by the major long
distance carriers or other competitors, whether caused by general competitive
pressures or the entiy of the BOCs and other LECs into the Jong distance




market, would not have a matenial adverse effect on the Company’s business,
financial condition and results of operations.

The Company cxpects that the communications services markets will
conlinue to attract new competitors and new technologies, possibly including
altemnalive technologies that are more sophisticated and cost effective than
the technologies included in the products and services offered by the Company.
The Company does not have the contractual right to prevent customers from
changing to a competing service, and the customers may terminate their
service at will.

Nutritional and Health Enhancement Products. The Company also competes
in the highly competitive market of dictary supplements and health enhancement
products. This market segmenl includes numerous manufacturers, other network
marketing companies, catalog companies, distnbutors, marketers, retailers and
physicians that actively compete for the business of consumers. The Company
competes with other providers of such nutritional and health enhancement
products, especially retail outlets, based upon convenience of purchase, price
and immediate availability of the purchased product. For the most pan, 1he
Company’s competitors offering comparable products are substannally larger and
have available considerably greater financial resources than the Company. The
market is Lighly sensitive to the introduction of new products (including
various prescription drugs) that may rapidly capture a significant share of the
market. As a result, the Company’s ability to remain competitive depends in
part upon the successful introduction of new products at competitive prices.

Internet Access and Intemet-Related Services. The marke for the
provision o Internet access and Intemnet-related ervices is extremely
competitive and highly fragmented. There are no substantial barmiers to enlry,
and the Caoinpany expects that competition will continue to intensify. There can
be no assurance that the Company will be able to compete successfully against
cur. 2nt or future competitors or that competitive pressures faced by the
Company will not materially adversely affect its business, financial condition
and results of operations. The Company’s current and future competitois
include, without limitation, the following types of Internet access providers:

(i) national commercial I1SPs; (ii) numerous regional and local commercial ISPs;
(ii1) established on-line commercial information service providers; (iv)

national long distance carriers; (v) regional telephone companies; and (vi)

cable operators.

LAs. The Company competes for 1As with other direct selling
organizations, some ' which have longer operating histories and greater
visibility, name recognition and {inancial resources. The largest network
marketing companies 1» 'he Company’s markets are: EXCEL Communications, Inc.;
American Communications Network; BeautiControl Cosmetics, Inc.; HerbalLife
International, Inc.; and Mary Kay, Inc. The Compzany competes for new IAs on the

-




»asis of the Company’s reputation, perceived opportunity for financial success
and quality and range of prodrcis offered for sale. Management envisicns the
entry of many more direct seiling organizations into the marketplace. There can
be no assurance that the Company will be able to sueeessfully meet the
challenges posed by this increased competition. The Company competes for the
time, attention and commitment of its IAs. Given that the pool of individuals
interested in the business opportunities presented by direct selling is limited

in each market, the potential pool of IAs for the Company’s products and
services is reduced to the extent other network marketing companies
successfully attract these individuals. There can be no assurance that other
network marketing companies will not convince the Company’s existing IAs to
join their organizations. In such event, the Company’s business, financial
condition and results of operations could be matenally adversely affected.
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PROPRIETARY RIGHTS

The Company has applied for a federal registration for the mark
“"MAXXIS." In adc 1on, the Company relies upon common law rights to protect
other marks used by the Company and other nghts that the Company considers to
be its intellectual property. There can be no assurance that the Company's
measures to protect this intellectual property will prevent or deter the use or
misappropriation of the Company’s intellectual property by other parties. The
Company’s inability to protect its intellectual property from use or
misappropriation from others could have a material adverse effect upon the
Company’s business, financial condition and results of operations. From time to
time, companies may assert other trademark, service mark or intellectual
property rights in marks (including the mark "MAXXIS™) or other intellectual
p. - perty used by the Company. The Company could incur substantial costs to
defend any legal action taken against the Company. f, in any legal action that
might arise, the Company's asserted tradema- ks, service marks or other nghts
that the Company considers to be its intellectual property should be found 10
infringe upon intellectuzl property rights of other parties, the Company could
be enjoined from further infringement and required to pay damages. In the event
a third party were 1o sustain a valid claim against the Company, and in the
event any required license were not available on commercially reasonable terms,
the Company's business, financial condition and results of operations could be
matenally adversely affectied. Litigation, which could result in substantial
cost 1D and diversion of resources of the Company, may also be necessary to
enforce intellectual property rights of the Company or to defend the Company
against claimed infringement of the rights of others.




REGULATION

Regulation of Long Distance Telephone Services. Various regulatory
factors may have an impact on the Company’s ability to compete and on ils
financial performance. The Company’s long distance carrier, CRC, is subject to
regulation by the FCC and by various siate public service and public utility
commissions. Federal and state regulations and regulatory trends have had, and
may have in the future, both positive and negative effects on the Company and
on the telecommunications service industry as a whole. FCZ policy currently
requires interexchange carmiers to provide resale of the use of their
transmission facilities. The FCC also requires LECs to provide all
interexchange carriers with equal access to the origination and termination of
calls. If either or both of these requirements were removed, CRC and,
therefore, the Company could be adversely affected. CRC may experience
disruptions in service due to factors outside CRC's and the Company's control,
which may causz CRC 1o lose the ability to complete its subscribers’ long
distance calls. The Company belicves that CRC has made all filings with the FCC
necessary to allow CRC to provide interstate and international long distance
service. In order to provide intrastate long distance service, CRC is required
to obtain certification to provide communications services from the public
service or public utility commissions of each state, or to register or be found
exempt from registration by such commissions. While the Company believes that
CRC is in compliance with the applicable state and federal regulations
goveming telecommunications service, there can be no assurance that the FCC or
any state regulatory authonty in one or more states will not raise material
issues wit!: regard to CRC's compliance with applicable regulations, or that
regulatory :ctivities with respect to CRC will not have a matenal adverse
effect on 1.2 Company's business, financial condition and results of
operations,

The 1996 Telecommunications Act has increased competition in the long
distance and local telecommunications markets. The 1996 Telecommunications Act
opens competition in the local services market and, at the same time, contains
provisions intended to protect consumers and businesses from unfair competition
by incumbent LECs, including the BOCs. The 1996 Telecommunications Act allows
BOCs to provide long distance service outside of their local service
territories but bars them from immediately offering in-region inter-LATA long
distance services until certain conditions are satisfied. A BOC must apply to
the FCC to provide in-region inter-LATA long distance services and must satisfy
a set of pro-competitive criteria intended 1o ensure that BOCs open their own
local markets to c-npetition hefore the FCC will approve such application, The
Company is unablu 1o wetermine how the FCC will rule on any such application,
The siew legislation may result in increased competition to the Company from
others, including the 80OCs, and increased transmission costs in the future. If
the federal and state regulations requiring the LECs to provide equal access
for the origination and termination of calls by long distance subscribers




change or if the regulations goveming the fees to be charged for such access
services change,
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particularly if such regulations are changed to allow variable pricing of such
access fees based upon volume, such changes could have a matenial adverse
effect upon the Company’s business, financial condition and results of
operations. See “Competition -- Communications Services.”

Regulation Affecting Nutritional and Health Enhancement Products. The
formulation, manufacturing, packaging, labeling, advertising, distribution and
sale of the Company’s nutritional and health enhancement products are subject
toe regulation by a number of governmental agencies, the most active of which is
the Food and Drug Administration ("FDA"), which regulates nutritional products
under the Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act (the "FDCA™) and regulations
promulgated thereunder. The Company’s products are also subject to regulation
by the Federal Trade Commission (the "FTCT), the Consumer Product Safety
Commission, the United States Department of Agriculture and the cnvironmental
Protection Agency. The FDCA has been amended several times with respect to
dietary supplements, most recently by the Nutntional Labeling and Education
Act of 1990 and the Dietary Supplement Health and Education Act of 1994. The
Company’s nutritional and health enhancement products are generally classified
and regulated as dietary supplements under the FDCA, as amended, and therefore
are not subject to pre-market approval by the FDA. However, these products are
subject to extensive la.¢ling regulation by the FDA and can be removed from the
market if shown to be unsafe. Morcover, if the FDA determines on the basis of
labeling or advertising claims by the Company, that the “intended use” of any
of the Company’s nutiitional and health enhancement products is for the
diagnosis, cure, mitigation, treatment or prevention of discase, the FDA can
regulate those products as drugs and require pre-market clearance for safety
and effectiveness. In addition, if the FDA determines that claims have been
made reganding the effect of distary supplements on the "structure or function™
of the body, such claims could result in the regulation of such products as
drags.

The FTC and certain states regulate advertising, product claims, and
other consumer matters, including advertising ¢ { the Company’s nutritional and
health enhancement products. In the past several years the FTC has instituted
enforéement actions against several dietary supplement companies for false and
misleading advertising of cenain products. In addition, the FTC has increased
its scrutiny of the use of testimonials, such as those utilized by the Company.
There can be no assurance that the FTC will not question the Company's past or




future advertising or other operations. Moreover, there can be no assurance
that a state will nol interpret product claims presumiptively valid under

federal law as illegal under that siate’s regulations. Furthermore, the
Company’s IAs and customers of IAs may file actions on their own behalf, as a
class or otherwise, and may file complaints with the FTC or state or local
consumer affairs offices. These agencies may take acticn on their own
initiative or on a referral from IAs, customers or others, including actions
resulting in entries of consent decrees and the refund of amounts paid by the
complaining IA or customer, refunds to an entire class of IAs or customers, or
other damages, as well as changes in the Company's method of doing business. A
complaint because of a practice of one [A, whether or not that practice was
authorized by the Company, could result in an order affecting some or all IAs
in a particular state, and an order in one state could influence courts or
govemmient agencies in other states. Proceedings iesulling from these
complaints may result in significant defense costs, settlement payments or
judgments and could have a material adverse effect on the Company's business,
financial condition or results of operations.

Although many of the ingredients in the Company's nutritional products
are vitamins, minerals, herbs and other substances for which there is a long
history of human consumption, some of the Company's nutritional products
contain ingredients as to which there is httle history of human consumption.
The Company has not tested, and has not engaged any independent third party to
test, any of its nutritional and health enhancement products. Accordingly, no
assurance can be given that the Company's nutritional and health enhancement
products, even when used as directed, will have the effects intended. Although
the Company believes that its nutritional and health enhancement products are
safe when consumed as directed, the Company has not sponsored clinical studies
on the "~ 1g-term effect of human consumption. If such products are alleged or
proven 1o be unsafe, the Company could be subject 1o actions or claims which
could have a material adverse effect on the Company's business, financial
condition or resulis of operations.

Regulation of Network Marketing. The Company’s multi-level network
marketing system is subject 1o or affected by extensive govemment regulation
incluaing, without limitation, federal and state regulations goveming the
offer and sale of business franchises, business opportunities and securities.
Various governmental agencies momitor direct selling activities, and the
Company could be required to supply information regarding its marketing plan to
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such agencies. Althou jh the Company believes that its multi-|evel network



marketing system is in material compliance with the laws and regulations
relating 1o dirzct sclling aclivilics, there can be no assurance that

legislation and regulations adopted in particular juricdictions in the future

will not adversely affect the Company's business, financial ¢ - . .iion and
results of operations. The Company also could be found not to be in compliance
with existing statuirs or regulations as a result of, among other things,
misconduct by IAs, who are considered independent contractors over whom the
Company has limited conirol, the ambiguous nature ¢f certain of the regulations
and the considerable interpretive and enforcement discretion given to
regulators. Any assertion or determination that the Company or the [As are not
in compliance with existing statutes or regulations could have a matenal
adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition and results of
oper'ons. An adverse determination by any one state on any regulatory matter
could influence the decisions of regulatory authorities in other jurisdictions.

The Company has not oblained any no-action letters or advance rulings
from any federal or state secu-ities regulator or other governmental agency
conceming the legality of the Company’s operations, and the Company is not
relying on an opinion of counsel to such effect. The Company accordingly is
subject 1o the risk that its multi-level network marketing system could be
found to be in noncompliance with applicable laws and regulations, which could
have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition
or results of operations. Such a decision could require the Company to modify
its multi-level network marketing system, result in negative publicity, or have
a negative effect on distnbutor morale and loyalty. In addition, the Company's
multi-level nerwork marketing system will be subject 1o regulations in foreign
markets administered by foreign agencies should the Company expand its network
marketing organization into such markets.

Effect of State Secunities Laws. The pnmary goal of the Commany's
current Secunties Offering is to increase the motivation of regiona. and
executive directors by allowing them to purchase an interest in the Company.
Accordingly, because the Company desires the ability to offer its Common Stock
to regional and executive directors in certain states, the Company has
attempted to register or qualify the Securities Offering in such states. Due to
the varying nature of state securities regulations and the consideratle
discretion given to stale securities regulators, the Company may be unable 1o
register or qualify the & scurities Offering in certain states. The inability of
the Company to offer its Common Stock to residents of certain states may limit
the ability of the Company to attract IAs in such states, or lead to increased
attrition of JAs in such states, and may have a matenial adverse effect on the
Company's business, prospects, financial condition and results of operations.

N An adverse determination by any one state regulator on a se~urities regulatory
matier could influence the decisions of securities regulatory authorities in
other jurisdictions.




FACILITIES

The Company operates cut of offices in Atlanta, Georgia consisting of
approximately 24,600 square feet for general and administrative office space,
warchouse space and training space. The Company may be required to lease or
build additional facilities, including at least one additional cali center and
new corporate headquarters, in order to meet adequately its needs in the future.
The Company believes that suitable additional or alternative space will be
available in the fulure on commercially reasonable terms as needed.

EMPLOYEES

As of June 30, 1998, the Company employed approximately 30 people. The
Company’s | As are classified by the Company as independent contractors.
The Company's employees are not unionized, and the Company believes its
relationship with its employees is good.
ITEM2. PROPERTIES

See the infrrmation provided in Item | above entitled “Business --
Facilities” for information with respect to the Company’s properties.
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ITEM3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Company is not a party 1o, nor is any of ils property subject
to, any material legal proceedings, other than routine litigation incidental to
its business.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS
No matter was submitted to a vote of the Company’s security

he'' 13 during the fourth quarter of the year ended June 30, 1998.

< PARTII

ITEMS5. MARKET F-DR COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED SHAREHOLDER MATTERS

As of Seplember 25, 1998, the Company had 57 sharcholders of




record. In the Securities Offering, the Company intends (o offer its Common
Stock at a price of $5.50 per share; however, the §5.50 per share price is not
necessarily indicative of present value. As of the date of this Report, the
Company has not offered or sold any shares of Common Stock pursuant to the
Securities Offering. There is no established trading market for the Common
Stock, and one is not expected to develop in the near future.

All outstanding shares of Common Stock of .he Company are
entitled to share equally in dividends from funds legally available therefor,
when, as and if declared by the Board of Directors. The Company does not plan
to declare any dividends in the immediate future.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table sets forth selected consolidated financial
data for the periods presented. The Company was incorporated on January 24,
1997 and began operations in March 1997. The Company's fiscal vear ends on June
30. The statement of operations data for the Inception Period and he year
ended June 30, 1998 and the balance sheet data as of June 30, 1997 and 1998 are
derived from the audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company. The
Consolidated Financial Statements for the Inception Period and the ycar ended
June 30, 1998 were audited by Arthur Andersen LLP, independent public
accountants. The selected consolidated financial data should be read in
conjunction with "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operatiuns” and the Consolidated Financial Statements and the
related Notes thereto appearing elsewhere in this Report.

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
JANUARY 24, 1997
MNCEPTION YEAR ENDED
TOJUNE 30,1997 JUNE 30, 1998
<S> <C> <C> - .
=  STAITENT OF OPERATIONS DATA:
~ Net revenues: ;
CommuUNICatioNs SEIVICES...ccrmmreesrsmsassarsamsnmssstasassnnsias S 2,322,000 S 5,293,000
Nutrition2] productS........cce-cecosrmrmmsssssssimmensesmsssans = 526,000

Marketing ServiCes.........occvvinminmmmnisrsnssssssesins 369,000 1,172,000




<TABLE>
<S> <C>
September 28, 1998 /sy LARRY W, GATES, Il

T ———— R 4 e

Larry W. Gates, 11
Vice President, Human Resources and Director

September 28, 1998 /s/ CHARLES P, RERNSTEIN

Charles P. Bemstein
Director

September 28, 1998 /s/ ALVIN CURRY

e

Alvin Curry

Director

Seprember 28, 1998 /s ROBERT J. GLOVER, JR.

T T T T R

Robert J, Glover, Ir.
Director

September 28, 1998 /s/ TERRY HARRIS

Terry Hamis
Director

Scpiciiber 28, 1998 /s/ PHILIP E. LUNDQUIST

Philip E. Lundquist
Director
<TASLE>
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<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Page
<> <C>
Keport of Independent Public Accountants...........o.oecnvesrsssssmsscsmemsnsssssnisnsess. ol
Consclidated Balance Sheets as of June 30, 1998 and 1997.....cooe v vrvrcvcrienne. =3

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Year Ended June 30, 1998 and
F-4
for the Period from Inception (January 24, 1997) to June 30, 1997....cciisvcneisinesnsenns
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

To Maxou: Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries:

ey - ¥
-

We Imve audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of MAXXIS GROUP,
INC. (a Georgia corporation) AND SUBSIDIARIES as of June 30, 1998 and 1997 and
the related consolidated statements of operations, shareholders’ equity, and

cash flows for the year ended June 30, 1998 and for the period from inception




"

(January 24, 1997) to June 30, 1997. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is 1o express an
opinion on these financial stalements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepied auditing
standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit 1o obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial staterients are free of material
misstatement. An 2udit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
asscssing the accounting principles used and significant estimaics made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
We believe that our sudits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in

all material respects, the financial position of Max xis Group, Inc. and
subsidiaries as of June 30, 1998 and 1997 and the results of their operations
and their cash flows for the yzar ended June 30, 1998 and for the peniod from
inception (January 24, 1997) to June 30, 1997 in conformity with gencrally
accepled accounting principles.

/S/ ARTHUR ANDERSENLLP
Atlanta, Georgia
September 4, 1998
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{AXXIS GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

JUNE 30, 1998 AND 1997

<TABLE>
<CAFPTION>

ASSETS




1998 1997

e T — LS s sE

<S> <G <&

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash $ 372,000 S 35,000
Short-term investment 10,000 10,000
Communications receivables, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of S40,000 and

50, respectively 316,000 25,000
Inventories, net 218,000 185,000
Prepaid expenses 43,000 12,000
Other current assets 0 23,000
959,000 290,000
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET 169,000 92,000
ORGANIZATIONAL COSTS, NET 0 76,000

CAPITALIZED SOFTWARE DEV ELOPMENT COSTS, NET
126,000 118,000

OTHER ASSETS 9,000 20,000

A — i ——— —rma

51,263,000 S 596,000

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable S 211,000 S 158,000
Commissions payable 101,000 42,000
Accrued compensation 154,000 0
Provision for sales retums 45,000 0
Sales tuxes payable 130,000 0
Ac mod expenses 83,000 103,000
Deferred revenue 55,000 0

- B

779,000 303,000

—— i e

CO”WTMENTSANDCO”HHGENCIES(NW’E?}

~  SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY: . g
~ Stock subscription deposits 0 360,000
Preferred stock. no par value; 10,000,000 shares authorized; 100,000 shares
ﬁzﬁglmﬂdnScduA;Jﬁjsg'mdﬂSuiuhminud and outstanding,
respectively 200,000 0




» 1,571,187 and 1,299,992
respectively 574,000 127,000

(120,000)  (120,000)
Accumulated deficit (170,000)  (74,000)
Total shareholders’ equity 484,000 293,000

$1,263,000 s 396,000
A
</TABLE>

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated balance
sheets.
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MAXXIS GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1998 AND

FOR THE PERIOD FROM INCEPTION (JANUARY 24, 1997) TO JUNE 30,

1997
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
1998 1997

<85> <C> <>
NET REVF JUES:

Communications s=rvices $5,293,000 s 2,322,000

Mutritional products 526,000 0

eting services 1,172,000 369,000

. - e

Total net revenues 6,991,000 2,691,000

COST OF SERVICES:
unications services 1,351,000 761,000

e ————




Nutritional products 294,000 0
Marketing scrvices 431000 255,000

Total cost of sz vices 2,076,000 1,016,000

GROSS MARGIN 4915000 1,675,000

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Selling and marketing 2,665,000 1,089,000
General and administrative 2,344,000 660,000

Total operating expenses 5,009,000 1,749,000

INTEREST EXPENSE 2,000 0
LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX BENEFIT  (96,000)  (74,000)
INCOME TAX BENEFIT 0 0

NET LOSS S (96,000) § (74,000)

[ = = = = T

BASIC AND DILUTED LOSS PER SHARE S (0.05) S (0.05)

b ===

Zo====

WEIGHTED AVER.” 5E NUMBER OF SHARES AND
SHARE EQUIVALENTS OUTSTANDING 1,571,187 1,571,187

T =

</TABLE>

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated statements.
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MAXXIS GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

- o .
-

*  CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1998 AND FOR



THE PERIOD FROM INCEPTION (JANU..RY 24, 1997) TO JUNE 30, 1997

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

COMMON STOCK STOCK
SHAREHOLDER

......... T Treemeesee—emeeee SUBSCRIPTION NOTE

SHARES  AMOUNT SHARES  AMOUNT DEPOSITS
RECEIVABLE DEFICIT TOTAL

<S> < < < <C> <C> <C>
BALANCE, JANUARY 24, 1997 (H'ICEP'I'IDN) 2'S 0% o S 0 s
0Ss 0s o

ACCUMULATED

Issuance of common stock 0 1,299992 127.000 0 (120,000)
0 7000

Stock subscription deposits 0 0 0 360,000 0 0
360,000

Net loss 0 0 (1] 0 0 0 (74,000) (74,000)

L . I o e rmase. e

BALANCE, JUNE 30, 1997 0 0 1299992 127,000 360,000 (120.000)
(74,000) 293,000 :

Issuance of preferred stock 36,359 200 000 0 0 0 0
200,000

Issuance of common stock 0 0 271,195 447,000 0 0
447,000

Stock subseription deposits 0 0 0 (360,000) 0 0
(360,000)

Net loss 0 0 0 0 0 0 (96,000) (96,000)

e e e ——— L T— e —————

BALANCE, JUNE 30, 1998 36,359 S 200,000 1,571,187 $574,000 s 0
3(120,000) s¢ 170,000) S 484,000
e m [—— "




=

“
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MAXXIS GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1998 AND FOR

THE PERIOD FROM INCEPTION (JANUARY 24, 1997) TO JUNE 30, 1997

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
1998 1997
<S> <C> <C>
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net loss $ (96,000) S (74,000)

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by operating
activities:

Depreciation and amortization 176,000 54,000
Changes in asscts and liabilities:
Communications receivables (291,000) (25,000)
Inventories (33,000) (185,000)
Prepaid expenses (31,000) (12,000)
Other asscets 34,000  (43,000)
Commissions payable 59000 42,000
Accounts payable 53,000 158,000
Accrued compensation 154,000 0
Provision for sales retums 45,000 0
Sales taxes payable 130,000 0
Accrued expenses (20,000) 103,000
Dei..iod revenue 55,000 0
Total adjustments 331,000 92,000
Net cash provided by operating activities 235000 15,000

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Capital expenditures
Purchase of short-term investment

(115,000)  (99,000)
0 (10,000)




Solftware development and organizational costs (70,000) (241,000)

Net cash used in investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from stock subscriplions

Proceeds from issuance of common stock
Proceeds from issuance of preferred stock

Net cash provided by financing activilies
NET INCREASE IN CASH
CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR 0

LT ——

CASH, END OF YEAR $372,000 S 35,000
s ———— )
SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW DISCLOSURES:
Cash paid for interest
Cash paid for income 1axes

Stock issued for note receivable

<TABLL>

The accompanying notes are an inte gral part of these consolidated statemenis.
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MAXXIS GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 1998 AND 1997 ‘

. ORGANIZATI !N AND PRESENTATION




L SSCRIPTION OF BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS

Maxxis Group, inc., a Georgia corporation, was incorporated on January 24,
1997 ("Inception”) and 15 headquartcred in Tucker, Georgia. Maxxis Group,
Inc.'s pnncipal business ¢;-erations are camied out through its whelly
owned subsidianes, Maxxis 2000, Inc. and Maxxis Telecom, Inc., which
began operations in March 1997, and Maxxis Nutritional, Inc., which began
operations in December 1997, Maxxis Group, Inc., together with its wholly
owned subsidianes (collectively referred to as the "Company”™), was
founded for the purpose of providing long-distance services, private label
nutritional products, and other consumable products and services through a
multilevel marketing system of independent associates ("1As”) 1o
subscribers throughout the United States. The Company currently markets
both long-distance services and value-added communications services, such
as travel cards, prepaid phone cards, 800 service, and inlernational
telecommunications service, as well as private label nutritional products.

The Company has a limited eperaing history, and its operalic s are
subject 10 the risks inherent in the establishment of any new business.
Since the Company has only recently made the transition to an operating
company, the Company’s ability to manage its growth and expansion will
require it to ir:plement 2nd continualiy expand its operational and
financial systems, recruit addit:onal employees, and train and manage both
current and new employees. Growth may place a significant stram on the
Company’s operational resources and systems, and failure to effectively
manage this projec.ed growth would have a material adverse effect on the

Company’s business

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been
climizated in consolidation.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Communications services revenues consist of prepaid phone card sales to

IAs. The Company purchases prepaid phone cards from an independent

taniffed long-distance reseller (the "Reseller”). 1As purchase these A r d
prepaid phone cards from the Company. Revenues from the sale of these

picpaid phone cards-are recognized when the cards are sold to [As, net of

an estimate of sales retums for defective or unused cards. Active IAs

have the right of return for defective or unused cards for up to 30 days

after the date of purchase. 1As that terminate their relationship with the




Company also have up 10 one year from the date of purchase to retumn cards
that are unused and sealed in the original packaging, net of a restocking
fee, for a refund.
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Communications services also consist of revenues generated from the
Company’s zgrecment with the Reseller that provides for the Company 10
receive a percentage of the gross long-distance revenues generated by the
Company’s customers, less billing adjustments. The Company recognizes
long-distance revenues when services are provided by the Reseller, net of
an estimat= for billing adjustments. The Reseller assumes the risk of all
bad debts. Amounts due to the Company related to this agreement are
included in communications receivables in the accompanying consolidated
balance sheets.

Nutritional services revenues consist of sales of private label
nutritional products manufactured by various suppliers and are recorded as
products are shipped.

Marketing services revenues primarily consist of receipts from IAs for

application fees and purchases of distributor kits and sales aids, which

include starter kits of forms, promotional brochures, marketing matenals, Ji
and presentation matenals.

PTTFERRED REVENUE

Deferred revenve relates to an annual nonrefundable renewal fee assessed
10 IAs sfter their first year with the Company that provides IAs with the
right to -zl the Company's products and services. The Company recognizes
this revenue on a straight-line basis over the 1As’ renewal period.

COST OF SERVICES

Communications services costs primarily include the costs of purchasing
prepaid phone cards from the Reseller.

Nutritional services costs include the costs of purchasing nutritional
products from third-party suppliers.

Marketing services costs include the costs for printing and designing of
n agsociale applications, starter kits, and other sales aids.

SELLING AND MARKETING EXPENSES




Selling and marketing expenses primarily consist of commissions paid to
1As based on the sponsoring of new 1A= and the sale of communication
services and nutritional products.

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

General and administrative expenses primarily consist of salary expense
for the Company's customer service personnel, office staff, and executive
personnel in addition to the cost of IAs support services and information
syslems services.

CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

The Company's customers are pnmanily residential and are not concentrated
in any specific geographic region of the United States. The Company
purchases its prepaid phone card services from the Reseller. Failure of

the Reseller to provide quality services and cusiomer support <ould have a
material adverse effect on the Company’s results of operation: . The
Company has an additional agreement with the Reseller to provide long-
distance services, which if terminated or canceled may significantly

impact the results of operations of the Cempany. While the Company

F-§
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believes it could contract with another long-distance reseller, the loss
of revenues or potential disruption of senvices to customers may have a
muaterial effect on the Company's results of operations.

The Company’s success will depend heavaly on its ability to attract,
mauntsin, and motivate a large base of IAs who, in turn, sponsor customers
and other I1As The Company anticipe’=s 2 significant tumover zmong [As,
winch the Company believes is typical of direct selling. The Company has
begun ectahlnhong 11x network of LAs; howewer, there can be no assurance
= ‘e Compamy will be saccessic! m establzchmy a vishle network of
lAax

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of Smencal sty = comforeary wadh grmeralh

accrpiad ACOOUTRIDG PITICHUCS QU TIREREOTnOTE W Skle cmates and s
assarpacss tal 2fiece the roporied amoces of assets and Il tes and

disclosire of contmngest aesens xod absimes 1= The Smanco!

statrments gnd the reporied amon's of xmoaoes and experses Sonag e



COMMUNICATIONS RECEIVABLES

A summary of changes in the allowance for doubtfu] accounts for the year
ended June 30, 1998 and the period from Incepiion to June 30, 1997 is as

follows:
<TABLE>
<CAFTION>
1998 1997
<S> <C> <G>
Balance, beginning of period 3 0S8 0
Provisians 40,000 0
Recoveries 0 0
Write-offs 0 0
Balance, end of period 540,000 § 0
s s S5 E - s —- = - .3
</TABLE>
INVENTORIES

Inventories consist of the following as of June 30, 1998 and 1997
~TABLE>

<CAPTION>
1998 1997
<> <C> <>
Prepaid phone cards S 10,000 S 25,000
Sales aids 158,000 160,000
Nutritional products 76,000 0
244,000 185,000
Less reserve (26,000) 0
lniventory, net $218,000 S 185,000 x
- s ] EEmEE e
</TABLE>

Inventories are va' =d at the lower of purchased cost (determined on a




first-in, first-out basis) or market,

F-9
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PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipmeiit consist primarily of furniture and fixtures, office
equipment, computer equipment, and leaschold improvements which are stated
at cost and are depreciated using the straight-line method over the

estimated useful lives of three to five years.

INCOME TAXES

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS™) No. 109, "Accounting for Income
Taxes,” which requires that deferred income laxes be prundcd based on
estimated future tax effects of differences between the carrying amounts

of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts
used for income tax purposes calculated based on provisions of enacted tax
laws (Note 4).

ORGANIZATIONAL COSTS

The Company capitaiized certain organizational costs related to start-up
activities and the legal formation of the Company. These cosls were
amortized over one year, and amortization expenses were 576,000 and
$25,000 for the vear ended June 30, 1998 and the period from Inception to
June 30, 1997, rospectively.

CAPITALIZED SOFTWARE DEVELOPMENT COSTS

Certain software development costs pertaining to a software application
which is used internally for processing applications and customer service
have been capitalized as incurred. Capitalization of software development
costs begins upon the establishment of technological feasibility. The
establishment of technological feasibility and the ongoing assessment of
recoverability of capitalized software development costs require
*nsiderable judgement by management with respect to certain external
factors, including but not limiled to, anticipaied future revenues,
estimated economic life, and changes in software and hardware
technologies. These software development costs are amortized over an ~
estimated useful life.of three years, and amortization expenses were
§62,000 and 521,000 for the year ended June 30, 1998 and the period from

Inception to June 30, 1997, respectively.




OTHER ASSETS

Other assets include securily deposits for lease obligations.
SHORT-TERM INVESTMENT '

The short-term investment is a certificate of deposit recorded at cost,
which approximates the estimated fair value and matures in May 1999.

LOSS PER SHARE

In March 1937, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued
SFAS No. 128, "Eamings Per Share,” which specifies the computation,
presentation, and disclosure requirements for camings per share ("EPS")
which the Company adopted for the year ended June 30, 1998. Basic net EPS
is comput.d by dividing reported eamings available to common shareholders
by weighted average shares outstanding as computed under the requirements
of Stafl’ Accounting
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Bulletin 83. As a result; all shares issued prior to the Company’s

completion of its registration statement have been included as outstanding

since Inception (Note 6). No dilution for any potentizlly dilutive

securities is included in basic EPS. Diluted EPS is computed by dividing

reported eamings available to common shareholders by weighted average
.ares and common equivalent shares ocutstanding.

All prior period EPS amounts have been restated to conform to the
provis:zons of SFAS No. 128.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company’s financial instruments consist primarily of cash, accounts
reccivable, and accounts payable. The carrying amounts of cash, accounts
receivable, and accounts payable approximate their fair values because of
the short-term maturity of such instruments.

-— &
-

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consisted of the following at June 30, 1998 and
1997:



<TABLE>

<CAPTION>
1998 1997
<S> <C> <C>
Computer equipment $154000 § 67,000
Fumiture and fixtures 42,000 28,000
Leasehold improvements 13,000 0
Office equipment 5,000 4,000

214,000 99,000
Less accumulated depreciation (45,000) (7,000)

Property and equipment, nel $169,000 S 92,000

- — _ - - = ]

</TABLE>

4, INCOME TAXES

Significant components of the Company'’s deferred tax assets and ‘
liabilities are as follows at June 30, 1998 and 1997: i

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
1998 1997
<S> <C <C>

Property and equipment S 2,000 § 0
Organizational costs 23,000 0

Net operating losses 35,000 27,000
Valuation allowance  (60,000) (27,000)

Netdeferredtaxassets S 0 § 0O

</TABLE>

.~ Based on uncertainties associated with the future realization of deferred

. Lx assets, the Company established a valuation allowance of $60,000 and
$£27.000 at June 30, 1998 and 1997, respectively. Al June 30, 1998 and
1997, the Company had net operating loss carryforwards of approximately
$90,000 and 570,000, respectively, which will begin expiring in the year




2012 unless previously utilized.
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A reconciliation of the benefit for income taxes at the statutory federal
income tax rate 1o the Company’s tax benefit as reported in the
accompanying statements of operations is stated below:

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
1998 1997

<S> <C> <C>
Tax benefit computed at statutory rate  $(33,000) $(25.000)
Statc income taxes (4,000) (3,000)
Nondeductible expenses 4,000 1,000
Change in valuation allowance 33,000 27,000
Income tax benefit S 0SS O

</TABLE> i

3. TRANSACTIONS WITH AFFILIATES

The Company had significant transactions with IS 14, Inc. ("IS 147), which
was affiliated through common ownership during 1997. 1S 14 provided
funding for certain expenses incurred by the Company, and all amounts have
been repaid as of June 30, 1997. In addition, the Company paid to IS 14,

«n consideration for marketing support, a fee equivalent to a percentage

of r=venues totaling $184,000 for the pericd from Inception to June 30,

1997 which is included in selling and marketing expense in the
accompanying consolidated statements o operations. Amounis due to IS 14
rela’ d 1o this fee and included in commissions payable in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets totaled $9,000 at June 30, 1997.

= ) S

% 6. SHAREHOLDERS'EQUITY

Effective February 17, 1998, the Company declared a 1 for 11 reverse stock
split for all classes of common stock. The Company also effected a plan of




reorganization pursuant to which each outstanding share of Class A common
stock and Class B common stock was converted into one share of common
stock ("Common Stock™). All share, per share, and weighicd average share
information in the financial statements has been restated for this stock

split and reorgamization.

In February 1997, the Company sold 1,227,265 shares of Common Stock 1o the
founders of the Company at 5.006 per share. In May 1997, the Company sold
72,727 shares of Common Stock to an execulive officer for S1.65 per share
and accepted as payment a $120,000 note receivable from an affiliate of

that individual due on the earlier of (i) May 1, 2002 or (ii) the closing

of an underwritten initial public offering with aggregate net proceeds of

at least S5 million. The note is guaranieed by the executive officer,

bears interest at 8.75% per year, compounded annually, and is classified

as a sharcholder note receivable in the shareholders' equity section of

the consolidated balance sheets.

The Company and certain of its sharcholders have entered into a
shareholders’ agreement whereby the shareholders agreed to certain
restrictions on the transfer or other disposition of the share of Common
Stock held by each holder. In the event a shareholder intends to transfer
his or her Commen Stock o a nonpermitted transferee, the Company and the
remaining sh:reholders have a nght of first refusal to purchase the
transferring shareholder's Common Stock at fair market value. In addition,
if the Company 1crminates a sharcholder's employment or engagement as a
sales representative or consultant for cause, the Company shall have the
right 1o repurchrse, at fair market value, an amount of the shareholder’s
Common Stock which starts at 100% and declines 20% per year for each
completed year of service with the Company. If the right of first refusal

or
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the Company’s right to purchase is cxercised, these provisions could have
the #ffect of further concentrating the stock ownership and voting power
of the Company.

Additionally, in August 1997, the Compan; completed a private placement

offering for shares of Common Stock at a price of S1.65 per share.

Potential investors were required to complete subscription agreemenis for

the Commeon Stock and submit cash at the date of subseription. The Corapany
b réserved the nght 1o reject a subscription and refund amounts to a

subscriber at any time prior to the accepiance of the subscripiiv... Al

June 30, 1997, the Company had received paid subscriptions for 218,181

shares of Common Stock. However, since these subscriptions had not yet




been accepied by the Company and no shares had been issued as of June 30,
1997, amounts received from subscribers are included in stock subscription
deposits in the accompanying balance sheet at June 30, 1997. Subsequent to
June 30, 1997, the Company accepted these subscriptions and additional
subscriptions for 53,014 shares of the Common Stock.

On November 26, 1997, the Company entered into a promissory note (the
"Note"™) agreement with various lenders for an ageregate principal amount
up to $200,000, which was secured primarily by the assets of the Company.
The Note accrued interest at 10%, payable monthly beginning on January 1,
1998, and the principal was duc on demand. On March 23, 1998, the Nole was
exchanged for 36,359 shares of the Company’s Series A nonvoling
convertible preferred stock ("Series A Preferred Stock™ or "Series A™) and
warrants (the “Warrants”) to purchase 16,359 shares of the Company's
Common Stock. The Warrants are exercisable 14 months after the issuance
date and provide the right to purchase Common Stock at $5.50 per share.
The Warrants expire seven years after the date of issuance.

In February 1998, the Company amended and restated its articles of
incorporation such that the Company is authorized to issue 20,000,000 and
10,000,000 shares of no par value Commaon Stock and nonveting preferred
stock (the "Preferred Stock™), respectively. 100,000 shares of the
Company's Preferred Stock have been designated as Series A. The Series A
Preferred Stock has a liquidation preference of $5.50 per share (as

adjusted for any combinations, consolidations, stock distnbutions, or

stock dividends with respect to such shares) plus all declared or
accumulated but unpaid dividends. The Series A sharcholders have the nght
to convert each share into shares of Common Stock, pursuant to the
articles of incorporation, at any time beginning 14 months after the date
~fissuance. As of June 30, 1998, all outstanding shares of the Preferred
Stock were Series A.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
OPERATING LEASES
The Company leases certain office equipment and office space under

operating lcases. Total rental expenses for the year ended June 30, 1998
and the period from Inception to June 30, 1997 were approximately S84,000

and 545,000, respectively. 4
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Minimum lcase paymenis under noncancelable leases for the years subsequent




to June 30, 1998 are as follows:

<TABLE>

<CAPTION>
<S> <C>
1999 $123,000
2000 101,000
2001 111,000
2002 0
2003 and thereafter 0

$335,000
</TABLE>
LITIGATION

The Company is subject to various claims and legal actic is which anise in
the ordinary course of business. In the opinion of managument, the
ultimate resolution of such matters will not have a material adverse

effect on the Company’s financial position, liquidity, or results of
operations.

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENTS

The Company has entered into employment agreements with certain executive
officers (the "Employment Agreements”). Generally, the Employment
Agreements provide for a minimum weekly salary. In addition, the employee
may participate in a bonus program and shall be eligible to receive

quarterly or annual payments of a performance bonus based on the
achievement of targeted levels of performance and such other criteria as

the board of directors shall establish from time to time. The chiel

executive officer’s Employment Agreement provided for an additional bonus
payment on July 1, 1998, All unpaid bonuses are included in accrued

compensation in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Each of the Employment Agreements i.as a term of one year, and the term
renews daily until either party fixes the remaining term at one year by
giving written notice. The Company can terminate each employee upon death
or disability (asdefined in the Employee Agreements) or with or without
cduse upon delivery of a notice of termination. If the employee is
ierminated because of death, disability, or cause, the employee will

receive any accrued compensation through the termination date and any
accrued performance bonus, unless the employee is terminated for cause. If




the employee is terminated without cause, the Company shall pay the
employee severance payments equal to his/er minimum base salary for each
week during the six-month period following the termination date. If the
employee is a director or officer of the Company or any of its affiliates,

the employee shall tender his/her resignation to such positions effective

as of the termination date.

Under the Employment Agreements, each employee agrees to maintain the
confidentiality of the Company's trade secrets and confidential business
information. The employee also agrees for a period of one year following
the termination date if he/she is terminated or resigns for any reason not

to compete with or solicit employees or customers of the Company or any of
its affiliates within a 30-mile radius of the Company’s corporate oifices,
provided that if the employee is terminated withoul cause, the noncompete
period shall be six months.

RELATIONSHIP WITH IAS

Because [As are classified as independent contractors and not as employees
of the Company, the Company is unable to provide them with the same level
of direction and oversight as company employees. While the Company has
policies and rules in place governing the business conduct of
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IAs and intends to review peniodically the sales tactics of the IAs, it

may be difficult to enforce such policies and rules. Violation of these
policies and rules might reflect negatively on the Company and may lead to
complaints 1o or by various federal and stale regulatory authonties.
Violation of the Company’s policies and rules could subject the Company
and its long-distance provider to complaints regarding the unauthonzed
switching of subscribers' long-distance carriers (also known in the

industry as "slamming"). Such complaints could have a material adverse
effect on the Company’s business, financial condition, and results of
operations.

REGULATION OF NETWORK MARKETING; EFFECT OF STATE LAWS

The Company's nelwork marketing syste.a is subject to or affected by
exte sive government regulation, including, without limitation, federal
and state regulations govemning the offer and sale of business franchises,
business opportunitiss, and securities. Various governmental agencies
monitor direct selling activities, and the Company could be required to




information.
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= = DEFINITIONS '

As used herein, the following terms have the following meanings:

"Board” shall mean the Board of Directors of the Company.




"Change in Control” shall mean the occurrence of either of the following
cvenls:

(i) A change in the composition of the Board as a result of which fewer
than one-half of the incumbent direclors are directors who either:

(A) Had been directors of the Company 24 months prior to such change;
or

(B) Were clected, or numinated for election, to the Board with the
affirmative votes of at least a majority of the directors who had
been directors of the Company 24 months prior to such change and
who were still in office at the time of the election or
nomination; or

(i1) Any "person” (as such term is used in sections 13(d) and 14(d) of the
Exchange Act), other than any person who is a shareholder of the
Company on or before the Effective Date, by the acquisition or
aggregation of securities is or becomes the beneficial owner, direcily
or indirectly, of secunties of the Company representing 50 percent or
more ¢f the combined voling power of the Company’s then outstanding
sccunties ordinarily (and apart from rights accruing under special
circumstances) having the right 1o vote at elections of dire ~tors (the
"Base Capital Stock™), except that any change in the relat. ve
beneficial ownership of the Company’s securities by any person
resulting solely from a reduction in the aggregate number of
outstanding shares of Base Capital Stock, and any decrease thereafter
in such person’s ownership of securitics, shall be disregarded until
such person increases in any manner, directly or indirectly, such
person's beneficial ownership of any securnities of the Company.

"Code” shall mean the United States Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended and including effeclive date and transition rules (whether or not
codified). Any reference herein to a specific section of the Code shall be
deemed to include a reference 1o any comresponding provision of future law.

“Commission” shall mean the Securities and Exchange Commission.
“Committee™ shall mean a committee of at least two Directors appointed from

time to time by the Board, having the dutics and authority set forth herein in
addition 10 any other
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authorily granted by the Board. In selecting the Committee, the Board shall

consider (i) the benefits under Section 162(m) of the Code of having a Committee
composed of "outside directors™ (as that term is defined in the Code) for

certain grants of Options to highly compensated executives, and (ii) the

benefits under Rule 16b-3 under the Exchange Act of having a Committee composed
of either the entire Board or a Committee of at least two Dircctors who are
Non-Employee Directors for Options granted (o or held by any Section ' 6 Insider.
At any time that the Board shall not have appointed a commitiee as descnbed

above, any reference herein to the Committee shall mean the Board.

"Company” shall mean Maxxis Group, Inc., a Georgia corporation.

“Disabled Optionee” shall mean an Oplionee who suffers 4 Permanent and
Total Disability.

"Director” shall mean a member of the Board and any person who is an
advisory or honorary director of the Company if such person is considered a
director for the purposes of Section 16, as determined by reference 1o such
Section 16.

*Effective Date” shall mean September 16, 1998.

“Exchange Act” shall mean the Secunities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
Any reference herein to a specific section of the Exchange Act shall be deemed
0 include a reference 1o any commesponding provision of future law.

*Exercise Price™ shall mean the price at which an Optionee may purchase a
share of Stock under a Stock Option Agreement.

"Fair Market Value” on any date shall mean: (i) the closing sales price of
the Stock, regular way, on such date on the national securities exchange having
the greatest volume of trading in the Stock during the 30-day period preceding
the day the value is to be determined or, if such exchange was not open for
tradisug on such date, the next preceding date on which it was open; (ii) if the
Stock is not traded on any national securities exchange, the average of the
closing hig" bid and low asked prices of the Stork on the over-the-counter
maricet on the day such value is to be determined, or in the absence of closing
bids on suc | day, the closing bids on the next preceding day on which there
were bids; or (iii) if the Stock also is not traded on the over-the-counter
market, the fair market value as determined in good faith by the Board or the
Committee based on such relevant facts as may be available to the Board or the
Committee, which may include opinions of independent experts, the price at
which recent sales have been made, the book value of the Stock, and the
Company's current and projected future camnings.

"Incentive Stock Option” shall mean an oplion to purchase any stock of the




Company, which complies with and is subject to the terms, limitations and
conditions of Section 422 of the Code and any regulations promulgated with

respect thereto.

*"Non-Employee Director™ shall have the meaning set forth in Rule 16b-3
und.. the Exchange Act, as the same may be in effect from time to time, or in
any successor rule thereto,
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and shall be determined for 21l purposcs under the Plan according to
interpretative or “no-action” positions with respect thereto issued by the
Commission.

*Officer” shall mean a person who constitutes an officer of the Company
for the purposes of Section 16.

“Option” shall mean an option, whether or not an Incentive Htock Option,
to purchase Stock granted pursuant o the provisions of Article V1 hereof.

“Optionee™ shall mean a person 1o whom an Option has been granted
hercunder.

"Permanent and Total Disability” shall have the same meaning as given to
that term by Code “ection 22(e)(3) and any regulations or rulings promulgated
thereunder.

"Flan" shall mran the Maxxis Group, Inc. 1998 Stock Option Plan, the terms
of which are set forth herein.

"Purchasable™ shall refer to Stock which may be purchased by an Optionee
under the terms of this Plan on or afier a certain date specified in the
applicable Stock Option Agreement.

“Qualified Domestic Relations Order” shall have the mesning set forth in
=  the Code or in the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, or the
“~  mules'and regulations promulgated under the Code or such Act.

"Section 16" shall mean Section 16 of the Exchange Act and the rules,
regulations, judicial decisions, and interpretative or "no-action” positions




with respect U :reto of the Commussion, as the same may be in effect or set
forth from time to time.

*"Section 16 Insider” shall mean any person who is subject to the
provisions of Section 16.

*Stock” shall mean the Common Stock, no par value, of the Company or, in
the cvent that the outstanding shares of Stock are hereafter changed into or
exchanged for shares of a different stock or securities of the Company or some
other entity, such other stock or securities.

*Stock Opuon Agreement” shall mean an agreement between the Company and
am Optionee vnder which the Optionee may purchase Stock hereunder, 2 sample
form of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A (which form may be varied by the
Committee in granting an Option).

ARTICLEINl
THE PLAN

2.1 Name. This Plan shall be known as the "Maxxis Group, Inc. 1998 Stock
Option Plan.”

el
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2.2 Purposc. The purpose of the Plan is to advance the interests of the
Company, its s:bsidiaries and its shareholders by affording certain employees
and Directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, as well as key consultants
and advisors 1o the Company or any subsidiary, an opportunity 1o acquire or
increase their proprictary interests in the Company. The objective of the
issuance of the Options is to promote the growth and profitability of the
Compaay and its subsidiaries by providing Optionees with an additional
incentive lo achieve the Company’s objectives and to continue their association
with or service 1o the Company.

4.3 Sharcholder Approval. The Plan shall become effective on September 16,
1998; provided, however, that if the sharcholders of the Company have not ,
approved (s Plan dn or prior to the first anniversary of such effective date,
then Al options granted under the Plan shall be non-Incentive Stock Options.
If, at the t . 0e of any amendment to the Plan, sharcholder approval is required
by the Code for Incentive Stock Options and such sharcholder approval has not
be+n obtained (or is nol obtained within 12 months thereof), any Incentive




Stock Options issued under the Plan shall automatically become oplions which do
not qualify as Incentive Stock Options.

ARTICLE I
PARTICIPANTS

T - class of persons eligible o participate in the Plan shall consist of
all persons whose participation in the Plan the Committee determines to be in
the best interests of the Company which sha!! include, but not be limited 1o,
all Directors and employees, including but not limited to executive personnel,
of the Company or any subsic ary, as well as key consultants and advisors to
the Company or any subsidiary.

ARTICLEIV
ADMINISTRATION

4.1 Duties and Powers of the Committee. The Plan shall be administered by
the Committee. The Committee shall select one of its members as its chairman
and shall hold its meetings at such times and places as it may determine. The
Committee shall keep minutes of its meetings and shall make such rules and
regulations for the conduct of its business as it may deem necessary. The
Committee shall have the power to act by unanimous written consent in licu of a
mecting and to meet by telephone. In administering the Plan, the ¢ ymmittee’s
actions and determinations shall be binding on all interested parties. The
Committee shall have the power to grant Options in accordance with the
provisions of the Plan. Subject to the provisions of the Plan, the Committee
shall have the discretion and authority to determuine those individuals to whom
Options will be granted, the number of shares of Stock subject to each Option,
such other matters as are specified herein, and any other terms and conditions
of a Stock Option Agreement. To the exient not inconsistent with the provisions
of the Plan, the Commit = may give an Optionee an election to surrender an
Option in exchange for the grant of a new Option and shall have the
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authority to amend or modify an outstanding Stock Option Agreement, or tg waive
any provisior, theredf, provided that the Optionee consents to such action.

4.2 Interpretation; Rules. Subject to the express provisions of the Plan,
the Committee also shall have complete authority to interpret the Plan, to
prescribe, amend, and rescind rules and regulations relating to it, to




determine the details and provisions of each Stock Option Agreement, and to
make all other determinations necessary or advisable for the administration of
the Plan, including, without limitation, the amending or altering of the Plan
and any Options granted hereunder as may be required to comply with or to
conform to any federal, state, or local laws or regulations.

4.3 No Liability. Neither any member of the Board nor any men ber of the
Committee shall be liable to any persen for any act or determination made in
good faith with respect to the Plan or any Option granted hereunder.

4.4 Majonity Rule. A majonty of the members of the Committee shall
constitute a quorum, and any action taken by a majority at a meeting at which a
quorum is present, or any action taken without a meeting cvidenced by a writing
cxecuted by all the members of the Committee, shall constitute the action of
the Commitice.

4.5 Company Assistance. The Company shall supply complete and umely
information to the Committee on all matters relating to eligible persons, their
employment, death, retirement, disability, or other termination of employment,
and such other perntinent facts as the Committce may require. The Company shall
fumish the Commintee with such clerical and other assistance as is necessary
in the performance of its duties.

ARTICLEV
SHARES OF STOCK SUBIJECT TO PLAN

5.1 Limitations. Subject to 2djusiment pursuant to the provisions of
Section 5.2 hereof, the maximum number of shares of Stock that may be 1ssued
hereunder shall be 300,000, and not more than 300,000 shares of Stock may be
made subject to Options to any individual, in the aggregate, in any one fiscal
year of the Company, such limitation to be applied in a manner consistent with
the requirements of, and only 1o the extent required for compliance with, the
cxclusion from the limitation on deductibility of compensation under Section
162(ua) of the Code. Any or all shares of Stock subject to the Plan may be
issued in any combination of Incentive Stock Options or non-Incentive Stock
Options, 2::4 the amount of Stock subject to the Plan may be increased from time
to time in 2ccordance with Article V111, provided that the total number of
shares of S ock issuable pursuant 1o Incentive Stock Options may not be
increased to more than 300,000 without sharcholder approval. Shares subject to
an Nption may be either authorized and unissued shares or shares issued and
later acquired by the Company. The shares covered by any unexercised portion of
an Option that has terminated for any reason (except as set forth in the
following paragraph), or any forfeited portion of an Option, and shares tendered
for cashless exercise and withheld for taxes may again be optioned under the
Plan, and such shares shall not




<PAGE> 9

be considered as having been optioned in computing the number of shares of Stock
remaining available for optic.: hereunder.

If Options are issued in respect of options to acquire stock of any entity
acquired, by merger or otherwise, by the Company (or any subsidiary of the
Company), o the extent that such issuance shall not be inconsistent with the
terms, limitations and conditions of Code Section 422 or Rule 16b-3 under the
Exchange Act, the aggregate number of shares of Stock for which Options may be
granted hereunder shall automatically be increased by the number of shares
subject to the Options o issued; provided, howewver, that the aggregate number
of shares of Stock for which Options may be granted hereunder shall
automaticaliy be decreased by the number of shares covered by any unexercised
portion of zn Option so issued that has terminated for any reason, and the
shares subject to any such unexercised portion may not be optioned to any other

person.
5.2 Antidilution

{a) If(i) the outstanding shares of Stock are changed into or exchanged
for a different number or kind of shares or other secunties of the Company by
reason of merger, consohidation, reorganization, recapitalizatior,
reclassification, combination or exchange of shares, or stock split or stock
dividend, (i1) any sp..-off, spin-out or other distribution of assets
materially affects the price of the Company’s stock, or (iii) there is any
assumption and conversion o the Plan by the Company of an acquired company's
outstanding option grants, then:

(A) the Committee, in its sole and absolute discretion, may adjust
proportionately the aggregate number and kind of shares of Stock
for which Options may be gran'sd hereunder; and

(8) the Committee, in its sole and absolute discretion, may adjust
proportionately the rights of Optionees (concerning the number of
shares subject to Options and the Exercise Price) under
outstanding Options.

(b) In the event df an anticipated Change in Control, or if the Company
shall be a party to any reorganization, invelving merger, consolidation, or
acquisition of the stock or substantially all the assets of the Company, the
Board or the Committee, in its discretion, may:




(1) notwithstanding other provisions hereof, declare that all Options
granted under the Plan shall become exercisable immediately
notwithstanding the provisions of the respective Stock Option
Agreements regarding exercisabilitv and that all such Options
shall terminate 90 days after the Commitlee gives writlen notice
of the immediate right to exercise all such Options and of the
decision to terminate all Options not exercised within such
90-day period; and/or

(ii) notify all Optionees that all Options granted under the Plan
shall be assumed by the successor corporation or substiluted on
an equitable basis with options issu=d by such successor

corporation.
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(c) If the Company is to be liquidated or dissolved in connection with a
reorganization described in Section 5.2(b), the provisions of such Section shall
apply. In all other instances, the adoption of a plan of dissolution or
liquidation of the Company shall, notwithstanding other provisions hereof, cause
every Option oulstanding under the Plan to terminate o the extent not exercised
prior to the adoption of the plan of dissolution or liquidation by the
sharcholders, provided that, notwithstanding other provisions hereof| the
Committee may declare all Options granted under the Plan to be exercisable at
any time on or before the fifth business day following such adoption
not Uistanding the provisions of the respective Stock Option Agreements
regarding exercisability.

(d) The adjustments descnbed in paragraphs (a) through (<) of this
Section 5.7 and the manner of their application, shall be determined solely by
the Board or the Committee, and any such adjustment may provide for the
elimination of fractional share interests; provided, however, that any
adjustment made by the Board or the Committee shall be made in a manner that
will not cause an Incentive Stock Option to be other than an Incentive Stack
Option under applicable statulory and regulatory provisions. The adjustments
required under this Article V shall apply 1o any successors of the Company and
shall be made regardless of the number or type of successive events requiring
such adjustments.

ARTICLE VI
OPTIONS

6.1 Types of Options Granted. The Committee may, under this Plan, grant




cither Incentive Stock Options or Options v hich co not qualify as Incentive
Stock Options. Within the limitations provided in this Plan, both types of
Options may be granted to the same person at the same time, or at different
times, under diffcrent icrms and conditions, as long as the terms and conditions
of each Option are consistent with the provisions of the Plan. Without
limitation of the foregoing, Options may be granted or may vest and become
2. .icisable subject to conditions based on the financial performance of the
Company or any other factor the Committee deems relevant.

6.2 Option Grant and Azreement. Each Oplion granted hereunder shall be
evidenced by minutes of a meeting or the written consent of the Committee and by
a written Stock Option Agreement executed by the Company and the Optionee. The
terms of the Option, including the Option's duration, time or times of exercise,
exercise price and whether the Option is intended to be an Incentive Stock
Option, shall be stated in the Stock Option Agreement. No Incentive Stock Option
may be granted more than ten years after the carlier to occur of the Effective
Date or the date the Plan is approved by the Company’s shareholders. Separaie
Stock Option Agreements may be used for Options intended to be Incentive Stock
Opuons and those not so intended, but any failure to use such separate
agreernents shall not invalidate, or otherwise adversely affect the Opticnee’s
interest in, the Options evidenced thereby

The grant of an Option pursuant to this Plan shall not affect in any way
the nght or power of th= Company to make adjustments, reclassificaticns,
reorgamizations or changes of its capital or business structure, or 1o merge or
consolidate, or o dissolve, liquidate, sell or transfer all of any part of its
business or assets.

63 Optionee Limitation. The Committee shall not grant an Incentive Stock
Option to any person who, at the time the Incentive Stock Option is granted:

(a) 1s not an employee of the Company or any of its subsidiaries; or

(b) owns oris considered 10 own stock possessing at least 10% of the
total cc: " ined voting power of all classes of stock of the Company or any of its
% paredl or subsidiary corporations; provided, however, that this limitation shall

not apply if at the time an Incentive Stock Option is granted the Exercise Price
is at least 110% of the Fair Market Value of the Stock subject to such Option
and such Option by its terms would not be exercisable after five years from the



date on which the Option is granted.

6.4 $100,000 Limitation. Except as provided below, the Commilttee shall not
grant an Incentive Stock Option to, or medify the exercise provisions of
outstanding Incentive Stock Options held by, any person who, at the time the
Incentive Stock Option is granted (or modified), would thereby receive or hold
any Incentive Stock Options of the Company and any parent or subsidiary of the
Company, such that the aggregate Fair Market Value (determined as of the
respective dates of grant or medification of each option) of the stock with
respect 1o which such Incentive Stock Options are exercisable for the first time
during any calendar year is in excess of $100,000 (or such other limit as may be
prescribed by the Code from time 1o time); provided that the foregoing
restriction on mod:fication of outstanding Incentive Stock Options shall not
preclude the Committee from modifying an outstanding Incentive Stock Option if,
as a result of such modification and with the consent of the Optionee, such
Option no longer constitutes an Incentive Stock Uption; and provided that, if
the $100,000 limitation (or such other limitation prescribed by the Code)
described in this Section 6.4 is exceeded, the Incentive Stock Option, the
granting or medificaiion of which resulted in the exceeding of such limit, shall
be treated as an Incentive Steck Option up to the limitation and the excess
shall be treated as an Option not qualifying as an Incentive Stock Option.

6.5 Exercise Price. The Exercise Price of the Stock subject to each Optien
shall be determined by the Commitice. Subject to the provisions of Section
6.3(b) hereof, the Exercise Price of an Incentive Stock Option shall not be less
than the Fair Market Value of the Stock as of the date the Option is granted (or
tn the case of an Incentive Stock Option that is subsequently modified, on the
date of such modification).

6.6 Exercise Period. The period for the exercise of each Option granted
herev~ "2 shall be detennined by the Committee, but the Stock Option Agreement
with respect to each Option intended to be an Incentive Stock Option shall
provide tha: such Option shall not be exercisable after the expiration of 1en
years from 1):e date of grant (or modification) of e Option. In addition, no
Incentive Stck Option granted under the Plan shall be exercisable prior to
shareholder approval of the Plan.
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6.7 Oplion Exercise.

(2) Unless otherwite provided in the Stock Option Agreement or Section 6.6
hereof, an Option may be exercised at any time or from time to time duning the




term of the Option as 1o any or all shares whic!i have become Purchasable under
the provisions of the Option, but not at any time as to less than 100 shares
unless the remaining shares that have become so Purchasable are less than 100
shares. The Committee shall have the authority to prescribe in any Stock Option
Agreement that the Option may be exercised only in accordance with a vesting
sche1le during the 1erm of the Option.

(0) An Option shall be exercised by (i) delivery to the Company at its
principal office a written notice of exercise with respect 1o a specified number
of shares of Stock and (i) pa:'ment to the Company at that office of the full
amount of the Exercise Price for such number of shares in accordance with
Section 6.7(c). 1f requested by an Optionee, an Oplion may be exercised with the
involvement of a stockbroker in accordance with the federal margin rules set
forth in Regulation T {in which case the cerlificates representing the
underlying shares will be delivered by the Company directly to the stockbroker).

(c) The Exercise Price is to be paid in full 3n cash upon the exercise of
the Option and the Company shall not be required 1o deliver certificates for the
shares purchased until such payment has been made; provided, however, that in
lieu of cash, all or any pontion of the Exercise Price may be paid (i) by
tendering to the Company shares of Stock duly endorsed for transfer and o\ new by
the Optionee or (ii) by authorization to the Company to withhold shares of Stock
othenwise issuable upon exercise of the Option, in each case 10 be ~redited
against the Exercise Price at the Fair Market Value of such shares an the date
of exercise (however, no fractional shares may be so transferred, and the
Company shall not be obligated to make any cash payments in considerztion of 2ny
excess of the aggregate Fair Market Value of shares transferred over the
aggregate Exercise Price); provided further, that the Board may provide in a
Stock Option Agreement (or may otherwise determine in its sole discretion at the
lime of exercise) that, in lieu of cash or shares, all or a portion of the
Exercise Price may be  aid by the Optionee’s execution of a recourse note equal
to the Exercise Price or relevant portion thereof, subject to compliance with
applicable state and federal laws, rules and regulations.

(d) In addition 10 and at the time of payment of the Exercise Price, the
Optionee shall pay to the Company in cash the full amount of any federal, state,
and local income, employment, or other withholding taxes applicable to the
taxable income of such Optiones resulting om such exercise. However, in the
discretion of the Committee any Stock Option Agreement may provide that all or
any portion. of such tax obligations, together with additional taxes not
exceeding the actual additional taxes to be owed by the Optionee as a result of
such exercise, may, upon the irrevocable clection of the Optionee, be paid (i)
by tehdering to the Company whole shares of Stock duly endorsed for transfer and
owned by the Optionee or (i1) by authorization to the Company to withhold shares
of Stock otherwise issuable upon exercise of the Option, in either case in that
number of shares having a Fair Market Value on the date of exercise equal 1o the




amount of such taxes thereby being paid, and subject to such restrictions as to
the approval and timing of any such election as the Commitiee may from time to
time determine to be necessary or
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appropriate to satisfy the condilions of the exemption set forth in Rule 16b-3
under the Exchange Act, if such rule is applicable.

(¢) The holder of an Option shall not have any of the rights of a
shareholder with cespect to the shares of Stock subject to the Option until such
shares have been issued and transferred to the Optionee upon the exercise of the

Option.

6.8 Nontracsferability of Option. No Option shall be transferable by an
Optionee other than by will or the laws of descent and distribution or, in the
case of non-Incentive Stock Options, pursuant to a Qualified Domestic Relations
Order, and no Option shali be transferable by an Optionee who is a Section 16
Insider prior to sharcholder approval of the Plan. Duning the lifetime of an
Optionee, Options shall be exercisable only by such Optionee (or by such
Optionee's guardian or legal representative, should one be appointed),

6.9 Termination of Employment or Service. The Commiltee shall have the
power to specify, with respect 1o the Options granled to a particular Optionee,
the effect upon such Optionee’s right to excrcise an Option on termination of
such Optionee's employment or service under various circumstances, which effec:
may include immediate or deferred termination of such Optionee's rights under
an Option, or acceleration of the date at which an Option may be exercised in
full; . Lvided, however, that in no event may an Incentive Stock Option be
exercised afier the expiration of ten years from the date of gramt thereof.

6.10 Employment Rights. Nothing in the Pian or in any Stock Option
Agreement “hall confer on any person any right to continue in the employ of the
Company cr any of its subsidiaries, or shall interfere in any way with the
right of the Company or any of its subsidiaries to terminate such person's
employment at any iime.

6.11 Certain Successor Options. To the extent not inconsistent with the,
terms, limitations and conditions of Code Section 422 and any regulations
proofulgated with respect thereto, an Option issued 1n respect of an option held
by an employee to acquire stock of any entity acquired, by merger or otherwise,
by the Company (or any subsidiary of the Company) may contain terms that differ
from those stated in this Article VI, but solely to the extent necessary to




preserve for any such employee the rights and benefits contaned in such
predecessor option, or 10 satisfy the requirements of Code Scction 424(a).

6.12 Fffect of Chanee in Control. The Committee may determine, at the
time of granting an Option or thereafter, that such Option shall become
exercisable on an accelerated basis in the event that a Change in Control
occurs with respect to the Company (and the Committee shall have the discretion
tc .aodify the definition of a Change in Control in a particular Stock Option
Agreement). If the Commitice finds that there is a reasonable possibility
that, within the succeeding six months, a Change in Control will occur with
respect to the Company, then the Commitiee may determune that all outstanding
Options shall be exercisab.c on an accelerated basis.

10
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ARTICLE VIl
STOCK CERTIFICATES

The Company shall not be required to 1ssue or deliver any centificate for
shares of Stock purchased upon the exercise of any Option granted hereunder or
any portion thereof prior to fulfillment of all of the following cc «ditions:

(a) The admission of such shares to listing on all stock exchanges on
which the Swock is then licted;

(b) The completion of any regisiration or other qualification of such
shares which the Cemmittee shall deem necessary or advisable under any federal
or state law or under the rulings or regulations of the Commission or any other
govemmental regul: ry body,

(c) The obiaining of any approval or other clearance from any federal or
state governmental agency or body which the Committee shall determine to be
necessary or advisable; and

(d) The lapse of such reasonable period of time following the excreise of
the Option as the Board from time to tim« may eztablish for reasons of
administrative convenience.

Stock centificates issued and delivered to Oplionees shall bear such
restnictive legends as the Company shall deem necessary or advisable pursuant
to applicable federal and state securities laws.




ARTICLE VIl
TERMINATION AND AMENDMENT

8.1 Termination and Amendment. The Board may at any time terminate the
Plan, and may at any time and from time to time and in any respect amend the
Plan; provided, however, that the Board (unless ils actions are approved or
ratified by the shareholders of the Company within twelve months of the date
that the Board amends the Plan) may not amend the Plan to:

(a) Increase the total number of shares of Stock issuable pursuant to
Incentive Stock Options, cxcept as contemplated in Sections 5.1 and 5.2;

(b) Change the class of employees eligible to receive Incentive Stock
Options that may participate in the Plan; or

(c) Otherw:se materially increase the benefits accruing to recipients of
Incentive Stock Options under the Plan.
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8.2 Effect on Optionee's Rights. No termination, amendment, or
medification of the Plan shall affect adversely an Optionee's rights under a
Stock Option Agreement without the consent of the Cptionee or his legal
representative.

ARTICLE IX
RELATIONSHIP TO OTHER COMPENSATION PLANS

The adoption of the Plan shall not affect any other stock option,
i.entive, or other compensation plans in effect for the Company or any of its
subsidiaries; nor shall the adoption of the Plan preclude the Company or any of
its sub-idiaries from establishing any other form of incentive or ather
compensation plan for employees or Direct. :s of the Company or any of its
subsidi -ries.

_ ARTICLEX
“MISCELLANEOUS

10.1 Plan Binding 01.1 Successors. The Plan shall be binding upon the
successors and assigns of the Company.




10.2 Singular, Plural; Gender. Whenever used herein, nouns in the
singular shall include the plural, and the masculine pronoun shall include the
femir...ic gender.

10.3 Headings, etc., No Part of Plan. Head'ings of Articles and Sections
" hereof are inserted for convenience and reference; they do not constitute part
of the Plan.

% 10.4 Interpretation. With respect to Section 16 Insiders, transactions
under this Plan are intended to comply with all applicable conditions of Rule
16b-3 or its successors under the Exchange Act. To the extent any provision of
the Plan or action by the Plan administrators fails to so comply, it shail be
deemed void to the extent permitted by law and deemed advisable by the Plan
administrators.

12
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IN WITNESS WHEKEOF, the Company has caused this Plan to be executed as of
the date set forth above.

MAXXIS GROUP, INC.

By: /s/ Thomas O. Cordy

e e S ST

Name: Thomas O. Cordy
Title: Chief Executive Officer

Is/ James W. Brown




Name: James W. Brown

Title: Secretary

[ CORPORATE SEAL ]

13
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EXHIBIT A TO
MAXXIS GROUP, INC.
1998 STOCK OPTION PLAN

MAXXIS GROUP, INC.
FORM OF STOCK OPTION AGREEMENT

THIS STOCK op TION AGREEMENT (this "Agreement”), entered into as of this

—_day of . » by and between Maxxis Group, Inc., 2 Georgia
Corporation (the "Company"), and (the "Optionee").

WHEF EAS, eff; cctive as of September 16, 1998, the Board of Directors of the
Company adopted a stock option plan known as the "Maxxis Group, Inc. 1998 Stock
Option Plan® (the "Plan"),

C..mpmy's Sha.mhaldcrs: and

WHEREAS, on October 1, 1998, the shareholders adopted the Plan: and

WHER,EAS, the Commit{ee has
the number of shares o

granted the Optionee » stock option to purchage
fthe Company’s common stock as set forth below, and

WHEREAS, the( Company and the

Optionee desire to ent
agreement with respect 1o such option

&I into a writfen

in accordance with the Plan.




the partics hereto agree as follows.

1. Incorporation of Plan. This oplion is granted pursuant to the
provisions of the Plan, and (¢ terms and definitions of the Plan are
incorporated herein by reference and made a part hereof. A copy of the Plan
has been delivered to, and receipt is hereby acknowledged by, the Opticnce.
Capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed
to them in the Plan.

2. Grant of Option. Subject to the terms, restrictions, limitations and
conditions stated herein, the Company hereby evidences its grant to the
Optionee, nol in lieu of salary or other compensation, of the nght and option
(the "Option™) 1 purchase all or any part of the number of shares of the
Company's Common Stock, no par value (the "Stock™), set forth on Schedule 4
attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. The Option shall be
exercisable in the amounts and at the time specified on Schedule A. The Option
shall expire and shall not be exercisable on the date specified on schedule A or
on such carlier date as
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determined pursuant to Section 8, 9, or 10 hereof. Schedule A states whether the
Option is intended to o2 an Incentive Stock Option.

3. Purchase Price. The price per share to be paid by the Optionee for the
shares subject to this Option (the “Exercise Price”) shall be as specified on
Schedule A, which price shall be an amount not less than the Fair Market Value
of a share of Stock as of the Date of Grant (as defined in Section 11 below) if
the Option 1s an Incentive Stock Option.

4. Exercise Terms. The Optionee must exercise the Option for at least the
lesser of 100 shares or the number of shares of Purchasable Stock as to which
the C, l.on remains unexercised. In the event this Optic.. i< not exercised with
respect to all or any part of the shares subject to ™is Option prior to its
expiration, the shares with respect to which this Option was not exercised
shall no longer be subject to this Option.

5. Option Non-Transferable. No Option shall be transferable by an
Optionee other than by will or the laws of descent and distribution or, in the
case of non-Incentive Stock Options, pursuant to a Qualified Domestic Refations
Order, and no Option shall be transferable by an Optionee who is a Section 16
Insider prior to sharcholder approval of the Plan. During the lifetime of an
Optionee, Options shall be exercisable only by such Optionee (or by such
Optionee's guardian or legal representative, should one be appointed).




6. Notice of Exercise of Option. This Option may be exercised by the
Optionee, or by the Optionee’s administrators, executors or personal
representalives, by a written notice (in substantially the form of the Notice
of Exercise attached hereto as Schedule B) signed by the Optionee, or by such
administrators, executors or personal representatives, and delivered or mailed
to the Company as specified in Section 14 hereof to the attention of the
President or such other officer as the Company may designate. Any such notice
shall (2) specify the number of shares of Stock which the Optienee or the
Optionee’s adnunistrators, executors or personal representatives, as the case
may be, then elects 1o purchase hereunder, (b) contain such information as may
be reasonably required pursuant to Section 12 hereof, and (¢) be accompanied by
(1) a certified or cashier's check payable to the Company in payment of the
total Exercise Price applicable to such shares as provided herein, or (ii)
shares of Stock owned by the Optionee and duly endorsed or accompanied by stock
transfer powers or authenzation to the Company 1o withhold shares of Stock
otherwise issuable upon exercise of the Option, in each case having a Fair
Market Value cqual to the tolal Exercise Price applicable to such shares
purchased hereunder, or (1ii) a certified or cashier’s check accompanied by the
number of shares of Stock whose Fair Market Value when added to the amount of
the check equals the 1otal Exercise Price applicable to such shares purchased
hereunder. Upon receipt of any such nolice and accompanying payment, and
subject to the tenms hercof, the Company agrees to issue to the Optiones or the
Optionee's administrators, exccutors or personal representatives, as the case
may be, stock certificates for 1he number of shares specified in such notice
registered in the name of the person exercising this Option.

7. Adjustment in Option. The number of shares subject to this Option, the
Exercise Fi-ce and other malters are subject to . ijustment during the term of
this Option in accordance with Section 5.2 of the Plan

2
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8. Termination of l:mployum t. Except as othenvise specified in Schedule A
hereto, in the event ¢ “the termination of the Optionee's employment with the
Company or any of itz subsidiarics, other than a termination that is for
disability or death, the ™ \lionce may exercise this Option at any time within
90 days after such termination 1o the extent of the number of shares which were
Purchasable hercunder at the date of such termination.




9. Disabled Optionee. In the event of termination of employment because
of the Optionee becoming a Disabled Oplionee, the Optionee (or his or her
personal representative) may exercise this Option, within a period ending on
the earlier of (a) the last day of the one year period following the Optionee's
disability or (b) the expiration date of this Option, to the extent of the
number of shares which were Purchasable hereunder at the date of such
termination.

10. Death of Optionee. Except as otherwise set forth in Schedule A, in
the event of the Optionee’s death while (1) employed by the Company or any of
its subsidiaries or (ii) within three months after a termination of such
employment, the appropnate persons descnbed in Section 6 hereof or persons to
whom all or a portion of this Option is transferred in accordance with Section
$ hercof may exercise this Option at any time within a period ending on the
earlier of (a) the last day of the one year pened following the Optionee's
death or (b) the expiration date of this Option. If the Optionee was an
cmployee of the Company at the ime of death, this Option ma be 5o exercised
to the extent of the number of shares that were Purchasable her_under at the
date of death. If the Optionee's employment terminated prior to his or her
death, this Option may be exercised only to the extent of the number of shares
covered by this Option which were Purchasable hereunder at the date of such
termination

11. Date of Grant. This Option was granted by the Board of Directors of
the Company on the 'ate set forth in Schedule A (the "Date of Grant™)

12. Compliance with Regulatory Matters. The Oplionee acknowledges that
the issuance of capital stock of the Company is subject to limitations imposed
by federal and state law and the Optionee hereby agrees that the Company shall
not be obligated to issue any shares of Stock upon exercise of this Option that
would cause the Company to violate law or any rule, regulation, order or
consent decree of any regulatory authority (including without limitation the
Commission) having junsdiction over the affairs of the Company. The Optionee
agrees tha! he or she will provide the Company with such information as is
reasonab'y requested by the Company or its counsel to determine whether the
issua... . of Stock complies with the provisions described by this Section 12.

13. Restriction on Disposition of Shares. The shares purchased pursuant
to the exercise of an Incentive Stock Option shall not be transferred by the
Optionce except pursuant to the Optionee’s will, or the laws of descent and
distnbution, until such date which is the later of two years afier the grant

of such Incentive Stock Option or one year after the transfer of the shares 10
the Optionee pursuant 1o the exercise of such Incentive Stock Option.
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14. Miscellaneous.

(a) This Agreement shall be binding upon the parties hereto and their
representatives, successors and assigns.

(b) This Agreement is executed and delivered in, and shall be governed by
the laws of, the State of Georgia.

(c) Any requests or notices 10 be given hereunder shall be deemed given,
and any elections or exercises to be made or accomplished shall be deemed made
or accomplished, upon actual delivery thereof to the designated recipient, or
three days afler deposit thereof in the United States mail, registered, retumn
receipt requested and postage prepaid, addressed, if to the Optionee, at the
address set forth below and, if to the Company, to the executive offices of the
Company at 1901 Montreal Road, Suite 108, Tucker, Georgia 30084.

(d) This Agreement may not be modified except in writing executed by each
of the partics hereto.

(e) In the event that any one or more of the provisions or portion thereof
comtained in this Agreement shall for any reason be held to be invalid, illegal
or unenforceable in any respect, the same shall not invalidate or otherwise
aff~~' anv other provisions of this Agreement, and this Agreement shall be
comstrued as if the invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision or portion
thereof had never been contained herein.

{f) Su' ect 1o the terms and conditions of the Plan, which is incorporated
herein by reference, this Agreement expresses the entire understanding and
agreement of the parties hereto. This Agreement may be executed in two or more
cuvunterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which shall
constitute one and the same instrument.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Board of Directors of the Company has caused this
Stock Option Agreement to be executed on behalf of the Company and the
Cr pany's seal 1o be affixed hereto and attested by the Secretary or an
Assistant Secretary of the Coinpany, and the Optionee has executed this Stock
Option Agreement under seal, all as of the day and year first above wrilten.

MAXXIS GROUP, INC. OPTIONEE
By:

Name: Name:

Title: Address:
ATTEST

Secrctary/Assistant Secretary

[SEAL)
5
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_ SCHEDULE A
= - 10 #
\ : STOCK OPTION AGREEMENT
BETWEEN

MAJXXIS GROUP, INC.
AND




1. Number of Shares Subject to Option:

2. This Option (Check one) | ]is[ ] is not an Incentive Stock Option.

3. Option Exescise Pnce: $ per share.
4. Daic of Grant:
5. Option Vesting Schedule:
Check one:
( ) Options are exercisable with respect to all
shares on or after the date hereof.
( ) Options are exercisable with respect to the
number of shares indicated below on or afier the date
indicated next to the number of shares:

No. of Shares Vesting Date

. ——— CrmmrEmre——
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6. Option Exercise Period:

Check Onpe:
1) Alloptions expire and are void unless exercised on or
before Lz .

() Options expire and arc void unless exercised on or



before the date indicated next to the number of shares:

No. of Shares  Expiratiou Date

| mmmem——s s smmmnr e

7. Effect of Termination of Employment of Optionee (if different from that set
forth in Sections 8, 9 and 10 of the Stock Option Agreement):

(%]
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SCHEDULE B
TO
ST 'CK OPTION AGREEMENT
BETWEEN
MAXXIS GROUP, INC.
AND

NOTICE OF EXERCISE

1. Notice. The undersigned hereby notifies Maxxis Group, Inc. (the p
= "Compan" ") of this clection to exercise the undersigned’s stock option to g B
purchase . shares (the "Shares®) of the Company’s common stock, no
par vaiue (the "Common Stock™), pursuant to the Stock Option Agreement (the
"Agreement”) between the undersigned and the Company dated

Accompanying this Notice is (1) a certified or a cashier's check in the amount




of § payable to the Company, and/or (2) shares of the
Company’s Common Stock presently owned by the undersigned and duly endorsed or
accompanicd by stock transfer powers or an authonzation to the Company to
withhold  Shares otherwise issuable upon exercise of the Option, in

each case having an aggrezate Fair Market Value (as defined in the Maxxis

Group, Inc. 1998 Stock Option Plan) as of the date hereofof S

such amounts being equal, in the aggregate, to the purchase price per share set
forth in Section 3 of the Agreement multiplied by the number of Share: being
purchased hereby (in each instance subject to appropriate adjustment pursuant

1o Section 5.2 of the Agreement).

2. Covenants and Representations of Optionee. Optionee represents,
warrants, covenants and agrees with the Company as follows:

{a) The Option was received for Optionee’s own account without the
participation of any other person, with the intent of holding the Option and
the Shares issuable pursuant thereto for investment and without the intent of
participatia g, directly or indirectly, in a distnbution of the Shares and not
with a view to, or for resale in connection with, any distnbution of the
Shares or any portion thareof.

(b) Optionee did not acquire the Option based upon any representation,
oral or written, by any person with respect to the future value of, or income
from the Shares subject to this Option, but rather upon an independent
cxamination and judgment as 1o the prospects of the Company.

(c) Optionee has received a copy of the Agreement and has had complete
access 10 and the opporunity 1o review and make copies of all matenal
documents related to the business of the Company; Optionee has examined all of
these documents as he wished, is familiar with the business and affairs of the
Company, and realizes that the receipt of the Shares is a speculative
investment and that any possible profit therefrom is uncertain.
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(d) Optionee has had the epporiunty 12 ask questions of and receive
answers from the C‘bn*pm} and any person acting on its behalf, to obtain all
~  infortation available with respect to the Maxxis Group, Inc. 1998 Stock Option
Plan (the "Plan"), the Company and its affairs and 1o receive all information
and data with respect to the Plan and the Company that he has requested and
which he has deemed relevant in connection with his receipt of the Option and



the Shares subject thereto.

(¢) Optionce is able to bear the cconomic risk of the investment,
including the risk of a complete loss of his invesiment, and Optiones

acknowledges that he must continue to bear the economic risk of the investmen:

in the Shares received upon Option exercise for an indefinite period.

(f) Optionee understands and agrees that the Shares subject to the Option
may be issued and sold to Optionce without registration under any state or
federal law relating to the registration of secunities for sale and in that
event will be issued and sold in reliance on exemptions from registration under
appropriale state and federal L ows.

(g) The Shares issued to Optionee upon exercise of the option will not be
offered for sale, sold or transferred by Optionee other than pursuant to:

(i) an eilective registration under applicable state securities
laws or in a transaction which is otherwise in comphance with those
laws:

(ii) an effective registration under the Securities Act of 1933,
as amended (the 1933 Act™), or a transaction othenwise in
conapliance with the 1933 Act; and

(111) evidence satisfactory to the Company of compliance with the
applicable securities laws. The Optionee shall provide * s the
Company, at the Optionee’s expense, 2 legal opinion which must be
salisfactory to the Company and the Company’s legal counsel, in
their sole discretion, stating that the offer and sale of such
Shares shall be in compliance with the foregoing laws.

(h) The Company will be under no obligation to register the shares
issuable pursuant o the Option or to comply with any exemption available for
sale of the Shares by the Optionee withou! registration; and the Company is
under no obligation to act in any manner 50 as to make Rule 144 promulgated
under the 1933 Act available with respect to sale of the Shares by the

Optionee.

(1) A legend indicating that the Shares issued pursuant to the Option
have not been registered under the apnlicable securities laws and referring to
any =pplicable restrictions on transferability and sale of the Shares may be

placed on the certificate or cetificates delivered to Optionee and any transfer
agent of the Company may be instructed to require compliance therewith.

(i) Optionee will notify the Company 12 writing at least 60 days prior to
any sale of Shares.
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(k) Acceptance by Optionee of the certificates(s) representing Shares
shall constitute a confirmation by Optionee that all agreements,
representations, warranties and covenants made herein are true and correct al
that time.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has sct his hand and seal, this
v dnyol s E

OPTIONEE [OR OPTIONEE'S
ADMINISTRATOR,
EXECUTOR OR PERSONAL
REPRESENTATIVE)

L ———— e

Name:
Position (if other than Optionee): i

<TEXT>
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EXHIBIT 10.19

LEASF AMENDMENT AGREEMENT




1901 MONTREAL ROAD
MAXXIS GROUP, INC.

THIS LEASE AMENDMENT AGREEMENT (hereinafter called the "Amendment™) made
and entered into this 5th day of June, 1998, by and between MALON D. MIMMS, a
Sole Propnietorship (hereinafier called the "Landlord"); and MAXXIS GROUP, INC.,
(hereinafier called the "Tenant™); and RICHARD BOWERS & CO. (hereinafter called
the "Broker”™).

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, by Lease Agreement dated March 17, 1997, (hereinafter collectively
called the "Lease™), Landlord leased to Tenant that certain premises
(hereinafler called the “Premises®) situated at 1901 Montreal Road, Suites 112
and 113, Atlanta, Georgia 30084, as more particularly described in the Lease;
and

WHEREAS, Land!. d and Tenant now desire to further amend the Lease so as to
extend the Term thereof and to make other changes 2s set forth hereinbelow.

NOW, THEREFORE, for valuable consideration paid by each of the parties to
the other, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, it is agreed between the
partics as follows:

1. Tenant shall expand from its current "remises into and including 1901
Montreal Road, Suites 112, 113 and 114, Atlanta, Georgia 30084
(herunafter called the "Revised Premises™) on or before July 1, 1998,
The Revised Premises contains approximately 7,430+ square feet.

2. The Revised Rental and Lease term shall commence on July 1, 1998 and
expire on Apnl 30, 2001.

3. The Revised Base Rent monthly shail be as follows:

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Base Rent Monthly
Common Area and Common Area
__ Base Remt Maintenance Monthly  Maintenance Monthly

Term : Monthly (Adjusted Annually) (Adjusted Annually)
5> <> < <C>
October 1, 1998 - Apnl 30, 1999  $4,477.00 $155.00 $4,632.00

May 1, 1999 - April 30,2000 $4,657.00 $155.00 $4,812.00




May 1,2000 - Apnl 30,2001 $4,849.00  $155.00 $5,004.00
</TABLE>

4. Tenant hereby agrees to pay Landlord, on or before the first

of cach month, Seventy Five and No' 100 Dollars (575.00) as Tenant's
estimaied share of water/sewer usage for the leased premises. Said
amounl may be adjusted
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annually, or as Landlord deems necessary, which shall be based on
actuzal expenses incurred by Landlord.

5. a) Landlord will deliver to the Tenant all heating, venting

and air-conditioning systems and any other systems (hereinafter
called the "Systems™) in place on the property as of the date the
Tenant takes possession of the Premises in working order. Upon
taking the possession of the Premises by the Tenant, the Tenant

shall have twenty (20) days within which to inspect, or cause said
Systems to be inspected, to determine if any of the Systems are not
. reasonable working order. Tenant acknowledges that Tenant has a
duty and an obligation to make such an inspection or cause such an
msp-ction 1o be made and notify the Landlord within the time
provided for herein of any non-comphiar. ¢ according to Section 12.1,
If th- Landlord shall not receive any such notice then, in such

eveni, it shall be conclusive that the Tenant has accepted the
Systems "as-is” "where-is" on the date of taking possession of the
Premises and Landlord shall have no further obligation with regard
to smd Systems except as provided for in the within Lease. Should
the Tenant notify the Landlord according to Section 12.1 of any
system which is not in working order, then the Landlord shall make
reasonable efforts to cause the system to be operating in reasonable

working order.
b) Landlord shall repaint the office walls.

) Landlord shall recarpet the offices with standard
commercial | ;ade 26-oz glued down level loop pile carpeting.

All other agreeme 5 as contained in the Lease shall remain in full force
and effect.

-
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said parties have execuled this Lease Amendment,
the day and year first above written.

LANDLORD
Signed, sealed and delivered MALON D. MIMMS, A SOLE PROPRIETORSHIP
in the presence of:
/s/ Charles D. Lacy By: /s/ Robert Mimms

Notary Public or Witness

Charles D. Lacy Tule: Agent for Landlord

Name (PleasePriny)

Richard Bowers & Co. l
TENANT

Signed, scaled and delivered MAXXIS GROUP, INC.

in the presence of:

/s/ Daniel McDonougi By: /s/ Thomas O. Cordy

;hm:,r Public or Witness

Daniel McDoncugh Name: Thomas O. Cordy

‘;hme (Please Print) (Please Print)

Title: President and CEO

-
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EXHIBIT 10.20
LEASE AMENDMENT AGREEMENT

1901 MONTREAL ROAD
MAXXIS GROUP, INC.

THIS LEASE AMENDMENT AGREEMENT (hereinafler, called the "Amendment™) made
and entered into this 14th day of August, 1998, by and between MALON D. MIMMS, a
Sole Proprictorship (hereinafter called the “Landlord™); and MAXXIS GROUP, INC.,
(hereinafier called the “Tenant™); and RICHARD BOWERS & CO. (hercinafter called
the "Broker™). .

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, by Leasc Agreement dated June 23, 1997, (hereinafter
collectively called the "Lease™), Landlord leased to Tenant that certain
premises (hereinafter called the "Premises”™) situated at 1901 Montreal Road,
Swite 108, Atlanta, Georgia 30084, as more pasticularly described in the Lease;
and

WHEREAS, Landlord and Tenant now dusire to further amend the Lease so as
to extend the Term thereof and to make other changes as set forth hereinbelow.

NOW THEREFORE, for valuable consideration paid by each of the parties to
e other, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, it is agreed between the
partics as follows:

1.  Tenant shall expand from its current Premises inlo and
including 1901 Montrea! Road, Suitc 106, 108, and 110,
Atlanta, Georgia 30084 (hercinafier called the "Revised
Premises™) on or before October 1, 1998. The Revised Premises
contains approximately 14,200+/- square feet.




3.

The Revised Rental and Lease term shall commence on: October 1,
1998 and expire on April 30, 2001.

The Revised Base Rent monthly shall be as follows:

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Common Areca Base Rent Monthly
Maintenance and Common Area
Base Rent Monthly Maintenance Monthly
Term Monthly (Adjusted Annually) (Adjusted Annually)
<S> <C> <C> <C>
November 1, 1998 - September 30, 1999 58,130.00 $296.00 $8,426.00
October 1, 1999 - September 30, 2000 $8,449.00 $296.00 §8,745.00
October 1, 2000 - Apnl 30, 2001 $8,781.00 §296.00 §9,077.00
</TABLE>
4. Tenant hereby agrees to pay Landlord, on or before the first
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of each month, Two Hundred Ninety Six and No/100 Dollars

(5296.00) as Tenant’s estimated share of water/sewer usage for

th= leased premises. Said amount may be adjusted annually, or !
as Landlord deems necessary, which shall be based on actual

expenses incurred by Landlord.

a)  Landlord will deliver to the Tenant all heating,
ventin,, and air-conditioning systems and any other
systems (hereinafier called the "Systems”™) in place
in Suites 106 and 110 as of the date the Tenant takes
possession of the Premises in working order. Upon
taking the possession of the Premises by the Tenant,
the Tenant shall have twenty (20) days within which
to inspect, or cause said Systems to be inspected, to
determine if any of the Sysicms are not in reasonable
working order. Tenant acknowledges that Tenant has a 4
duty and an obligation to make such an inspection or
cause such an inspection to be made and rotify the
Landlord within the time provided for herein of any
non-compliance according to Section 12, 1. If the




b)

<)

d)

)

All other agreements as contained in the Lease shall remain m full

force and cflect.
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IN WiTNESS WHEREOF, the said parties have executed this Lease

Landlord shall not receive any such notice then, in
such event, it shall be conclusive that the Tenant
has accepied the Systems “as-is” “where-is” on the
date of 1aking possession of the Premises and
Landlord shall have no further obligation with regard
to said Systems exceplt as provided for in the within
Lease. Should the Tenant notify the Landlord
according to Section 12.1 of any system which is not
in working order, then the Landiord shall make
reasonable efforts to cause the system to be
operating in reasonable working order.

Land'erd shall repaint the office wails in Suites 106
and 110.

Landlord shall recarpet the offices with standard
commercial grade 26-oz glued down leve! logp pile
carpeting in Suites 106 and 110

Landlord shall construct up to 200" linear feet of
interior office wall and shall demolish to up 200"
linear feet of interior office wall per the
specifications of Tenant in each of Suites 106 and
110.

Landlord shall install up to two (2) openings between
Suites 106 and 108, and up to two (2) openings
between Suites 108 and 110, each approximately 3'-07
x 6-8", a1 locations 10 be mutually determined
between Landlord and Tenant.

(=]

Amendmen! the day and year first above wnitten

Sign =d), sealed and deliyered
in the presence of:

LANDLORD

&

MALON D, MIMMS, A SOLE PROPRIETORSHIP



/s/ Charles D. Lacy By: /s/ Robert Mirams

Notary Public or Witness
Charlc D. Lacy Title: Agent for Landlord
MName (Please Print)
Richard Bowers & Co.
TENANT
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CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

As independent public accountants, we hereby consent to the incorporation of
our report included in this Form 10-K, into the Company’s previously filed
Registration Statement on Form S-1, registration number 333-38623.

/s Arthur Andersen LLP

Allanta, Georgia ”
September 23, 1998
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<DESCRIPTION>FINANCIAL DATA SCHEDULE
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<ARTICLE -5

<LEGEND>

THIS SCHEDULE CONTAINS SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION EXTRACTED
FROM THE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF MAXXIS GROUP, INC. FOR THE YEAR,,
ENDED -

JUNE 30, 1998 AND IS QUALIFIED IN ITS ENTIRETY BY REFERENCE TO SUCH
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

</LEGEND>
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<CURRENCY> U S, DOLLARS

<S> <>
<PERIOD-TYPE> YEAR .
<FISCAL-YEAR-END> JUN-30-1998
<PERIOD-START> JUL-01-1997
<PERIOD-END> JUN-30-1998
<EXCHANGE-RATE> |
<CASH> 372,000
<SECURITIES> 10,000
<RECEIVABLES> 316,000
<ALLOWANCES> (41},00{}}
<INVENTORY> 218,000
<CURRENT-ASSETS> 959,000
<PP&E> 169,000
<DEPRECIATION> (45.000)
<T DTM.-ASSETS‘* 1,263,000
<CURRENT-LIABI LITIES> 779,000
<BONDS> 0
<PREFERRED-MAN DATORY> 0
<PREFERRED> 200,000
<COMMON> 574,000
<OTHER-SE> (290,000)

<T: OTAL-LIABIL) T‘t'—.-kh’D-EQ UITY> 1,263,000
<SALES> 6,991,000

<T DTAL—REVENU ES> 6,991,000
<CGS> 2,076,000
<TOTAL-COSTS> 7,085,000
<OTHER-FXPENSES> 5,009,000
tLGSS-PRGVISIDNh 0
<INTL:ST-EXPENSE> 2,000
<INCOME-PRETAX> (96,000)
WCDME-TA.K} 0
<HiCDME{ONTIhUFHG> {96.0{}&)
<DISCONTINUED> 0
‘TEXTRADRDINAR‘I": 0
<CHANGES> 0
<NET-INCOME> (96,000)
<EPS-PRIMARY> (0.06)
<EPS-DILUTED> (0.06)
</TABLE>
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Total et FEVENDES.........orvinnnrinsisnsssssssnsss 2,691,000 6,991,000

Cost of services:

CommMuNICalIONS SEIVICES. ....ooeivoeecrreeassensmsrenssseeseisnsssress 761,000 1,351,000

Marketing SErVICES...........ccovieosisssssissnssssesissmsesssssnsses 255,000 431,000

Tolal COSt Of SETVICES....ccvoivirisssisisnisrssisriisnsssinans 1,016,000 2,076,000

GIOSS MATRIN. ...c..ovoirrinisnirrsiesssssmssassasssnsssssassissssssssass 1,675.000 4,915,000
Operating expenses:

Selling and marketing e R TaA sk 1,089,000 2,665,000

General and adminmistratiVe... .o mimssisnniessrsssssrmsssss 660,000 2,344,000

Total Operating eXpenses. ... ..o vevmornsisssssrasses 1,749,000 5,009,000
EIMEERIL BXPDOBBE ios coovisoninis irssiusismvermirersssivionimiansiin -- 2,000
Loss before incomie 1ax Benefil.......civmmimmimsssmmiasssmsnrens (74,000) (96,000)
INCOME tEX BENCHIL......cooiivnmiiiriteimnmrvisssirirssissssssasssnsss .- -
DR TORE. oo i i min i RS S s (74,000 S (96,000)
PER SHARE DATA:
IR TR Per SBATR..... . icichciiiislaiiicsdiaimninnasirsiansnsi S (0.05) S {0.06)
Weighted average number of shares outstanding...........c.occvecvceeee. 1,571,187 1,571,187
<CAPTION>
AS OF JUNE 30,
1997 1998

BALANCE SHEET DATA: . »
Woskiing capital... L. 3 (13,000) S 180,000
Propérty and equipment, net.......ceocceeeeevnnnns 92,000 169,000
TORRE BRI .. innsirsinmmssssbstitasimiens 596,000 1,263,000
Long-term obligalions.........c.cvusiamememssssnsnass

Shareholders’ equity...........coiiimsmmsssscansans 293,000 484,000
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction
with the "Selected Consolidated Financial Data” and the Consolidated Financial
Statements and Notes thereto included elsewhere in this Report. This Report
conlains certain fyrward-looking statements relating to. without limitation,
future economic performance, plans and objectives of management for future
operations and projections of revenues and other financial items that are based
on the beliefs of the Company’s management, 25 well as assumptions made by, and
information ccrrently available to, the Company's management. When used in this
Report, the words "intends,” "believes,” "anticipates,” "estimates,” "may,”
*eould,” "should,” "would,” "will,” "plans™ and similar expressions and
variations thereof are intended to identify forward-looking siatements. The I
cautionary statements set forth elsewhere in this Report identify important
factors with respect 1o such forward-looking statements. including certain
risks and uncertainties, that could cause actual results to differ materially
from those in such forward-looking statements.

Maxxis was incorporated on January 24, 1997 and began accepling [As
and marketing communications services in March 1997, The Company conducts all
of its business and operations through its wholly-owned subsidiaries: Maxxis
2000; Maxxis Communications; and Maxxis Nutritionals.

Maxxis 2000 is a network marketing company that currently markets
1-Plus long distance service, travel cards, prepaid phone cards, 800 service
and intemational telecommunications services, Internet access and Web-page
development and hosting services, and nutritional and health enhancement
produc 5. Maxxis Communications obtains iclecommunications services and
purchases time for its prepaid 1 hour, 30 minute and 10 minute phone cards from
CRC. Maxxis Communications also provides Intemet access through its agreement
with InteReach. Maxxis Nutritionals purchases private label nutritional and K
health enhancement products from various supplicrs. The Company believes that
“  its mblti-level network marketing system allows it to obtain customers for ils
products in a cost effective manner and to enhance customer retention because
of the relationships between the Company’s IAs and customers. The
telecommunications customer base developed by the Company’s IAs provides a




potential customer base for the Company's nutritional and health enhancement
products, Intemet-related services and for future products.

The Company derives revenues from communications services, nutritional
products and marketing services. Communicalions services revenues are compnsed
of sales of prepaid phone cards to the Company's IAs and commissions from the
Company’s agreement with CRC whereby the Comnany receives a percentage of the
long distance billings received by CRC from the customers originated by the
Company's 1As, net of allowances for bad debts and billing adjustments, The
Company's aggregate revenues from 1-Plus services were 525,000, or only 0.9% of
total revenues, for the Inception Period, and 51,178,000, or 16.9% of total
rev- <ues, for the year ended June 30, 1998. Because of the administrative
procedures that must be complied with in order to establish 1-Plus customers
and to collect the usage and access fees from the LECs, tliere is generally a
delay of up to three to four months from the time a prospective customer
indicates a desire to become a 1-Plus customer and the time that the Company
begins to receive comumissions from such customer’s usage. In the future, the
Company believes inat comnussions generated en the sales of 1-Plus long
distance services will constitule an increasing percentage of its total
revenucs. In September 1998, the Company began providing Intemet access and
Web-page development and hosting services. Accordingly, the Company derived no
revenue from such senvices for the year ended June 30, 1995,

Nutritional products revenues include sales of private-label
nutritional products to the Company's 1As. Recently, the Company began
marketing new health enhancement products and additional nutritional products,
including a weight management program and skin care system. Marketing services
revenues include application fees from 1As and purchases of sales aids by 1As,
including distributor kits which consist of forms, promotional brochures, audio
and video tapes, marketing materials and presentation materials Marketing
services revenues also include training fees paid by MDs. To become an
associate, individuals {other than individuals in North Dakota) must complete
an application and purchase a distributor kit for $99. IAs also pay an annual
non-refundable fee in order to maintain their status as an IA, which lee the
Company amortizes over the renewal period. To become a MD, a senior associate,
director or regional director must attend a Company approved training school.
The feeto
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attend the training school is carrently $99, and MDs must attend continuing
education training schools cach year which also are subject to a fee. The
training fees are recognized at the time the training is reccived. The Company




does not receive any fees from TAs for the training provided by MDs or national
training directors.

Cosl of services consists of communicaticns services costs,
nutritional products costs and marketing services costs. Communications
services cost consists primarily of the cost of purchasing activated prepaid
phone cards. Nutritional products cost consists of the cost of purchasing
private label nutritional products. Marketing services cost includes the costs
of purchasing IA distributor kits, sales aids and promotional materials and
training costs. Operating expenses consist of selling and marketing expenses
and general and administrative expenses, Selling and marketing expenses include
commissions paid to [As based on (i) usage of long distance services by
customers, (ii) sales of products to new IAs sponsored into the Company and
(iii) sales of additional products and services to customers. General and
administrative expenses include costs for 1A support services, information
systems services and administrative personnel to suppost the Company's
operations and growth.

The Company has a limited operating history, and its operations are
subject to the risks inherent in the establishment of any new business. The
Company expects that it will incur substantial initial expenses, and tiere can
be no assurance that the Company will achieve or maintain profitability. If the
Company continues to grow rapidly, the Company will be required to continually
expand and modify its operational and financial systems, add additional IAs and
new customers, and train and manage both current and new employees and JAs.
Such rapid growth would place a significant strain on the Company's operational
resources and systems, and the failure to effectively manage this projected
growth could have a material adverse effect on the Company's business,
financial condition and results of operations.




RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following table sets {orth the pereentage of total revenues

attributable to each category for the periods shown.

<TABLE>
<CAP1.ON>
JANUARY 24, 1997
(INCEPTION) YEAR ENDED
TO JUNE 30, 1997 JUNE 30, 1998
<S> <C> <C>
Nel revenues:
Communications Services.......cmmmninininn 86.3% 75.7%
Nutritional products..........ccocoeeimcninisisnasnn -- 7.5
Marketing services........ooeouinns Rk 13.7 16.8
Total net revenues.......c.o . vviiiasiisinsnsansnns 100.00% 100.00%
Cost of services:
Communications Services..........oovunuences 28.3% 19.3% i
Nutritional products...........ccoumimmsssans - 4.2
Marketing services.......... s 95 62
Total cost of SETVICes. ..o ciciisinnnisinionian 37.8 29.7
Operating expenses:
Selling and marketing...........c.coccvemssnnnsennae Shicics 40.5 38.1 §
General and administralive...........ccoeceininnas 24.5 335
Total operating expenses.........cccvenneccisinsianes 65.0% 71.6%
</TABLE>

The Company was incorporated in Januvary 1997 and commenced operations
in March 1997. No comparisons are presented for the year ended June 30, 1998
compared 1o the Inception Period because the Company commenced operations in
March 1997 and the Company believes the comparisons would not be meaningful.
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Similarly, no comparisons are presented for the Inception Period because the
Company was not in existence for the corresponding period in 1996.

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1998

Net Revenues. Total net revenues are derived from sales of
communications services, nutritional products and markeling services net of any
returns of prepaid phone cards, distributor kits or other producis. Total net
revenues were 56,991,000 for the year ended June 30, 1998. For the year ended
June 30, 1998, communications services revenues wer~ $5,293,000, or 75.7% of
total revenues. Communications services revenues consis! of sales of prepaid
phone cards by and to IAs and commissions and fees generated from long distance
customers. For the year ended Junes 30, 1998, nutritional products revenues were
$526,000, or 7.5% of 101l net revenues. Nutritional products revenues consist
of sales of private label nutritional products. For the year ended June 30,

1998, marketing services revenues were 51,172,000, or 16.8% of tolal revenues.
Marketing services revenues consist of application fees paid by IAs, purchases
of sales aids by 1As and training fees paid to become a MD.

Cost of Services. Cost of services includes communications services
costs, nutritional products costs and marketing services costs. Total cost of
services for the year ended June 30, 1998 was 52,076,000, or 29.7% of to1al
revenues. For the year ended June 30, 1995, communications services cost was .
$1,351,000, or 19.3% of 101al revenues, Communications services cost consist
primarily of the cost of purchasing activated prepaid phone cards from CRC. The
Company then sells the activated phone cards to its IAs. Communications
services cost also includes, as a minor component, the costs of materials that
are used 1o package the phone cards. For the year ended June 30, 1998,
nutritional products cost was $294,000, or 4.2% of total revenues. Nutritional
products cost consists of the cost of purchasing private label nutritional
products. Marketing services cost was 5431,000, or 6.2% of total revenues, for
the year ended June 30, 1998. Marketing services cost pnmarily consists of the
costs of purchasing application kits, sales aids and promotional materials and
IT-:LI'IHIE CO&LS.

Oper:iing Expenses. For the year ended June 30, 1998, selling and
marketing e«penses were $2,665,000, or 38.1% of total revenues. Selling and
marketing . «penses consist of commissions paid to IAs based on (i) usage of
long distance services by customers, (ii) sales of products to new IAs
sprnsored into the Company and (11i) sales of additional products and services
to customers. General and adminisirative expenses were 52,344,000, or 33.5% of i
total revenues, for the year ended June 30, 1998, General and administrative
experises consist of salary expense for the Company's customer service
personnel, office staff and exccutive personnel and the cost of A support
services and information systems services.




INCEPTION PERIOD (JANUARY 24, 1997 TO JUNE 30, 1997)

*let Revenues. For the Inception Period, communications services
revenues were $2,322,000, or 86.3% of total revenues, and marketing services
revenues were 5369,000, or 13.7% of total revenues. Communications services
revenues consist of sales of prepaid phone curds by and to the Company's [As
and commissions and fees gereraled from long distance usage customers. This
amoumnt was minimal for the Inceptior: Period because no customers were utilizing
long distance services untii May 1997, Marketing services revenues include
application kit fees from IAs, purchases of sales aids by 1As and training fees
paid to become a MD.

Cost of Services. Communications services cost was $761,000, or 28.3%
of total revenues, for the Inception Period. Communications services costs
include the cost of purchasing activated prepaid phone cards. Marketing
services cost, which includes the costs of application kits and promotional
materials, was $255,000, or 9.5% of total revenues, for the Inception Period.

Operating Expenses. Selling and marketing expenses principally consist
of commissions paid to IAs based on (i) usage of long distance services by
customers, (ii) sales of products and services tonew [As sponsore | into the
Company and (iii) sales of additional products and services to customers.
Selling and markeling expenses were $1,089,000, or 40.5% of total revenues, for i
the Inception Period. General and administrative expenses were
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$660,000, or 24.5% of total revenues, for the Inception Period. General and
administrative expenses consist primarily of salary expense for the Company's
customer service personnel, office staff and executive personnel. Such expenses
also include costs for IA support services and information systems services.

SEASONALITY AND UNAUDITED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The Company has historically experienced, and expects to continue to
expencice, significant seasonal fluctuations in the recruiiment of its 1As and
the sale of its products and cervices. The Company's annual summit occurs in
the first quarter of the Company's fiscal year, which has historically caused- it
an increase in the number of the Company’s 1As and sales of the Company's
products and scrvices. Histonically, revenues have been lower in the second
quarter than in other quariers of a given year because of the number of new [As
added and product and service sales have historically declined during, the
holiday season. The Company's operating results may vary significantly in the




future, partly due to such seasonal fluctuations. The Company believes that
recruitment of its 1As and sales of its products and services will continue to
follow this seasonal cycle. The Company's quarterly results may fluctuate
significantly as a result of such scasonality. Because of the potential
quarterly fluctuations in the Company’s revenue and operating resulls, sesults
for any particular quarter may not be indicative of future quarterly or annual

results.
<TABLE>
<CAFTION=>
QUARTER ENDED
INCEPTION R
PERIOD SEPT. 30,1997 DEC 31 1997 MAR 31,1998 JUNE 30, 1998
<S> ﬂ} < <> <C> <>
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS DATA:
Net revenues,
Communications services...co.w.. 32,322,000 § 1465000 § 1,122,000 S 1,352,000 S 1,354,000
Mutritional products ... - - 186,000 155,000 185,000
Marketing services. oo 369,000 353,000 318,000 224,000 277,600
Total et revenoes.... .o 2,691,000 1,818, um:l 1,626,000 1 m ma 1,816,000
Cost of services.
Communications Semvices. . .. 101,000 438,000 430,000 213,000 270,000 |
Nutritional products...........cceeens - - 77,000 146,000 71,000
Marketing services. ... ol 255,000 101,000 127,000 111,000 92,000
Total cost of services ... i ﬂi&.ﬂ'ﬂﬂ 539,000 634,000 4?0 000 4331 000
Gross margin.... ... 1.675 000 1,279,000 992,000 1-lfnl Gﬂﬁ 1,383,000
Openating Expenses:
£:ag and marketing........cooee. 1,089,000 716,000 610,000 643,000 671.000
General and administrative.............. 660,000 597,000 514,000 542,000 691,000

samaa

Tota! operating expenses........ 1,749,000  1313,000 1,124,000 1.210,000 Ijﬁlmﬁ

B S —— e s semsrmmsenmm .

Interest i ome (expense).....nmi - s 2,000 (2,000) 2 Nﬂ
Income (loss) before income tax benefit... (74 000] (34,000) (134,000) 53,000 19,000
-acome tax benefil.....ooiieniiein - - = e
Net income (1088).....cc...cocerocine s (4, 000)S (34,000) $ (134000) § 53000 5 19,000
PER SHARE DATA: -~ ' 2

Net income (Joss) per share........... S (0.05)S  (0.02) S (008) S 003 § 001

s A RS SNk T ik

<TABLE>




LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Since inception, the Company has primarily financed all of its
operations through the sale of its secunities in private placements. During the
year ended June 30, 1998, cash flows from financing activities totaled
approximaltely $87,000 related 1o the sale of Common Stock and $200,000 related
to ti.c sale of preferred stock. In November 1997, the Company entered into a
demand promissory note to fund expenses incurred in connection with the launch
of the Company's nutritional product line. As of March 23, 1998, the Company
had bormrowed $200,000 under such promissory note. On March 23, 1998, the
Company converted the outsiunding principal amount under the promissory note
into units (“*Units™) at a price of $5.50 per Unit with each Unit consisting of
one share of convertible preferred stock (the "Preferred Stock”) and a warrant
(a "Warrant") to purchase one share of Common Stock at a price of $5.50 per
share. The Preferred Stock is: (i) non-voting; (i) entitled to an antidilution
adjustment only upon a stock split, recapitalization or similar event; (ii1)
entitied to a liquidation preference over the Common Stock: and (iv)
convertible into Common Stock at the option of the holder at any time
commencing [4 months following the date of the 1ssuance of the Preferred Stock
and automatically upon the closing of a public offering that
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occurs at least 14 months following the issuance of the Preferred Stock and
that provides gross proceeds to the Company of at least $7,500,000. The
Warrants are entitled to an antidilution adjustment only upon a stock split,
recapitalization or similar event, are not exercisable until 14 months

following their date of issuance and remain exercisable at the option of the
holder until the sever: i anniversary of their issuance. The rights of the

holders of Common Stock will be subject to, and may be adversely affected by,
the rights of the holders of the Preferred Stock and any additional preferred
stock that may be issued in the future.

In February 1998, the Company entered into a note with Thomas O. Cordy
(the "Cordy Note") to memonialize a loan in December 1997 of $53,000 from Mr.
Cordy to the Company to fund certain ope:ational expenses. As of June 30, 1998,
the Cordy Note had been repaid in full,

-

"5 of June 307 1998, the Company had cash of 5372,000 and working
capitdl of 5180,000. Cash provided by operating =ctivities for the year ended
June 30, 1998 was 5235,000. The Company's investing activities principally
consisted of capital expenditures of $115,000 and software development and
organizational costs of $70,000 for the year ended June 30, 1998,




The Company anticipates that cash generated from operations, together
with additional borrowings or equity financings, will be sufficient to meet the
Company's capital requirements for the next 12 months. However, if the Company
does not receive suflicient funds from its operations and borrowings and equity
financings to fund its operations, the Company may need lo raise additional
capital. In addition, any increases in the Company's growth rate, shortfalls in
anticipated revenues, increases in expenses or significant acquisitions could
have a maicnal adverse cifect on the Company’s liquidity and capital resources
and could require the Company to raise additional capital. The Comipany may also
need to raise additional funds in order to take advantage of unanticipated
opportunilies, such as acquisitions of complementary businesses or the
development of new products, or otherwise respend o unanlicipaled compenitive
pressures. Sources of additional capital may include venture capital financing,
cash flow fiom operations, additional lines of credit and private equity and
debt financings. The Company’s cash and financing needs for 1998 and beyond
will be dependent on the Company's level of 1A and customer growth and the
related capital expenditures, advertising costs and working capital needs
necessary to suppont such growth. The Company believes that major capital
expenditures may be necessary over the next few years to develop additional
product lines to sell through its IAs and to develop and/or acquire
informalion, accounting and or inventory control sysiems 1o monitor and analyze
the Company's growing mulii-level network marketing system. The Company has not
wdentified financing sources 10 fund such cash needs in 1998 and beyond. There i
can be no assurance ihat the Company will be able to raise any such capital on
terms acceptable to the Company or at all.

YEAR 2000 COMPLIANCE

Many installed computer software and network processing sysiems
current!v accept only two-digit entries in the date code field and may need to
be upgraded or replaced in order to accurately record and process information
and transactions on and after January 1, 2000. The Company’s business and
relationships with its customers and [As depend significantly on a number of
tG.uputer software programs, intemal operating systems and connections 1o other
network s, and the falure of these programs, systems or networks to
successfi |ly address the Year 2000 problem ¢ uld have a matenial adverse effect
on the Company’s business, financial condition and results of operations. The
Compan; is in the preliminary stages of assessing the extent to which its
intemnal systems an< software and the network connections it maintains are
adequately programmed to address the Year 2000 issue. In addition, the
Company's ability to provide services and support to its customers and IAs” o
depends upon the continued tunctioning of the soflware programs, operating
systems and networking used by its vendors and suppliers, and the Company 1s
also in the preliminary stages of assessing the extent to which its vendors and
suppliers have successfully addressed the Year 2000 problem. It currently is
impossible for the Company 1o predict the potential expenditures that may be



required or the delay or interruption in service that may result due lo the

Year 2000 problem. Any failure by the Company or its vendors or suppliers to
successfully address the Year 2000 problem could significantly interrupt the
busir s operations of the Company and have a material adverse effect on the
Company'’s business, financial condition and results of operations. The Company
has not currently established a contingency plan, but the Company intends to
create one as soon as practicable.
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET
RISKS

Not applicable.

ITEMS.  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company, .ncluding
the Company's consolidated balance sheets as of June 30, 1998 and 1997 and |
consolidated statements of operztions, shareholders' equity and cash flows for
the year ended June 30, 1998 and for the period from Inception (January 24,
1997) to June 30, 1997 together with the report thereof of Arthur Andersen LLP,
dated September 4, 1998 are included on pages F-1 through F-15 of this Report.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS IN
ACCOUNTING AND

FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

The Company has no disagreements on zccounting or financial
disclosure matters with its accountants nor did it change accountants during
the year ended June 30, 1998.

PART Il

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT o
EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS

The directors and executive officers of the Company are set forth
below. The Company’s Board of Directors consists of nine directors divided into




three classes of directors, serving staggered three-year terms. Directors and
excculive officers of the Company are elected lo serve uniil they resign or are
removed, or are otherwise disqualified to serve, or until their successors are
elected and qualified. Directors of the Company are elected at the annual
meeting of shareholders. Officers of the Company are appointed at the Board's
first meeting after each annual meeting of sharcholicrs. The ages of the
persons set forth below are as of June 30, 1998.

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
TERM AS
DIRECTOR
NAME AGE POSITIONS WITH THE COMPANY
EXPIRES
<S> <> <C> <C>
Ivey J. Stokes................ 39 Chairman of the Board of Directors
Thomas O. Cordy.......cuvwure 57 Chief Executive Offlicer, President and Director
Danie! McDonough..............50 Chief Financial Officer
James W, Brown.......ccoveenns 62 Executive Vice Fresident, Secretary and Director
Lamry W. Gates, 1l............. 35 Vice President-- Human Resources and Direclor
Charles P. Bemnstein........... 48 Director
Alvin Curry.....ccoovierenirn. 41 Director
Robert J. Glover, Jr........... 37 Director
Terry Hamis.........cooovee. -84 Director
Philip E. Lundquist............ 62 Director
<TABLE>
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IVEY J. STOKES has served as Chairman of the Board of Dircctors of the
Company since its inception. Mr. Stokes began his marketing carcer in 1982 at
A_L. Williams Corporation ("A.L. Williams") where he became one of less than
400 National Sales Directors out of 1.3 million insurance agents. In March
1991, Mr. Stokes left the financial services industry to launch his own
independent marketing firm, Global Marketing Alliance ("Global Alhance™). Over
the next five years, Mr. Stokes became one of the leading money eamers in

several national network marketing firms. Mr. Stokes' marketing firm, Global
Alliance, has sponstred and trained over 150,000 distnbutors since 1991, Mr.
Stokés has a bachelors degree in industrial management from the Georgia
Institute of Technology

THOM:.S O CORDY has served as Chief Executive Officer and President

1998
1998

1999
1999
2000
1

1

2000
2000




and as a Director of the Company since May 1997. Prior to that time, he served
as President and Chiefl Executive Officer of Cl Cascade Corp. Mr. Cordy
currently serves as Vice Chairman of the Board of Trustees of Clark Atlanta
University, Chainman of the Board of Renaissance Capital Corporation and as a
Direclor of Cox Enterprises. Mr. Cordy has a bachelors degree from Morehouse
College and a masters degree from Atlanta University. Mr. Cordy has attended
the Stanford Executive Program at the Stanford School of Business and the
University of Oklahoma Natinnal Lending School.

DANIEL MCDONQUGH has served as Chief Financial Officer of the Company
since Oclober 1997. Prior to his employment with the Company, Mr. McDonough
provided financial consulting services to a number of start up companies at
Creative Benefits, Inc. In addition, from 1992 10 1994, Mr. McDonough was the
controller of Jostens Leaming Corporaticn, a $75.0 million technology company
speciahizing in educational software. Prior to lus employment with Jostens, Mr.
McDonough served as assistant controller to Alumax, Inc., a $2.5 billion
integrated aluminum company with over 100 manufacturing operations throughout
the United States. From 1973 to 1980, Mr. McDonough was employed by Price
Waterhouse & Co, Mr. McDonough is a licensed CPA and also holds a ma<ter. of
business administration degree from the University of Buffalo.

JAMES W, BROWN currently serves as Executive Vice Pr sident and
Secretary of the Company and has been a Director of the Company since May 1597,
He served as President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company from
inception to Apnil 1997. He has also served as Chief Executive Officer,

President and a Director of Maxxis 2000 since its inception. From 19935 to 1997,
Mr. Brown has served as a manager of NetWorld Communications, L.L.C. Since
1979, Mr. Brown has also served as President and Chief Executive Officer of
Marketing Ideas, Ltd. * {r. Brown has a bachelors degree from the University of
Georgia. He also attended the John Marshall School of Law and the American
Mutual Institute of Management.

LARRY W. GATES, Il has served as Vice President of Human Resources
since the Company’s inception and as a Director of the Company since May 1997.
Mr. Gates became a part-time independent insurance agent for A.L. Williams in
1989 while serving in the U.S. Army. In 1993, he left the financial services
industry and became a full-time independent marketer of lelecommunications
services th:ough his own independent marketing firm, Classic Enterpnses. Mr.
Gates buiit 2 downline of over 10,000 distnbutors between 1993 and 1996. Mr.
Gates has an associates degree from Pierre College

CHARLES P."BERNSTEIN has served as a Director of the Company since May
1997, Since 1992, Mr. Bernstein has also served as President of Harvest
Mongage Co. From 19589 1o 1992, Mr. Bemstein was the Vice President of
Nationwide Morigage Resources, an underwniter and senvicer of loans on
residential and commercial real estate. Mr. Bemstein holds an associales




degree from the University of South Carolina.

ALVIN CURRY has served as a Director of the Company since its
inception. He also serves as Executive Vice President and Chief Operating
Officer of Maxxis 2000. Mr. Cumry started his marketing career in 1986 with
AL Williams, where he attained the position of Senior Vice President in less
than three years. In March 1991, Mr. Cunty left the financial services industry
to join Mr. Stokes in Globa! Alliance. Mr. Curmry attended Northwest Mississippi
Junior College and Tacoma Community College, and he received a degree from the
Knapp College of Business.
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ROBFRT JAMES GLOVER, JR. has served 2s a Director of the Company since
its inception. Mr. Glover started his marketing carcer as an independent
msurance agent with A L. Williams in 1985, where he attained the sales
position of Senior Vice President. In December 1993, Mr. Glover lefi the
financial services industry and became an independent marketer of
telecommunications services through his ovwn independent marketing finm, Glover
Enterprises. Mr. Glover's network marketing firm has sponsored and trained over _
10,000 distributors. Mr. Glover attended Maryland University. .

TERRY HARRIS has served as a Director of the Company since May 1997,
Since 1982, Mr. Hamis has served as Pastor and President of Tacoma Christian
Center Inc. Mr. Hamis has a bachelors degree from the University of Puget
Sound and attended Rhema Bible School.

PHILIP E. LUNDQUIST has served as a Director of the Company since May
1997. He also serves as Chairman of Christopher Partners Inc. Since 1988, Mr.
Lundquist has owned and operated an investment banking consulling company as a
sole proprictorship. From 1985 to 1988, Mr. Lundquist was the Director of
Corporat- Finance for Deloitte Hasking & Sells in Atlanta, Georgia. Mr.
Lundquist has a bachelors degree from Williams College and attended the
Institute of Investment Banking at the Wharton School, University of
Fennsylvania,

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The Executive Committee of the Board of Directors excrcises, during
the imterval between Board meetings, all of the powers of the Company's Board
of Directors within certain limitations. During the year ended June 30, 1998,
the Executive Commillee was composed of Thomas O. Cardy, Alvin Curry and Ivey
J. Stokes and held two meetings.




The Audit Committee of the Board of Dircctors reviews, with the
Company's independent public accountants, the annual financial statements of
the Company, reviews the work of such independent public accountanis and makes
annual recommendations te the Board of Directors for the appointment of
independent public accountants for the ensuing ycar. The Audit Committee also
reviews the effectiveness of the financial and accounting functions,
organization, operations and management of the Company. During the year ended
June 30, 1998, the Audit Committee was composed of Charles P. Bemstein, Terry
Harris and Philip E. Lundquist and did not hold any meetings.

The Compensation Committee reviews and recommends to the Board of
Dir=ctors the compensaiion and benefits of all officers of the Company and
administers the issuance of stock options to the Company’s officers, employees,
consultants and advisors. The Compensation Commiitiee also reviews general
policy matters relating toe compensation and benefits of employees of the
Company. During the year ended June 30, 1998, the Compensation Committee was
composed of Charles P. Bemnstein, Terry Hams and Philip E. Lundquist and did
not hold any meetings.

The Company does not have a standing nominating commiliee. The Board
of Directors or the Exccutive Committee nominates candidates 1o stand for
clection as directors. The Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Company pernmit
shareholders to make nominations for directors but only if such nominations are
made pursuant to timely notice in writing 1o the Secretary of the Company. To
be timely, notice of ¢ areholder nominations for directors must be delivered in
wriling to the Secretary of the Company no later than 90 days prior to the
anniversary of the previous year's annual meeting, logether with the identity
of the nominator and the number of shares of Common Stock owned, directly or
indirectly, by the nominator.

During the year ended June 30, 1998, the Board of Directors of the
Company held four meetings. All of the directors of the Company attended 75% or

more of the aggregate of all Board meetings and all meetings of committees of
which they were members.
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ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

Members of the Board of Directors arc reimbursed for their
out-of-pocket expenses for cach meeting attended, but otherwise serve without




compensation.

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The following Summary Compensation Table sets forth the compensation
camed by (he Company's Chief Executive Cfficer during the year ended June 30,
1998 and the Inception Period. No other executive officers of the Company

received a combined salary and bonus in excess of $100,000 during the year
ended June 30, 1998.

SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

ANNUAL COMPENSATION
NAME AND PRINCIPAL POSITION PERIOD SALARY BONUS(1)
<S> <C> <> <C>
Thomas O. Cordy.... Fiscal 1998 S 41600 S 83400
Chief Executive fo' cer and Prtﬂdi.‘rl.l Inception Peniod 5,250 -
</TABLE>

- remmreme—mmrerEa

(1) Represents amounts accrued as bonus compensation for the periods
presented.

OPTION GRANTS DURING 1998

As of June 30, 1998, no options had been granted to the Chief
Sxecutive Officer of the Company, and no executive officer of the Company

received a combined salary and bonus in excess of $100,000 during the year
ended June 30, 1998.

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENTS

The Company has entered into employment agreements (collectively, the
"Employment Agreements™) with Messrs. Cordy and Brown. The Company intends 1o
enter into an employment agreement with Mr. McDonough. Generally, the
Employment Agreements provide for a minimum weekly salary. In addition, the
employee may pr-ticipate in a bonus program and shall be eligible to receive
quarterly or annual payments of a performance bonus based upon the achievement
of targeted levels of rerformance and such other criteria as the Board of
Directors shall establish from time to time. Each employee may participate in




insurance and other benefil | ans of similarly siluated employees, including
any stock option plans of the Company.

Each of the Employment Agreements has a term of one year, and the term
rencws daily for an additional ycar until either party fixes the remaining term
at one year by giving wnllen nolice. The Company can terminale cach employee
upon death or disability (as defined in the Employment Agreements) or with or
without cause upon delivery to the employee of a notice of termination. If the
employee is terminated because of death, disabilily or cause, the employee will
receive any accrucd compensation through the termination date and any accrued
performance bonus, unless the employee is terminated for cause. If the employre
is terminated without cause, the Company shall pay the employee severance
payments equal to his minimum base salary for each week during the six-month
period following the termination date. If the employee is a direct : or officer
of the Company or any of its affiliates, the employee shall tender nis
resignation lo such positions effzctive as of the tenmination date.

Under the Employment Agreements, each employee agrees to maintain the
confidentiality of the Company’s trade secrets and confidential business
information. The employee also agrees for a period of one year following the
termination date, if he is terminated or resigns for any reason, nol to compete
with or solicit employ. os or customers

a1
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of the Company or any of its affiliates wit..in a 30-mile radius of the
Company's corporate offices; provided, that if the employee is terminated
without cause, the non-compete period shall be six months.

SALES REPRESENTATIVE AGREEMENTS

The Company entered into independent sales representative agreements
(collectively, the "Sales Representative Agreements™) with ten independent
sales representatives, including Messrs, Stokes, Gates and Glover. The Sales
Representative Agreements provide for a minimum fee of $800.00 per week. Each
sales representative is also be eligible to receive quarterly payments of a
performance bonus which is a percentage of total revenue from Maxxis 2000. To
be paid a bonus, a sales representative must have 180 new activations in a
quarter. The bonus amount is then determined by the number of open centers in
that quarter. The bonus ranges from 1% of total revenue from Maxxis 2000 if
four centers are opened to 5% of the revenue if 20 centers are opened. Each
sales representative is an independent contractor, and the Company does not
exercise control over (he activilics of the sales representatives other than as




set forth in the Sales Representative Agreements.

Each of the Sales Representative Agreements has a term of one year,
and the term renews daily for an additional year until either party fixes the
remaining term at one year by giving writlen notice. The Company can terminate
each sales representative upon death or disability (as defined in the Sales
Representative Agreements) or with or without cause upon delivery to the sales
representative of a notice of termination. If a sales representative is
terminaled, the sales representative will receive any accrued fees through the
termination dale and any accrucd performance bonus, unless the sales
representative is terminated for cause. If the sales representative 1s a
director or officer of the Company or any of its affiliates, the sales
representative shall tender his resignation to such positions effective as of
the termination date. Under the Sales Representative Agreements, each sales
representative agrees 10 maintain the confidentiality of the Company's trade
secrets and confidential business information.

CONSULTING AGREEMENT

In September 1997, the Company entered into a consulling agreement
with Mr. Robert P. Kelly. The consulting agreement provides for a minimum
weekly salary, and the consultant may participate in a bonus program and is
eligible to receive gquanterly or annual payments of a performance bonus based
up~: the achievement of targeted levels of performance and such other cniteria
as the Board of Directors shall establish from time to time. The consultant is
an indep-ndent contractor, and the Company does not exercise control over the
activities of the consultant other than as set fi .th in the consulting

agreeme: .

The consulting agreement has a term of one year, and the term renews
oaily for an additional year until either party fixes the remaining lerm at one
year by giving wnitten notice. The Company can terminate the consultant upon
death or disability (as defined in the consulling agreement) or with or without
cause upon delivery to the consultant of a notice of termination. If the
consultant is terminated because of death, disability or cause, the consultant
will receive any accrued fees through the termination date and any accrued
performance bonus, unless the consultant is terminated for cause. If the
consultant is terminated without cause, the Company shall pay the consultant
severance payments equal to his minimum base salary for each week during the
six-month period following the termination date.

Under the coasulting agreement, the consultant agrees to maintain thic
confidentiality of th~ “ompany's trade secrets and confidential business
information. The consultant also agrees for a period of one year following the
termination date, if he is terminated or resigns for any reason, not to compete
with or solicit employees or customers of the Company or any of its affiliates




within a 30-mile radius of the Company’s corporale offices; provided, that if
the consultant is terminated without cause, the non-compete period sha!! be six
months.

- INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

Pursuant to its Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation, the
Company is obligated to indemnify each of its directors and officers to the
fullest extent permitied by the Georgiz Business Corporation Code with
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respect to all liability and loss suffered and reasonable expenses

incurred by such person in any aclion, suit or proceeding in which such person
was or is made or threatened to be made a party or is otherwise involved by
reason of the fact that such person is or was a director or officer of the
Company. The Company is obligated 1o pay the reasonable expenses of the
directors or officers incurred in defending such proceedings if the indemnif =d
party agrees 1o repay all amounts advanced by the Company if it is ultimately
determined that such indemnified party is not entitled to indemnification.

STOCK OPTION PLAN

On September 16, 1998, the Board of Directors adopted (subject to
shareholder approval or ratification) the Maxxis Group, Inc. 1998 Stock Option
Plan (ihe “Option Plan®), which permits the Company to grant options fo
purchase shares of Common Stock to officers, directors, key employees, advisors
and consultants of the Company. The purpose of the Option Plan is to advance
the interests of the “ompany, its subsidiaries and its sharcholders by
affording certain employees and Directors of the Company and its subsidiaries,
as well as key consultants and advisors to the Company or any subsidiary, an
opportunily to acquire or increase their proprictary interests in the Company.
Options granted under the Option Plan are intended to promote the growth and
profitability of the Company and its subsidiaries by providing the optionees
with an additional incentive 1o achieve the Company’s objectives through
participation in its success and growth and by encouraging oplionees to
continue their association with or service to the Company.

-

Generally, np?isms granted under the Option Plan rmay be Incentive ~
Stock Uptions ("ISOs™), which are intended to no=et the requirements of Section
422 of the Intemnal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code”), or
non-qualified options, which are not intended to meet such requirements
("Non-Qualified Options™). ISOs must have terms of ten years or less from the




date of grant and the fair market value of grants of ISOs during any year on
the date of grant may not exceed $100,000. The Option Plan will be administered
by a committee (the "Comumittee”), having the duties and authonities sct forth
in such Option Plan in addition to any other authority granted by the Board.
The Committee will have the full power and authority, in its discretion,
subject 1o the provisions of the Option Plan, to interpret the Option Plan, to
prescribe, amend, and rescind rules and regulations relating to them, to
determine the details and provisions of each stock option agreement and
restriction agreement, and to make all other determinations necessary or
advisable for the adminisiration of the Option Plan, including, without
limitation, the amending or 2ltering of such Plan and any options or restricted
stock awards granted thercunder, as may be required to comply with or to
conform to any federal, state, or local laws or regulations. The Commuttee, in
its discretion, will select the recipients of awards and the number of options
granied thereunder and determine other matters such as (i) vesting schedules,
(i1) the exercise pnice of options (which cannol be less than 100% of the fair
market value of the Common Stock on the date of grant for 1SOs) and (ji1) the
duration of awards (which cannol exceed ten years from the date of grant or
modification of the option).

Subject to shareholder approval, the agyregate number of shares of
Common Stock reserved for the issuance of options under the Option Plan will be
300,000 shares, subject 1o adjustment in accordance with the Option Plan. Any
or all shares of Common Swock subject 1o the Option Plan may be issued in any
combination of 1SOs or Non-Qualified Options, and the amount of Commeon Stock
subject to the Option Plan may be increased from time to time, subject to
shareholder approval. Shares subject 10 an option may be either authonzed and
unissued shares or shares issued and later reacquired by the Company. The
shares covered by any unexercised portion of an option that has terminated for
any reason may again be oplioned or awarded under the Option Plan, and such
shares shall not be considered as having been optioned in computing the number
of shares of Common Stock remaining available for options under the Option
Plan

The -lass of persons cligible 1o participate in the Option Plan shall
consist of «11 persons whose participation in the Opticn Plan the Committee
determines ‘o be in the best interests of the Company which shall include, but
nol be limited to, all employees and directors of the Company or any
subsidiary, as well as key consultants and advisors to the Company or any
su_sidiary. The Coramittee will have the power to specify, with respect to the
Options granted 10 a particular Optionce, the cifect of the termination of such
Optionee's employment or service under various circumstances on such Optionee's
right o exercise an Option, which effect
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may include immediate or deferred termination of such Optionee’s rights under
an Option, or acceleration of the date at which an Oplion may be exercised in
full. As of September 25, 1998, no options to purchase shares of Common Stuck
were outstanding.

ITE*" 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND
MANAGEMENT

The following table scts forth certain information regarding the
beneficial ownership of the Common Stock as of September 25, 1998 by: (i) each
person known by the Company beneficially to own more than 5% of the outstanding
shares of the Common Stock; (ii) each director of the Company; and (i) all
directors and executive officers of the Company as a group. Except as otherwise
indicated, all persons listed have sole voting and investment power with
respect to their shares,

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
AMOUNT OF PERCENTAGE OF
BENEFICIAL COMMON STOCK |
NAME AND ADDRESS OF BENEFICIAL OWNER OWNERSHIP(B) CUTSTANDING

<S> <C> <C>
AWIN CUITY(E)...ovrvvermssvssemrmesssssossssssmmanssssmmenssesseses 636,363 40.5%
King David Trust(d)........cooreeenarasscssissssarsassss S 454,545 289
Cynthia Glover, trusiee(€)..........ccoirnissmsmsssssssines 181,818 11.6
The Anchora Company(f)..........cocoeceevsurnscssassasnns 72,727 4.6
T W BIOWIL ..o scciiirarsmssssssrassssissisassasiiassissmmntan 47272 30
Larcy W. Gates, I1............ wieres #5454 2.9
Robert J. Glova{h} A A -
Philip E. ledquiu_ ................................................. - -
B RSN s - &
All directors and executive officers as a group 987,270 62.8

(10 persons) (C) = T0).cieeireesssmnonissoisesnssnsessonsmnmsssss G o
</TABLE>

. L.r...nhxn one percent
(a) The address of the King David Trust and Alvin Curry is /o Maxxis




Group, Inc., 1901 Montreal Drive, Suite 108, Tucker, Georgia 30084. The address
of Cynthia Glover, trustee, U/A Louise Glover dated January 10, 1997 is 7819
Taylor Circle, Riverdale, Georgia J0274. The address of The Anchora Company is
c/o Salem Management Compar, Ltd, Design House, Leeward Highway, P.O. Box
150, Provider.ciales Turks & Caicos Island, B.W.1.

(b) In accordance with Rule 13d-3 under the Secunties Exchange Act of
1934, as amended, a person is deemed to be the beneficial owner, for purposes
of this table, of any shares of Commoan Stock if such person has or shares

voling power or investment power with respect to such sccurity, or has the

night 1o acquire beneficial ownership at any time within 60 days from September
25, 1998. As used herein, "voling power” is the power to vote or direct the
voting of shares and “investment power” isthe power to dispose or direct the
disposition of shares.

(€) Includes 454,545 shares owned by the King David Trust of which Mz,
Curry, a director of the Company, is the trustee. Mr. Curry disclaims

beneficial ownership of such shares.

(d)  All such shares are owned by the King David Trust of which Mr.

Curry is the trustee and Mr. Stokes’ minor children are the beneficiarics. M.
Stokes, the Chainman of the Board, disclaims benef cial ownership of such
shares.

(e) All such shares are owned by Cynthia Glover, trustee, U/A Louise

Glover dated January 10, 1997. Ms. Glover is the wife of Robent J. Glover, a
director of the Company. Mr. Glover is the sole beneficiary and disclaims
beneficial ownership of such shares. In addition, Ms. Glover disclaims

beneficial ownesship of such shares.

(f)  All such shares are owned by The Anchora Company of which Mr. Cordy,
Chief Executive Officer and President of the Company, is the protector. Mr.
Cordy disclaims beneficial ownership of such shares.

(8  Excludes 72,727 shares owned by The Anchora Company, of which Mr.
Cordy is the protector. Mr. Cordy disclaims benefic’l ownership of such

shares.

(h)  Fxcludes 181,818 shares owned by Cynthia Glover, trustee, U/A Louise
Glover dated January 10, 1997 of which Mr. Glover is the sole beneficiary. Mr.
Glover disclaims beneficial ownership of such shares.

(1)  Excludes 454,545 shares owned by the King David Trust of which Mr.
Stokes’ minor children are the beneficiaries. Mr. Stokes disclaims beneficial
ownership of sich shares.
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ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS




On February 16, 1997, Glover Enterprises, Inc., an aate of Roben
J. Glover, a director of the Company, loaned the Company $50.000 to fund
initial start-up costs of the Company. The Company has repaid this Joan.

During the Inception Period, the Company paid a fee of $184,000 10 IS
14, Inc. ("IS 147), a former Delaware corporation which was controlled by
certain of the directors and officers of the Company. The IS 14 fee was
compriscd of compensation for manzgenial, marketing and administrative services
performed by certain of the Company's officers and sales representatives prior
to the establishment of the Company's payrell. 1S 14 has been dissolved, and
the Company will not make any additional payments to IS 14.

Pursuant to Mr. Cordy's employment agreement, The Anchora Company, an
affiliate of Mr. Cordy, purchased 800,000 shares of Common Stock, at a price of
$0.15 per share. In exchange, The Anchora Company gave the Company a $120,000
full recourse promissory note which bears interest al an annual rate of 8.75%.

Mr. Condy guaranteed the promissory note. The principal and interest on the
promissory note are due and payable on the carlier of May 1, 2002 or the

closing of an underwnitten public offering where the Company receives aggregate
nel proceeds of at least §5,000,000.

In December 1997, the Company borrowed approximately $53,000 from Mr.
Cordy to fund certain operating expenses. In February 1998, the Company entered
into the Cordy Note 10 memonalize such boriowing. As of June 30, 1998, the
Cordy Note vas repaid in full.

Certain of the transactions described above may be on terr-s more
favorable to officers, directors and principal sharcholders than u &y could
obtamn in a transaction with an unaffiliated third party. The Company has
adopted a policy requiring that all material transactions between the Company
and its officers, dircctors or other affiliates must: (1) be approved by a
majority of the disinterested members of the Board of Directors of the Company;
and (i1) be on terms no less favorable to the Company than could be obtained
from unafTiliated third parties.

PART IV

ITEM 14. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES AND REPORTS ON FORM
8-K

(AX1)  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company
are filed as a part of this Report and are attached hereto as
pages F-1 through F-15:




Consolidated Balance Sheets as of June 30, 1998 and 1997

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Year Ended June
30, 1998 and for the Period from Inception (January 24,
1997) to June 30, 1997

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Sharcholders' Equity
for the Year Ended June 30, 1998 and for the Pariod from
Inception (January 24, 1997) to June 30, 1997

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Year Ended June
30, 1998 and for the Period from Inception (January 24,
1997) 10 June 30, 1997

Notes 1o Consolidated Financial Statements
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(AX2)  FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Reference is made 10 Note 2 of the Notes 1o the Consolidated
Financial Statements on page F-9. All schedules have been
omitted as they were not required or not applicable or because
the information required to be presented is included in the
Consolidated Financial Statements and the related Notes thereto.

(AX3) EXHIBITS

<TABLE>

<CAPTION>

Exhibit

Number  Exhibit Description

<S> <>

21* Plan of Reorganization of the Company effective as of February 17, 1998.

3l Amended and Restated Asticles of Incorporation of the Company, as amended to date.

32+ Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Company, as amended to date.

4.1 See Exhibits 3.1 and 3.2 for provisions of the Amended and Restated Articles of

Incorporation and Amended and Restated Bylaws defining the rights of holders of Common Stock

of the Cc apany.

42* Specimen Commeon Stock certificate. =
o O Sharcholders Agreement, dated as of September 1, 1997 among the Company and the’
*  boldérs of Class A Common Stock.

44*  Amended and Restated Sharcholders Agreement, dated as of February 18, 1998 among the

and certain holders of its Common Stock.
10.1*  Form of Employment Agreement by and between the Company and certain of its officers.




102*  Employment Agreement by and between the Company and Thomas O. Cordy dated May
1, 1997.
101*  Promissory Note by The Anchora Company in favor of the Company dated as of May 1,
1997 in

the original principal amount of $120,000.
104*  Guarantee by Thomas O. Cordy in favor of the Company dated May 1, 1997.
105*  Form of Independent Sales Representative Agreement by and between the Company and
certain of

its sales representatives.
10.6* Consulting Agreement by and between the Company and Robert P. Kelly dated as of
September

1, 1997.
10.7* Software License Agreement between Summit V. Inc, a subsidiary of Jenkon
International, Inc.

and the Company dated February 2, 1997.
10.8* Software Service Agreement between Summit V. Inc., a subsidiary of Jenkon
intemmationa), lnc. and the Company dated February 2, 1997.
10.9R* Equipment Purchase Agreement between Summit V. Inc., a subsidiary of Jenken
Internztional, Inc. and the Company dated February 2, 1997.
10.10* Agreement for 1-Plus Services between Colorado River Communications Corporation and
the Company dated February 20, 1997.+
10.11R* Sublease Agreement between DowElanco and the Jompany dated February 14, 1997.
10.12* Warchouse lease between Malon D. Mimms and the Company dated March 17, 1997.
10.13*  Warehouse lcase between Malon D. Mimms and the Company dated June 23, 1997.
10.14* Demand Secured Promissory Note dated November 26, 1997 by the Company in favor
of the lenders named on Schedule [ thereto,
10.15R*  Sub-Sublease Agreement between the Company and Simons Engineening, Inc. dated
September 1, 1997
10.16* Demand Promissory Note dated February 28, 1998 by the Company in favor of Thomas
0. Cordy.
10.17*  Form of Stock Purchase Warrant.
10.18  Maxxis Group, Inc. 1998 Stock Option Plan.
10.19  Lease Amendment Agreement dated June 5, 1998 among Malon D. Mimms, the Company
and

Richard Bowers & Co.
10.20 Lease Amendment Agreement dated August 14, 1998 among Malon D. Mimms, the
Compuny and
</TABLE>
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<TABLE>
<S> <C>




Richard Bowers & Co.
21.1* Subsidianies of the Company.

231 Coasent of Arthur Andersen LLP.

241 Power of Attorney (included on signature pages hereof).
27.1 Financial Data Schedule.

</TABLE>

® mErEmEmEmErer———wEr e

" Incorporated by reference to the Company's Registration
Statement on Form S-1 (Registration No. 333-38623).

+ Confidential treatment has been granted for certain confidential
portions of this Exhibit pursuant to Rule 406 under the
Securities Act of 1933, In accordance with Rule 406, these
confidential portions have been omitted from this Exhibit and
filed separately with the Commission.

(B) REPORTS ON FORM 8-K

None.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this Report on Form 10-K
to be s ;ned on its behalf by the undersigne thereunto duly authorized.

MAXXIS GROUP, INC.

September 28, 1998 By: /s/ THOMAS 0. CORDY
Thomas O. Cordy
Chief Exccutive Officer = 7
4 - :
POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW BV ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose




signature appears below constitutes and appoinis jointly and severally, IVEY 1.
STOKES and THOMAS O. CORDY, and each one of them, his atlomeys-in-fact, each
with the power of substitution, for him in any and all capacities, to sign any

and all amendments to this Annual Report (Form 10-K) and 1o file the same, with
exhilits thereto and other documents in connection therewith, with the

Secunties and Exchange Commission, hereby ratifying and confirming all that

each said attomey-in-fact, or his substitute or substitutes, may do or cause

to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Sccurities Exchange Act of 1934,
this Report on Form 10-K has been signed below by the following persons on
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

<TABLE>
<S> <C>
September 28, 1998 's/ IVEY J. STOKES

e L ——

Ivey J. Stokes
Chairman of the Board

September 28, 1998 /s THOMAS O. CORDY

Thomas O. Cordy
Chief Executive Officer, President and Director
(Principal executive officer)

September 28, 1598 /s/ DANIEL McDONOUGH

e

aniel McDonough
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal financial and accounting officer)

September 28, 1998 /s/ JAMES W. BROWN

James W, Brown
Executive Vice President, Secretary and Director
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South Dakota Public Utilities Commission
WEEKLY FILINGS
For the Period of January 21, 1999 through January 27, 1999

i you need a compiete copy of a filing faxed, overnight expressed, or mailed to you,
please contact Delaine Kolbo within five business days of this filing.

ELSS-002

GD93-001

Phone: 605-773-3705. Fax 605-773-3809.
ELECTRIC

In the Matter of the Filing by Big Stone City, South Dakota and Whetstone
Valley Electric Cooperative, Inc. for Approval of Electrical Service Area
Boundanes.

Big Stone City, South Dakota and Whetstone Valley Electric Cooperative,
Milbank, South Dakota, filed for approval by the Commission a Boundary
Agreement in which the parties have come to a mutual agreement relative
10 the south boundary dividing the electric utility custon.ers for Big Stone
City and Whetstone Valley.

Staff Attomey. Karen Cremer
Staff Analyst Martin Bettmann
Date Filed: 01/25/99
intervention Deadine: N/A

GRAIN DEALER

in the | ‘atter of the Receivership of Grain Dealer Bonds of Britton Durum
Corporation.

The South Dakota Public Utilities Commission (Commission) has beer
appointed a Receiver by the Fifth Judicial Circuit Court to take
possession of grain dealer bond proceeds of Britton Durum Corporation,
Britton, South Dakota. The bond company is St Paul Mercury Insurance
Company. The Commission has entered an Order and will publish a
Notice of Hearing in this matter in the Aberdeen American News of
Notica is grven that a heanng will be heid on February 18, 1989, at 1:30
P M., al the Community Room, Rrown County Courthouse, 25 Market
Street, Aberdesn, South Dakota Claimants are encouraged to appear at
this hearing 1o present evidence of ther claims which may include, but be
limited o, such documents as scale tickets, settiement sheets, bad
checiks and other evidence of a sale of gramn to Britton Durum Corporabon
which have not been paid. The Commission's decision as Receiver is
subject to the final approval of the Fifth Circuit Court of the state of South
Dakota and appeal 1o the South Dakota Supreme Court.



TCSS-007

Staff Attomey. Camron Hoseck
Staff: Jeff Lorensen, Director
Transportation and Warehouse Division

TELECOMMUNICATIONS

in the Matter of the Filing by U S WEST Communications, Inc. for
Approval of Negotiated/Arbitrated Terms of Agreement for
Interconnection, Resale, and Unbundied Flements between CCCSD, Inc.
dbe Connect! e U S WEST Comanunications, Inc.

Any party wishing to comment on the agreement may do so by filing
written comments with the Commession and the parties to the agreement
no later than February 10, 1999. Partes to the agreement may file written
responses to the comments within twenty days of service ¢of ..
comments

Staff Attomey. Camrod: Hoseck
Staff Analyst Hartan Best
Date Filed 01/21/99
Comments Due: 02/10/99

in the Matter of the Applicaticn of HIN Telecom, Inc. for a Certificate of
Authonty to Prowvide Local Exchange Senace in South Dakota.

HJIN Telecom, Inc. is a reseller which intends to offer all forms of
nfrastate local exchange services in areas served by any LECs that are
not eligible for a small or nural camier exempbon.

Staff Attomey. Karen Cremer
Staff Analyst Ksith Senger
Date Filed 01/22/99
intervention Date: 02/12/99

in the Matter of the Application of Mavogs Communications, Inc. for a
Certificate of Authority 1o Provide Telecommunications Services in South
Dakota.

Ma=oas Commumicabons, Inc. by their attomeys, notified the Cormiession
of an acquisition of assets from Cherry Communications incorporated to
M=uoos Communicat ons, Inc. and requested that Cherry's Certificate of
Authority be transferred to Maoas Communications, Inc

Staff Attomey. Karen Cremer
Staff Analyst. Harlan Best
Date Fied: 01/26/99
intervention Deadiine: 02/12/99




TCS9-010 In the Matter of the Application of Williams Communications, inc. fora
Certificate of Authority to Provide Telecommunications Services in South
Dalcota.

Williams Communication, inc. intends to provide interexchange switched
voice services primarily to the wholesale market, which consists of other
telecommunications camiers. Williams aiso plans (0 offer intarexchange
private line sorvices.

Staff Attorney. Camron Hoseck
Staff Analyst: Keith Senger
Dats Filad: 01/26/99
lntervention Deadline: 02/12/99
You may receive this Eisting and other PUC sublications via our website o va internet e-mail.
You may subscribe to the PUC mailing list at hitp:/iwww state sd usipuc/
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GERRY. FRIEND & SAPRONOV, LLP RECEIVED

ATTHRENEYTH AT LAW

SUTTE 1450 s 1999.
THREE RAVINIA DRIVE MAR L«
ATLANTA. OEODRULA 303482131
e TH DAXOTA PUBLIC
e 39e-0000 s&:uné COMMISSION

FPArMINDLE (T7T0 350000
EM AL sfslen@gies oom

February 26, 1999
YIA OVERNICHT MAIL
South Dakota Public Utihnes Commission
500 East Capetol Avenue

Pierre, South Dakota 57501-5070

Re:  Supplemental Information Supporting Grant of Transfer of Authorization from
Cherry Communications Incorporated 1o Maxxis Communications, Inc.
(“Supplement™)In Connection With the Joint Application of Cherry Communications
Incorporated, WAXS INC., Maxus Group. Inc. and Maxxis Communications, Inc.
for Approval of Acquisition of Assets and for Assignment of Authorization (“Joint
Application™) TC99-009

Dear Sir or Madam:

Pursuant to the 1equest of Mr. Harlan Best, Utility Analyst for the South Dakota Public
Utilities Commission, enclosed are the original and eleven (11) copies of the Supplement. Please
file the Supplement in your usual fashion 2nd return one (1) file-stamped copy 10 us in the enclosed

envelope.

If you have any questions or comments, please call the undersigned.

Sincerely,

Enc.

cC: Maxxis Group, Inc.
(with enclosure)
Harlan Best
(with enclosure)
Charles A. Hudak, Esq.

(without enclosure)




STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA

BEFORE THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
OF THE STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA

DOCKET NO. TC99-009

:
2
;
§
7%
35!

COMES NOW Maxxis Communications, Inc. (the “Applicant™), a Georgia corporation,
parssant 1o Section 20:10:24:02, Section 20:10:24:03 and Section 20:10:24:04.01 of the Administrative
Rules of South Dakota, and herchy provides 1o the South Dakota Public Utilities Commission
(“Comemissic 1) with further information supporting the assignment, authority, consent and approval
of the sale and transfer of Cherry Communications Licorporated’s (“Cherry™) existing authorization to
Muaxxis, and subsequenily, to Maxxis Communications.'! In compliance with the Commission’s Rules
and Regulations, the following information is provided.

L DESCRIFTION OF THE APPLICANT
I Apglicast’s Name and Address. Applicant’s correct name and address is:
Maxxis Commumnications, Inc.
1901 Montreal Road, Suitc 108

Tucker, Georgia 30084
Tel: (770) 696-6343

"This transfer of authority was previously requested in this matter in the Joint Application
of Chary Commumications Incorporated, WAXS INC., Maxxis Group, Inc. and Maxxs
Commmmications, Inc. for Approval of Acguisition of Assets and for Assignment of Authorization
(“Jomt Application™).




Applicant will do business in South Dakota under the name Maxxis Communications, Inc.

2 Applicant’s Corporate Structure. Applicant is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Maxxis Group,
Inc. ("Maxxis Group™), a Georgia corporation located at 1901 Montreal Road, Suite 108, Tucker,
services throughout the United States via network marketing. A copy of Applicant’s Certificate to
Transact Business as a Foreign Corporation in the State of South Dakota is attached hereto at Exhibit
“A”". The name and address of Applicant’s registered agent in South Dakota is:

Maxxis Communications, Inc.
c/o Corporations Service Company

503 South Piermre Street
Pierre, South Dakota 57501

L Contact Information for Complaints and Regulatory Matters. The officer of Applicant to
whom the Commission is requested 1o direct cormespondence or complaints is:

Thomas O. Cordy
President and Chief Executive Officer
Maxxis Communications, Inc.
1901 Montreal Road, Suite 108
Tucker, Georgia J0084
Tel: (770) 696-6343

with a copy to:

Charles A. Hudak, Esq.
Michael K. Stewart, Esq.
Gerry, Fnend & Sapronov, LLP
Three Ravinia Drive, Suite 1450
Atlanta, Georgia 30346-2131
Tel: (770) 399-9500
Fax: (770) 395-0000

Mr. Hudak or Mr. Siewast should be contacied in connection with questions regarding Applicant’s
pencral operation and management, as well as any tariff-related matiers.

Customers may contaci Applicant’s customer service representatives regarding a broad range
of service matters, inchuding: (i) the types of services offered by Applicant and the rates associated with

2




such scrvices; (i) monthly billing statements; and (iii) problems or concemns relating 10 a customer’s
service. Applicant’s toll-free number for customer assistance is: | (800) 270-3788. Applicant's
customer service representatives will be able to assist cusiomers twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven
(7) days per week.

Applicant is currently authorized to provide, or has applied for authority 1o provide, intrastate,
interexchange telecommunications resale services in all fifty states and in the District of Columbia.
Applicant has not been denied authority 10 provide intrastate lelecommunications services in any state
and has not been subject lo any regulatory penalucs for violation of state or federal ielecommunications
statutes, rules or regulations (e.g. slamming).

4 Applicant’s Federal Tax Idestification Number. Applicant’s federal tax identification

5 Bescrigaion of Proposed Services, Marketies and Billing Procedures. Applicant seeks
suthority ' resell the services of other certificated common cammiers for the purpose of providing
switched, intrastate. interl ATA and intral ATA toll (as permitted by the Commission), voice
telec ameucations services throughout the entire State of South Dakota. Specifically, Applicant
requests avthonty 1o offer durect dial (¥1+7) ser ices, measured toll services, loll-free (c.g.. 8007,
“8387) ser ces, travel card services and prepaid calling card services in the State of South Dakota.
Apnlicant will provide such wclecommumications services through resale of switched voice services of
certificated, facilitics-based camiers (c.g., MCT/WorldCom, Inc.). As a switched reseller, Applicant will
not own or control any transmission facilities, but instead will utilize its own swiiching equipment along
with transmission services of or.: or more certificated long distance camiers.

Applicant intends 10 market the proposed iclccommunications services exclusively through

Maxxis Group's network of “independent associstes™ (“[As™). The IAs will market Applicant’s




services to persons with whom the 1As have an ongeing relationsnip, such as family members, fricnds

and business associates. Notably, Maxxis Group's IAs will not he required to purchase inventory and

will not be subject to sales quotas or account collection matters. Copies of Applicant's promotional

materials are attached at Exhibit “E™.

Applicant mntends to bill its customers directly for long distance telecommunications re e

services. The charges, based upon the rates which will be set forth in Applicant’s taniff, Applicant's

nan.c, and its toll free telephone number for customer assistance will appear on all monthly customer
statements. In addition, customers may contact Applicant’s customer service representatives regarding
a broad range of service maticrs, including: (i) the types of services offered by Applicant and the rates
associated with such services; (ii) monthly billing statements; and (iii) problems or concems pertaining
to the customer’s current service. Applicant’s customer service representatives will be available to
assist customers twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven (7) days per week.

6. Tarifl. Applicant proposes to offer intrastate, interLATA and intralL ATA toll (as permitted by

the Commission) telecommunications resale services within the State of South Dakota as described in

its proposed tariff attached hereto at Exhibit “B”. Applicant understands that the services it proposes
to offer have been classified by the Commission as “competitive”™, a d thus, Applicant is not submitting
cost support in connection with the rates contained in its tanf¥ as directed by Commission Rule
20:10:24:02(13).

HI. APPLICANT'S TECHNICAL, MANAGERIAL
AND FINANCIAL QUALIFICATIONS

7. Technical and Mansgerial Fxpertise. Applicant’s principal officers have the requisite
technical and managerial experience 1o operale as a telecommunications reseller in the State of South

Dakota. Brief biographical statements conceming Applicant’s management personnel are attached

hereto at Exhibit “C”. Applicant is currently certificated, or has filed applications, to resell long



distance telecommunications services in all fifty states. Applicant has not been denied authority to

provide intrastatc, long distance telecommunications services by any state regulatory authority.

8 Fimamcial Capability. Applicant’s financial statements, which demonstrate its financial
capability to provide telecommunications services in the State of South Dakota, are attached hereto at
Exhibit “D”. In addition, as a wholly-owned subsidiary of Maxxis Group, Applicant has the assurance
of its parent that it will be provided the financial resources necessary to operate its telecommunications
resale business in a continuous manner. For the period of January 24, 1997 1o June 30, 1997 and for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998, Maxxis generated »agregate revenues of 7uproximately $2,691,000
and $6,991.000, respectively.’

9. Compiisace With Laws. By submitting this application, and by participating in all proceedings
necessary 1o effect certification, Applicant hereby asserts its willingness and ability to comply with all
rules and reguiations that the Commission may impose subject to South Dakota law as now or hereafler
enacled. Accovdingly. by this application, Applicant secks such approval and authority as may be
required for Applicant to provide intrastate resale of long distance telecommunications services
throughout the entire State of South Dakota.

10.  Procedure for Verifying Castomer Ordered Chaages. Applicant has not been denied
authority to provide intrastate telecommunications services in any state and has not been subject 1o any
regulatory penaltics for violation of state or federal telecommunications statutes, rules or regulations
(cg.. slamming). Copies of Applicant’s guidelines to prevent slamming and proposed letter of
antl. , zation were previously filed with the Commission in the Joint Application at Exhibit “F™,

*A copy of Maxxis” Securities and Exchange Commission Form 10-K was filed previously
with the Commission in the Joint Application at Exhibit “E".

5




IV. ARGUMENT IN SUPPORT OF APPLICATEUN
11.  Public Interest, Convenience and Necessity. Commission approval of Applicant’s Application
is in the public interest. Specifically, grant of Applicunt’s Application will increase competition for
customers of intrastate long distance telecommumications services within the State of South Dakota.
Competition, in tum, will encourage efforts by other certificated telecommunications providers to
bro- “=n the range of choices for South Dakota customers of long distance telecommunications services.

Applicant submits that, based on the information supplied herein, its proposed service offerings will

provide South Dakota cons»mers with high quality telecommunications products and services at

rcasonable rates while encouraging innovation and efficiency among all providers of
telecommunications products and services in the state.

WHEREFORE, Applicant respectfully requests that the Commission:

(1)  Issue an order approving the assignment, authority, consent and approval of the sale and
transfer of Cherry's existing authonization to Maxxis Group, and subsequently, to Applicant, as
requested in the Joint Application in this matter; and

(2)  Grant any other and additional relicf that the Com: dssion may deem just and proper.

Respectfully submitied this2& day of 2l 195

A. HUD.

é K. STEWART %

Three Ravinia Drive

Saite 1450

Atlanta GA 30346-2131

(770) 199-9500

COUNSEL FOR MAXXIS COMMUNICATIONS, INC.

&







OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

I, JOYCE HAZELTINE, Secretary of Stales of tha State
of South Dakota, hereby certify that the Application for
a Certificate of Authority of MAXXIS CONNUNICATIONS, INC.
(GA) to transact business Iin this stata duly signaed and
verified pursusnt to the provisions of the South Dakota

on Acts, have bean recaived in this office and
are found to conform to law.

ACCORDINGLY and by virtue of the authority vestsd in
ma by law, I hereby issue this Cartificats of Authority
and attach hereto a duplicate of the application to
transact business in this state.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have
harsunto set my hand and
affixed the Great Seal of tha
State of South Dakota, at
Pierre., the Capital, this

26, 1999.

TN A

MY
A A

ﬁh

b
AL A
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(6) The soet ke o tm--u-_hd-mwﬁ--hdhhn
503 South Pierze Street, PFiezze, 3cct= Sakota TpCode 57381

and the name of it proposed mgracred agrm o the Sose of South Do o ey addwms m “SISTIST.OS Sesvoce [oemary

(7) The purposes =*-=h & proposes 1o pursee @ the Mascacnon of besees @ e Sooe of Sosh Doloss s e specc pucpose)
TELECOMMUNICATION SERVICES

(8) The names and respeciive addresses of its directors and officers are-

MName Officer Title

See attached officers/directors rider

(9) The aggregate number of shares which it has authority to issue, itemized by classes, par value of shares, shares without par value,
and series if any, within & class is:

Number Par value per share or statement that
of shares shares are without par value

1,000 .01




(10) The aggregate pumber of its issued shares, itemized by classes, par value of shuscs, shares without par value, and series, if any,

aclass, is:
Number ' L Par value per share or statement that
of shares Class Series shares are without par value
1,000 common _ .10} o

(1) The amount of its stated capital is 3 10 00
Shares issued times per value equals stated capital. In the case o/ no par value stock, stated capital is the consideration received for
the issuec. shares.

(12) This application is accompanied by a CERTIFICATE OF FACT or a CERTIFICATE OF GOOD STANDING duly
acknowledged by the Secretary of State or other officer having custody of corporzie reconds in the siaic or country under whose laws
il is incorporaied.

{13) That such corporation shail not directly or indirectly combine or make any contract with v incorporated company, foreign or
domestic, through their stockbolders or the trusiees or assigns of such stockholders, or with any o partnership or association of
persons, oF in any manner whatever to fix the prices, limit the production or regulate the transportation of any product or commodity
80 38 10 prevent competition in such prices, production or transportation or W0 establish excessive prices therefor.

(14) That such corporation, as » consideration of its being permitted 1o begin or continue doing business within the State of South
Dakota, will comply with all the laws of the said State with regard 1o foreign corporations.

The application must be tigned, in the presence of a notary public, by the chairman of the board of discctors, or by the president or
by another officer.

I DECLARE AND AFFIRM UNDER THE PENALTY OF PERJURY T THIS APF. ICATION IS IN ALL THINGS, TRUE

(Signatare} panTEL mcmou&(

(Title) Secretary

STATE OF oy n z ; F/'
oF ;
1, Crma S&dmn air .aw#m.hmmﬁﬁmﬁgﬁrd "ol | |

personally appeared before e DANIEL MCDONOUGH who by me first duly swom, declared dunt bedsd-.
s the JRSLRSALY of MAXX1S COMMUNICATIONS, INC. . H""Wu‘
efficer of e corpocation, and the therein containgd are true. N &
Moy Pudec, euinii Coway,

Wy Cammission Expirss Aug. 27, 2002

My Commimon B

BN ENESE SRS E RSB SR RENET SRS E SRR NSRS RSN CEASESFSARENIEAI S EEASARAARRNIRESSAIIERRREE @

The Consent of Appointment below must be signed by the reglstered egent lated la oumber dx.



ngﬂbihuuﬁ by the Registered Agent

The Consent of Registersd Agent portion must be signed by the Souin Dakota registered agent.

Mail the application, cxuficate, and filing fee to the Secretary of State, Corporste Division, 500 E. Capitol Avenue, Pierre, SD
5$7501-3070, The duplicate and 3 ntnmnln of Authority will be returned for your reconds,
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Res.

Bus.
Res.

Res.

Bus.
Res.

Name :
Ticle:
Addr.:

S55N:

Title:

Addr. :
S5N:

Hame :
Title:

"

SSH;
Hame :
Title:
SSN:
Name :
Title:
Addr. :
Addr. :
55N:

OFFICERS/DIRECTORS RIDER
MAXXIS COMMUNICATIONS, INC.
Thomas 0. Cordy

President/CEQ/Director
1901 Montreal Road, Suite 108, Tucker, GA 30084

.3 3770 village Drive, SW, Atlanta, GA 30331 ’

256-57-63397

Patrick J. Lentz

Executive V. President/Director

1901 Montreal Road, Suite 108, Tucker, GA 30084
1818 NOrth Chestnut Grove Drive, Marietta, GA 30066
255-39-7478

Daniel McDonough

Secretary/CFO/Director

1901 Montreal Road, Suite 108, Tucker, GA 30084
6320 Blackberry Hill, Norcrcss, GA 30092
070-40-0789

Alvin Curry

Director

1501 Montreal Road, Suite 108, Tucker, GA 30084

£231 E. Memorial Dr., #226, Stone Mountain, GA 30083
4.0-94-3905

Larry W. Gates, II

Director

1901 Montreal Road, Suite 108, Tucker, GA 30084
875 Lawrenceville-Suwanee Rd., Ste. 310-121
Lawrenceville, GA 30043

436-33-8695







: Intrastaic Telecommumicatsons Services
Maxxis Comrmumcstions, Inc. Soath Dakota Public Utihties Commussion Teniff No. |

Oniginal Page |

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES

Applying to Resale of Intrastate
Common Camer Communications
Services Between Points in the
State of South Dakota
AND
CONTAINING RULES AND REGULATIONS

GOVERNING SERVICE

This tariiT is on file with the South Dakota Public Utilitics Commission and copics may be inspected, during
normal business hours, st Maxxis Communications, Inc. 1901 Montreal Road, Suite 108, Tucker, Georgia

30634
ALL MATERIALS IN THIS TARIFF ARE NEW
Lasuadt Efiective:
By: Thomas 0. Cordy, President

1901 Montreal Road, Saite 108
- Tucker, GA 30084




Maxxis Comrmunications, Inc.

Intrastate Telecommunications Services

South Dakota Public Utilitnes Commission TerifT No, 1

Original Page 2

SHEET

L - T

Check List

SHEET

34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41

Tarifl sheets wre effective as of the date shown. Revised sheets as named below contain all changes
from the original tanifT that are in effect on the date thereof.




Intrastate Telecommumcations Services
Maxxis Communications, Inc. South Dakota Public Utilities Commission TanifT No. 1
Original Page 3

(©)

D)

(M)

8.8 338 3

Symbols
Whenever tariff sheets are revised, changes will be identified by the following symbols:
To signify changed regulation.
To signify deleted or discontinued rate, regulation or condition.
To signify a change resulting in an increase to a customer’s bill.

To signify material moved from or to another part of tanifl with no change in text, rate, rule or
-

To signify new rate, regulation, condition or shect.

To signify a change resulting in a reduction to a customer’s hill.
To signify change in text but no change in rate, rule or condition.
To signify a reference to other published tariffs.

To signify a comection.

e R S e

Tucker, GA 30084




Intrastate Telecommunications Services

Maxxis Communications, Inc. South Dakota Public Utihties Commission Tariff No. |
gimmd Page 4
TABLE OF CONTENTS

1 TECHNICAL TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS .........ccciiieetsnnvacnsssssssnnns 8
2 RITLES AND RBOULATIONS .. oo inensinssommsns vivosvisssoaiiisansimmesies 14
21 Undertaking ofthe Compny .......cccc0nuvversassssssnssnssssssasssssnssns 14
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S8 R G vt sa s e na R N S SR A A AR e AR DA e e 16
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i A 1 A R P o R ST S e S A e e (e e 19

28 ADVEROD PEIIETES o .o vsinvinvsionavaospunssessespomns e ssenusssev ke srs ey 19
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- T T L e i A T R T e TP RS e P g 2100 20

211 Indemnification by Customer .........cccccvivraiiissnruccsssnssnsnssnnnas 21

212 Customer Premises EQUIpMent ("CPE™) ....ccicvvuintnernnosnassnssssesnsnes 21

R T e e 8 P PR T oy 22
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0 TRIRERRIEIINL o oo o550 5 i A R B R ST 00 BB B b i B e B S 23

200 DRNCORERMIND i siiiiiiinecani s SRR S b e e 24

217 RestOraliON Ol SCIVICES +.vvvvcvucvnninsansisnssssssnnsnsesnsansasssssnsnns 24

e R e OO UL SN o T OGE L D o U M D 25

219 Lonbastion o LaabiBY . ..ouccicisveaiinmssnananisisnansvansnissosmaasss 25

- R A e o T N B P A e SR A AT R A oS 27

221 CreditsandCredit Allowances .............cccveicniracncnasnssssssnnnnnns 28

242 DI S VICE TN « < oo oo iavae énois s ivanssmemsanes s i nenssse s Tas 29

LIS TOREMNEEIG . ..iiveini vaians il s e R e P 29

Eol OO PYUIIIIOR . « o ¢ oo vo-mvnmans omasron s essssssssssssesssssnesreyovis 29
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By T T el R R SN I e S | e e 30

3 DESCRIPTIONOF SERVICES ........... AR AR e R e R Rk Y 31
3.1  Description of Services ......... S S R N AR R RPRPRPL- |

32 TimingofCalls .................. 5, Soe. i B i A Liemes 35
Lssmed: Effective

By: Thamas O. Cordy, President
Maxxis Communications, lnc.
1901 Monotreal Road, Suiie 108
Tucker, GA 30084




Intrastate Telecommunications Services

Maxxs Commumnicatons, loc South Dakota Public Utlities Commission Tanff No. 1
Original Page 5

4 B LR st i e R T RS e B i s o o o o R e i 36
Al  REDER TR TR0 - oo i s vvsmsvibhmewmnn s vs s misiis i memi se ey 36
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43 ReCOMNECHON For . ..o voviviiiensntanianacsassasnanonsnssnscsssnenasssses 36

44 TP o o i o i ST TR A T R i B SR N e A e 36
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TARIFF FORMAT SHEET

A Page Numhering Page numbers appear in the upper-right comer of the page. Pages are numbered
sequentially. However, new pages are occasionally added 1o the taniT. These new pages arc identified in
decimal format. For example, a new page added between pages 34 and 15 would be 34.1.

B.  Page Revision Numbers. Revision numbers also appear in the upper-right comer of the page. These
numbers are used to determine the most current page on file with the South Dakota Public Utilities
Commission. For example, the 4th revised Page 34 cancels the third revised Page 34. Because of deferrals,
notice penods, eic., the most current page number on file with the Commiission is not always the tanifT page
in effect. User should consult the check page for the page currently in effect.

C.  Bamgraph Numbering Sequence. There are nine levels of paragraph coding. Each level of coding
is subscrvient to its next higher level of coding.
2

21

21.1.

21L1A

2.LLALL

21L.LAL(a)

2.1LLA L (a)l

2.1.1.A 1 (2).14)

2LLAL(a)L{ix1)

D. (Check List of Effective Pages  When a tanfT filing is made with the Commission, an updated Check
List of Effective Pages (“Check List™) accompanies the tanfT filing. The Check List lists the pages
contained in the tanfT, with a cross reference to the current revision number. When new pages are added,
the . ueck List is changed to reflect the revision. Al revisions made in a given filing are designated by an
astenisk (*). There will be no other symbols used on the Check List if these are the only changes made to
it (L., the format, eic.). The User should refer to the latest Check List to find out if a particular page is the
most cunent page on file with the Commissior

By: Thomas O. Cordy, President
Maxxis Comrnunicatons, Inc.
1901 Mootreal Road, Suite 108

Toecker, GA 30084
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INTRODUCTION

This tarifT (“TarifT") contains the regulations and rates applicable to the furnishing of intr state,
common carrier communications service by Maxxis Communications, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as
“Maxxis” or the “Company™) within the State of South Dakota.

The regulations govermning the provision and use of services offered under this Tariff are sct forth
in Section 2. Service descriptions and rates are set forth in Sections 3 and 4, respectively.

By: Thomas 0. Cordy, President
1901 Moatreal Road, Suite 108
Tucker, GA. 30084




Certain terms used throughout this tan (T are defined below.
Access Code

“Access Code™ means a sequence of numbers tha., when dialed, connects a Customer to the Carrier
associated with that sequence.

Agenl

“Agent™ means a person, finn, company, corporation, or other entity who is authorized to distribute
Services to Customers or Users on the Company’s behalf.

Authorization Cod
“Authorization Code™ means 2 numerical code, one or more of which are assigned to a Customer to

enable it 10 access the Service provided by the Company and to identify the Customer for billing
purposes.

Camier

“Camier™ means a communications common camier authorized by the Commission or by the FCC
1o provide communications service 1o the public.

. W
“Commission™ means the South Dakota Public Utilities Commission.
Credit(s)

“Credit(s)" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.21 hereof.

Credit Allowances

“Credit Allowances™ has the meaning set forth in Section 2.21 hercof.
Credit Limi

“Credit Limit™ means a credit imit placed on Customer’s monthly consumption of Service pursuant
1o Section 2.10 heveof.
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Technical T { Abbreviati ( ]
wMStomer

“Customer™ means the person, firm, company, corporation, or other entity that (i) pursuant to a
Service Order, orders Service(s) under this Tariff, (ii) purchases a Prepaid Calling Card from the
Company or its Agent, (ii. ) prepays the Company for use of the Services via a Prepaid Calling Card
up o a pre-established credit limit, or (iv) accesses the Service by dialing the Company’s Access
Code.

Day

“Day™ means a period of time from 8:00 A.M. to (but not including) 5:00 P.M. Monday through
Friday, as measured by local time at the location from which the call is originated.

Evening

“Evening” means a period of time from 5:00 P.M. to (but not including) 11:00 .M., Sunday through
Fruhymdnymdmmg Holidays as measured by local time at the location from which the call

is originated.

ECC

“FCC™ means the Federal Communications Commission.

Governmental Authonity

“Govermnmental A: “hority” means any regulatory, judicial, administrative, or other domestic federal,
state or municipal governmental authority (including without limitation the Commission) having
jurisdiction over the Company, over any Other Provider, or over the provision of Services hereunder.
Holidays

“Holidays™ means all Company-specified holidays: New Year's Day (January 1), Independence Day
(July 4), Thanksgiving Day, Labor Dav and Christmas Day (December 25).

By: Thomas O. Cordy, President

1901 Montreal Road, Suite 108
Tucker, GA 30084
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Inbound Toil-Free Service
“Inbound Toll-Free Service™ means the Inbound Toll-Free Service described at Section 3.1.2 hereof.
Interruption

“Interruption”™ means the disruption of, or removal of & circuit from, Service such that the Service
becomes unusable by User for a continuous period of thirty (30) minutes or more.

LEC
“LEC” means a Carrier authorized by a state Governmental Authority to provide commumications
service within one or more domestic local teiephone exchanges.
Lacal Access and Transport Arca (CLATA™)
wmﬂTmm“MThﬁmammmbyhu&
Dustrict Coun for the District of Columbia in Civil Action No. 82-0192, within which s LEC
» e 2
Mini Service Period (“MSP”)
mmwmmumwﬂofﬁEMMaM
kcs Service ordered under Service Orders under this Tanff
Night/Weskend CN/Wkd™)
“Night/Weckend™ or “N/Wkd™ means 2 period of time from 11:00 P.M. to (but not including) 8:00
AL Monday through Friday, any time on Saturday, and all day Sundsy except 5:00 PM. to (but 0
noi including) 11:00 P.M., as measare’ by local time at the location from which the call is ;
orig nated.
One Plus Service
“One Plus Scrvice™ means the One Plus Sesvice described at Section 3.1.1 hereof.

By: Thomas O. Cordy, President

1901 Montreal Road, Suie- 108
Tecker, GA 30084
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Other Providers

“Other Providers™ means any Carriers or other service providers whose services or facilities are
‘~anected 1o, or used by, the Company in providing the Services.

Performance Failure

“Performance Failure™ means any disruption, degradation, or failure of Service, including without

limitation any Interruptio:: (but excluding Scheduled Interruptions), any installation failure or delzy,
or any mistake, delay, omission, ermor or other defect in the Service or in the provision thereof.

Preasid Calling €

“Prepaid Calling Card™ means a calling card or other tangible item which (i) contains an
Authonzation Code and an Access Code, (1) is supplied by the Company or its Agents, and (iii)
permits a User to use the Services up to an amount prepaid 1o (or up to a credit limit pre-established
by the Customer with) the Company.

Regulation(s)

“Regulation(s)” means any and all law(s), rule(s), regulation(s) (including without limitation those
sci forth in this Tanff), order(s), policy or policies, ruling(s), judgment(s), decree(s) or other
determination(s) which are made by the Commission or by . 1y other Governmental Authority or
which arise under any federal, state, local, foreign or international treaty, law, statute, utility code,
ordinance, rule, order or decree and which are applicable to the Services or to any provision of this
TaniT

Resp-Org

“Resp-Org” or Responsible Organization™ shall mean the entity that has responsibility for the
management of toll-free telephone numbers in the Service Management System (“SMS”) dstabase,
including maintaining Customer records in the SMS and accessing the SMS: (a) 10 scarch and
reserve toll-free telephone numbers; and (b) to create and maintain toll-free telephone number
Customer records, including call processing records.
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Schoduled Iniemmuption

“Scheduled Interruption™ means an Interruption which has been scheduled by the Company in
advance for maintenance, lesting, or other administrative purposes.

Senaice(s)

“Sarvice(s)” means the Company’s communications commor carricr service(s) provided under this
Tanff.

Service Oxder

“Secrvice Order™ means a Company designated form used from time to time by Customer for
ordenng Service hercunder or for acquining Prepaid Calling Cards.

IDD

“TDD™ means a Telecommunications Device for the Deal.

Tei R

“Telecommunications™ means the transmission of voice communications or, subject to the
transmission capabilities of the Service, the transmission of data, facsimile, signaling, metering, or

Termination (Termi

“Tem aation™ (or “Terminate™) mecans discontinuance of (to discontinue) Service, either at
Customer’s request, or by the Company in accordance with Regulations.
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Travel Card Service

“Travel Card Service™ means the Travel Card Services described at Section 3.1.3 hereof,

Liscr

“User” means (i) a Customer, or (ii) any person, firm, company, corporation, or other entity who is
authorized by the Customer to use Service under this Tariff, or who lawfully acquires a Prepaid
Calling Card from a Customer or an Agent. For purposes of illustration, a User includes any person
to whom the Customer sells or gifts a Prepaid Calling Card.

By: Thomas O. Cordy, Presidest
c R

1501 Montreal Rosd, Suite 108
Tucker, GA 30084
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The Company is a reseller of intrastate communications cOmmOon CAITIEr SEIVICes.
21 Lndernalong of the Company

2.1.1 The Company shall exercise its best efforts 1o provide Services to Users between any
and all points described herein pursuant to the terms and conditions set forth in this
TanfL

21.2 Scrvices ondered by Customers under Service Orders will be made available for
Users’ use as soon as practicable afler the Company's receipt of said Service Order.
In the event of a conflict or inconsistency between the terms of a Service Order and
those of this Tariff, the latter shall govern.

2.1.3 The obligations of the Company to provide Services under this Tari T are subject to
the following: (i) availability, procurement, construction, and maintenance of
facilities (including without limitation those facilities of Other Providers); (ii)
interconnection to Other Providers' services or facilities as required; (iii) any
applicable Credit Limit; or (iv) receipt of any applicable advance payment or

Deposit.

2.1.4 The Company reserves the right: (i) to discontinue or temporarily suspend Service
to or from a location where the necessary facilities or equipment are not available
under terms and conditions reasonably acceptable to the Company; and (ii) to block
Service to any User location or to any Authorization Code, without any liability
whatsocver, in the event that the Company detects or reasonably suspects cither (a)
fraudulent or unlawful use of the Services at or by means of said location or
Authonization Code, or (b) consumption of Service in excess of any applicable Credit
Limit or advance payment. Services may not be available from certain coin-operated
or other pay telephones located on prisons, military bases and colleges for reasons
including, but not necessarily limitad 10, the detection of fraudulent use of Services
at those locations.

By: Thomas O, Cordy, President
1901 Monircal Road, Suite 108
Tucker, GA 30084
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22

5 inility and 1}

22.1

Services may be used by Users for any lawful purpose, subject 1o the terms and
conditic as set forth herein and in any applicable Service Order. Subiect to the
limitstions and conditions set forth in this Tanfl, Services are available for use
twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven (7) days per week.

Customer is solely responsible for (i) prevention of unauthorized, unlawful or
fraudulent use of or access o Services; and (ii) administration and non-disclosure of
any Authorization Codes provided by Company to Customer.

The Company’s sole responsibility with respect to Travel Card Services is 10 make
Services available 1o Users in accordance with Section 3.1.3 of this TanfE
The Company's solc responsibility with respect to provision of Savices n
connection with Prepaid Calling Cards is to make Services available 1o Users using
such Prepaid Calling Cards in accordance with Section 3.1.4 of this Tanfl.

Compliance

23.1

232

The Services may not be used for any unlawful purpose whatsoever.

The Company and Customer shall (and Customer shall cause User 10) comply with
all applicable Regulations.

By: Thomas O. Condy, President

Maxyn Comemanications, Inc.

1901 Montreal Rood, Saine 108
Tocker, GA 30084
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24  Abuse. Abuse of the Services is prohibited. The following activities constitute abuse:

24.1 Using the Service to make calls which might reasonably be expected to frighten,
abuse, torment, or harass anothe:;, or

242 Using the Service in violation of the non-interference and signal quality restrictions
set forth in Section 2.13.3; or

243 Acquiring or reserving an 800, 888 or 877 telephone number provided by the
Company for the primary purpose of sclling, brokering, bartening or relcasing it to
another party for a fee or other consideration; or

244 Using the Service (or any other telephone number advertised or widely understood
1o be toll free in connection with the Service) in any of the following ways:

244A With the exception of circumstances where the calling party has a
presubscription or compareble arrangement or discloses a credit or
charge card number during the call, in any manner that would result
in: (a) assessment of a charge for completing an 800, 888 or 877 call
on the calling party or on the subscriber to the line from where the
800, 888 or 877 call originated; (b) connection of the calling party to
a pay-per-call service; or (c) assessment of a charge on the calling
party for information conveyed during the toll free call; or

244B Calling the calling party back collect for the provision of audio or
data information services, simultaneous voice conversation services
or products.
25  Call Biocking

Notwithstanding any other provision of this TanfT, the Company may block calls which: (i)
are made 10 or from certain countries, citics, or central office (“NXX™) exchanges, or (1)
make use of certain Authorization Codes, as the Company, in its sole opinion and discretion,
deems reasonably necessary to prevent unlawful or fraudulent use of Services.
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26.1

262

263

264

265

Other than prepaid services, charges for Services will be billed to Customer on a
monthly (30 day) basis, in arrears, based on the Users’ actual usage. Customers will
not be charged for uncompleted calls.

All amounts . ‘ated on cach monthly invoice are due and payable immediately upon
Customer’s receipt thereol; provided, however, that charges incurred for Services
obtained via Prepaid Calling Cards will be first debited against the balance of the
amount (if any) prepaid to the Company.

Invoices unpaid after thirty (30) days shall incur a monthly finance charge on the
unpaid balance at a rate equal to the lesser of one and one-half percent (1.5%) or the
maximum rate permitted by law.

Except as otherwise limited by Regulation, Customer shall be respounsible for
payment of all charges, whether authorized or not, for any and all use of or access to
Services provided to Users, including without limitation any unauthorized, unlawfil
or fraudulent use or access. Customer’s charges for Travel Card or Prepaid Calling
Card calls arc subject 10 any applicabic limitations sstablished by any Regulation.

Except as otherwise provided herein, the Company, at its sole option, may Terminate
Services in the event Customer fails 1o pay any invoice within thirty (30) calendar
days afier the due date siated thereon, subject 1o written notice and to any other
applicable Commission Regulations. Notice, for purposes of this Section 2.6.5, is
10 be deemed effective upon mailing of written notice, postage prepaid, to Customer’s
last known address. Termination of Services by the Customer or the Company for
any r son whatsocver will not relieve Customer of its payment obligations
hercunder for all Service charges incurred by Customer through the dste of
Termination. Termination by Customer for purposes of this Section 2.6.5 will be
decmed effective five (5) business days following the date of Company’s recet of
Customer’s Termination notice. Customer will be liable for all costs of collection
hereunder, including without limitation reasonable attorney’s fees. Any invoice for
Services not disputed in writing by Customer within ten (10) days afier receipt
thereof is 1o be deemed conclusively correct and binding upon the Customer.
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2.6  Billing and Payments {(conL )
26.6 Payphone Compensation Surcharge In order to recover the Company's expenses o

2.6.7

comply with the FCC's pay telephone compensation plan effective on October 7,
1997 (FFF 97-371), an undiscountable per call charge is applicable to all intrastate
calls that originate from any pay telephone used to access the Company’s Services.
This surcharge, is in addition to standard tariffed usage charges and any applicable
service charges and surcharges associated with the Company’s Service. Pay
telephones include coin-operated and coinless phones owned by local telephone

companics, independent companics and other interexchange camriers. The payphone
mmﬁmﬂwtmuﬂmlﬁedullmdmymnmdcdlu;.mngﬂu
“#" symbol). Whenever possible, Lthe payphone surcharge will appear on the same
invoice containing the usage charges (or the surcharged call. In cases where proper
pay telephone coding digits are not transmitted to the Company prior to completion
of a call, the payphone surcharge may be billed on a subsequent invoice afier the
Company has obtained information from a carrier that the originating station is an
cligible pay telephonc. The payphone surcharge docs not apply to calls placed from
pay telephones at which the Customer pays for service by inserting coins during the
progress of the call.

Toll Free Number Portability. If a Customer accumulates undisputed delinquent
charges, the Company reserves the right not to honor that Customer’s request for a

change in service, including a request for Resp-Org change, until such charges are
paid in full.

Effective:

lmlﬂzmullmd,mmﬂ
Tocker, GA 30084
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2.7

28

Taxes

2.7.1 Al federal, state, and local excise, sales, use and similar taxes, will be billed by the
Company as scparate linc items on Customer’s invoice, and, except as otherwise set
forth in Sections 2.7.2 and 3.1.4.A hercol, are not included in any quoled rates
described or contained in this TanfT.

2.7.2 The Company reserves the right to assess a surcharge on Customer’s charges for
outbound Services terminating at, or inbound Services onginating from, locations or
addresses i those states levying, or asserting a right to levy, a gross receipts tax or
similar assessment on the Company’s operations or on intrastate access charges
incurred by the Company in such state(s). The surcharge will be calculated pro rata
based on the amount Customer’s total monthly charges for Services provided to and
billed to a Customer’s location or Authorization Code in such state(s) bears to the
Company's total monthly receipts subject to said tax or assessment in such state(s).
The surcharge will appear as a line item on Customer’s invoice.

Advance Payments

The Company may, at its sole option and discretion, require that any Customer having a
history of late payments for the Services or whose credit history eitier 1s unsatisfactory (in
the Company’s sole opinion) or is not established to the Company’s reasonable satisfaction
to make advance payments from time to time for futurr consumption of Services. The
amount of each such advance payment will not exceed the | sser of (a) one (1) month's actual
or estimated charges, or (b) the highest amount permitied by any applicable Regulation. The
Company may, at its sole option and discretion, accept personal guarantees, bank letiers of
credit or surcty bonds in lieu of an advance payment. Advance payments will be applied to
chacges for Services in the same manner as other payments. A customer may be required to
coniinue 0 make advance payments in accordance with this Section 2.8 until such tme as
its credit worthiness is established to the Company’s reasonable satisfaction.

Effective:

By: Thomas O. Cordy, President
190! Montreal Road, Suite 108
Tucker, GA 0084
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2.10

Deposils

Customers or applicants for Services whose financial condition is not acceptable to the
Company, as determined in its sole opinion and discretion, may be required to provide the
Company, either before or afier the commencement of Service, with a secunty deposit, in
cash or cash-equivalents, in an amount not to exceed two (2) months of estimated Service
usage, and/or to provide the Company with such other assurances of, or security for, the
payment of charges for Services as the Company may deem necessary in its sole judgement
and discretion. Any such cash deposit will bear simple interest at a rate of six percent (6%)
per annium or at such other rate as may be determined by a competent Regulatory Authority.
The Company may apply such deposil al any time to any past due balances owed 10 it by
Customer hercunder, provided however, the Company shall return the remainder to
Customer, at its last known address, within one (1) month following the date of Termination.
The Company may, at its sole option and discretion, accept personal guarantees, bank letters
of credit or surety bonds in licu of a cash deposit required under this Section 2.9.

Credit Limi

The Company may, at any time and at its sole discretion, set a Credit Limit for any
Customer’s consumption of Services for any monthly period.

Effective:
By: Thomas 0. Cordy, Presicent
Maxxis Communications, Inc,
1901 Montreal Rosd, Suiic 108
Tucker, GA 30084
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211  Indemnification hy Customer

2.11.1 Customer shall defend, indemmify and hold the Company hanmless from any and il
actions, claims, judgments, damages, demands, liabilities, and expenses, including
without limitation reasonable attomney’s fees, arising from or in connection with:

2.1LLA Libel or slander resulting from any use of the Services provided to
any User hereunder;

2.11.1.B Infringement of any patent, copyright, trademark, trade name or trade
. secret arising from: (i) the transmission of eny material trans:nitted:
‘ {n}bymwa.m{b)bymyuﬂurpmgsiugﬂwSuﬁm
' provided to any User, User location, or Authorization Code; or (i) the
' combination of User's use of Services with CPE or with other User-
g provided facilities or services: and

211.1.C Except as otherwise provided by applicable Regulation, any
unauthorized, unlawful, or fraudulent use of or access to the Services
provided to Users.

212 Customer Premises Equipment (“CPE”)

CPE attachment by the User is permitted under this Tariff. The Customer is responsible for
ensuring that all such attached CPE must conform to the | 2C's registration requirements set
forth in Part 68 of the Code of Federal Regulations (2w amended). The Company may
discontinue the provision of Services to any location where CPE fails to conform to such

lasued: Effective:
By: Thomas O. Cordy, Presideat
1901 Montrea! Road, Seite 108
Tucker, GA 30084
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2.13  Intcrconnection

2.13.1 The Secrvices may be connected with services or facilities of Other Providers subject
1o any technical limitations applicable to the latter; provided, however, Service
furmished by the Company is not part of a joint undertaking with any Other Provider.

2.13.2 Interconnection with the facilities or services of Other Providers is subject to the
applicable 1erms and conditions of the Other Providers' tarniffs (if any). Customer
shall be solely responsible for satisfying al! legal requirements for interconnecting
Customer-provided terminal equipment or communications systems with Other
Providers' facilities, including, without limitation, all licenses, permits, rights-of-way,
and other armangements necessary for such interconnection. Any interface equipment
or facilities necessary to achieve compatibility between the facilities of the Company
and those of Other Providers must be provided al the Customer’s sole expense.
Customer shall comply with all applicable terms and conditions of service provided
by said Other Providers.

2.13.3 Customer is solely responsible for ensuring that Telecommunications signals
transmitted by Users via the Services will not interfere with the operations of the
Company or those of Other Suppliers, or with the provision or use of similar services
provided by the Company or by Other Suppliers to any third party. All such signals
must be of the proper type, bandwidth, and other technical parameters so as to neither
damage the Company’s or Other Providers' equipment nor degrade Service supplied
to third parties. Except with respect to Services obtained through Prepaid Calling
Cards, Customer must ensure:

2.133A that all Users employ physical arrangements for protection of the
Company's facilitics in circumstances where the Company, in its sole
opinion and discretion, deems such protection to be reasonably
necessary,;

21338 that all Users provide adequate clectrical power, wiring and clectrical
outlets necessary for the proper operation of the Company's
equipment on their premises;
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2.13 Interconnection (cont)

214

2.15

2134

Title

2.133C that all equipment, facilities or Other Providers' services connected
with those of the Company are constructed, operated, and maintained
50 as to work satisfactorily with the Services; and

2.133D that all such equipment, facilitics and Other Providers' services avoid
hazard, damage, or injury to the Company’s facilitics or plant, its
employees or subcontractors, or to the public.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this TanfT, the Company has the right to
Terminate or suspend Service to any User found to be in violation of the foregoing

Section 2 13.3.

Title to any and all equipment or facilitics provided by the Company under this Tariff will
remain in the Company.

Interruption

2.15.1

2.152

Natice. The Customer must promptly notify the Company of any Interruptions in
Service of which it becomes aware; provided, however, prior lo giving such notice,
the Customer shall ascertain that the Interruption umthun;mudbymym
or omission of the User or by any non-Company supplic! wiring or equipment
connected 1o the Company’s facilities. The Company's obligations under this TanfT
to apply Credits or Credit Allowances to Cus*omer’s account for any Interruptions
are expressly conditioned upon Customer’s st t compliance with this Section 2.15.1.

Scheduled Interruptions. The Company, without incurring any liability whatsoever,
may make Scheduled Interruptions at any time (i) to ensure compliance by the
Customer or User with Regulations (including without limitation the provisions of
this TanifT), (1)) to ensure proper installation and operation of the Customer’s and the
Company's equipment and facilitics, (iii) to prevent fraudulent use of or access to the
services, or (iv) to perform any other maintenance, testing or inspection reasonably
required for the provision of Services hercunder.

By: Thomas O. Cordy, President
Maxxis Communca'ions, Ing.
190! Monz-=al Road, Suite 108
Tucker, GA 30084
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2.16 Ihscontinuation

2.17

Notwithstanding any other provision of this TarifT, the Company may at its sole option and
discretion Terminaic Service without incurring any liability therefor whatsoever, subject to
(1) no less than five (5) business days prior written notice or such other notice period required
by Regulation, and (i1) to any applicable Regulations, for any of the following reasons:

2.16.1 by onder of a Governmental Authority;

2.16.2 in the event of any unlawful, unauthorized or fraudulent use of or access to the
Services, including without limitation, violation of the provisions of this Tariff or of
any other Regulations by the Custouser, by any other User, or by any other person;

2.16.3 the use of Services in excess of a Customer’s Credit Limit (if any) or Company's
failure to receive an advance payment (il so required) for Services provided

hereunder, or
2.16.4 Customer’s provision of false or misleading information in its Service Order or in any
uther document delivered by Customer to the Company.

. ion of Servi
The Company shall restore any Terminated Services in accordance with Regulation,

including but not limited to charging the Customer a reconnection fee as set forth in Section
43.

By: Thomas O. Cordy, President
Maxxyn Comsmumications, Inc.
1901 Montreal Road, Suite 108

Tucker, GA 10084
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2.18

2.19

Disclai

The Company will have no liability whetsoever 1o User, to its employees, agents,
subcontructors, or assignecs, or to any other person for (i) damages arising out of any Other
Providers' Performance Failure, (ii) any act or omission of any third party furnishi-
cquipment, facilitics or service to any User in connection with this Tanfl or wath the
Services, or (i) any other act or omission of any Other Provider, User or third party related
to the use or provision of Services hereunder.

THE COMPANY DISCLAIMS ALL REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES,
EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION, ANY IMPLIED
WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR
PURPOSE FOR OR IN CONNECTION WITH THE PROVISION OF SERVICES
HEREUNDER.

Limitation of Liabili

2.19.1 Except as caused by its willful misconduct or negligence, the Company’s lisbility
with respect to any action, claim, judgment, damages, demand, liability or expense
(including without limitation reasonable attorney’s fees) (i) brought or incurred by
any User or any other party in connection with the installation, provision,
preemption, termination, maintenance, repair or restoration of Service, or (ii) arising
from any Performance Failure, will in no event exceed an amount equal to the
Service charges incurred by User for the month during which the Service was
affected. Such amount will be in addition to any amounts that may otherwise be due
User as Credits or Credit Allowances pursuant to the provisions of Section 2.21
hereof.

2.19.2 To the extent permitted by any applicable Regulation, the Company’s lisbility for
negligence will also be limited to the amounts described in Section 2.19.1 hereof.

2.19.3 To the extent permitted by any applicable Regulation, the Company's liability for
gross negligence will also be limited to the amounts described in Section 2.19.1
hercof.

Effective:

By: Thomas Q. Cordy, President

Maxxn Comrrumeations, Iec

190i Montreal Road. Suite 108
Tucker, GA 30084
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2.19 Limitation of Liability (conl )

2.19.4 In no event will the Company be liable for loss of profits (even if the Company has

2.19.5

2.19.6

been advised of the possibility of such loss) or for any indirect, incidental, special,
consequential, exemplary or punitive damages whatsoever anising, directly or
indirectly, from or in connection with the provision or use of Services hereunder.

Except as caused by its willful misconduct or negligence, the Company will not be
liable for defacement of or damages to Users' premises or for any personal injury or
death ansing, directly or indirectly, from the funushing of Services, including
without limitation the installation or removal of any facilitics, equipment or wiring
associated therewith. Customer is solely responsible for connecting any and all
apparatus, equipment and associz:od wiring on Users' premises to the Services, and
no other Carrier or third party engaged in such activity is 10 be deemed an agent or
employee of the Company in this undertaking.

Any action or claim against the Company anising from any of its alleged acts or
omissions in connection with this Tanfl will be deemed waived if not brought or
made in writing within sixty (60) days from the date that the alleged act or omission
occurred.

By: Thomas O. Cordy, President
Maxxis Conumunications, Ine.
1901 Montreal Road, Suite 108

Tucker, GA 30084
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220 Indemmfication

Subject 1o the limitations of liability set forth in Section 2.19 hereof, the Company and the
Custowner shall defend, indemnify, and hold each other harmless from and against any and
all actions, claims, judgments, damages, demands, liabilities, and expenses, including
without limitation reasonable attorney’s fees, resulting from injury to or death of any person
(including injury to >r death of their employees) or from the loss of or damage to tangible
real or tangible pecsonal property or 1o the environment, 1o the extent that such injury, death,

% loss or damage was proximately caused by any negligent act or omission on the part of the
party from whom indemmity is sought, or on the part of its agents, employees, subcontractors
or assignees, in connection with the provision or use of the Services. The indemnifying party
under this Section 2.20 shall defend the other at the other’s request against any such action,
liability, claim or demand. The party secking indemnification under this Section 2.20 must
notify the other promptly of written claims or demands for which the indemnifying party is
responsible hereunder. The Company and the Customer, as the case may be, shall cooperate
fully with the other in the course of such indemnification, and the indemnifying party shall
control such defense and the right to litigate, settle, appeal (provided it pays the cost of any
required appeal bond), compromise or otherwise deal with any such claim or resulting
judgment, provided that such settlement, compromise or other resolution of said claim does
not result in any liability to the indemnified party.

Issmed- Effective:
By: Thomas O. Cordy, President
Maxxis Communications, Inc.
1901 Montres! Road, Suite 108
Tucker, GA 30084
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221 Credits and Credit Allowances

2.21.1 Credits (“Credit(s)"™) to the Customer’s fixed charges, if any, for Interruptions (other
than Scheduled Interruptions or Interruptions caused by Other Providers for which
a Credit Allowance is due the Company as descnibed in Section 2.21.2 hereof) which
(i) exceed in the aggregate twenty-four (24) hours per moath, (ii) are directly caused
by the Company, (iii) are not due 1o either equipment or wiring supplied by any
person other than the Company, and (iv) are not due to the negligence or willful
misconduct of the User, its employees, subcontractors, agents, or assignees, will be
apphed to Customer’s account with the Company. Such Credits are to be calculated
oy multiplying the fixed monthly, recurring rate (if any) for the affected Service by
the ratio that the number of hours the Interruption bears to 720 hours (for the purpose
of this computation, cach month is deemed to have 720 hours). An Interruption is
mcasured from the time the Company detects, or the Customer notifies the Company
of, its occurrence until such time as the Interruption is cured. Each Interruption is to
be considered separately for the purposes of this calculation and is be rounded to the
nearest hour.

2.21.2 In the cvent of an Interruption caused by Other Providers for which a credit or
allowance (“Credit Allowance™) becomes due to the Company, the Company shall
apply such Credit Allowance 1o Customer’s account, less an administration fee of
twenty dollars ($20.00), subject to the Company's collection of such Credit
Allowance from the Other Provider obligaied 1o provide same. In no event will the
Company be obligated to credit Customer any amounts in excess of any Credit
Allowance allocable lo Customer’s Interruption(s) which Company receives from the
Other Provider. Any other provision of this Section 2.21 notwithstanding, Company
will have no obligation to apply any credit to Customer’s account for Interruptions
caused by an Other Provider for which no Credit Allowance is due to the Company.
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2213 Except as otherwise set forth herein, Customer’s sole and exclusive remedy for any
and all Performance Failures which consist of or give rise to Interruptions are Credits
or Credit Allowances 1o the extent available under this Section 2.21; for & ; other
Performance Failures or in the cvent Credits or Credit Allowances are unavailable
(due to the fact, for example, that the Customer does not incur any fixed monthly
recurming charges), Customer’s sole and exclusive remedy in licu of said Credits or
Credit Allowances will be an immediate right to Terminate Services prior to the
expiration of the Minimum Service Period.

. Seni }

The Minimum Service Period will be for the term specified in Customer’s Service Order,
which term must be no less than thirty (30) days. This MSP will automatically renew for
subsequent terms of equal duration. Either the Company or the Customer may clect not to
rencw any MSP by written notice 1o the other no later than thirty (30) days prior 1o the
expiration date of said MSP.

223 Force Majeurs

The Company is excused from any Performance Failure due 1o causes beyond its reasonable

control, including but not limited to acts of God, fire, floods, other catastrophes,

msurrections, national cmergencics, wars, labor disputes, oo any Regulation or other
directive, action or request of any Govemmental Authonty.

224 (Cesiomer Premises

Customer shall provide, without cost to Company, all equipment, space, conduit, and clectnc
power required 1o terminale the Services st the User’s premises. The Customer shall arrange
for the Company, or for other Casniers as required, to have access (o the User's premises at
all reasonable times for purposes of Service installation, Termination, inspection and repair.
Customer shall be solely responsible for any damage to or loss of Company equipment while
on the premises of User, unless such damage is caused by the negligence or willful
miscondu * of the Company, its employees, subcontractors or agents.

By: Thomas 0. Cordy, President
Maxxn Commumeabont, inc
1901 Montreal Road, Suste 108

Tocker, GA 30084
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225 Full Force and Fffect

Should any provision or portion of this Tariff be held by a court or administrative agency of
competent jurizdiction to be illegal, invalid, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions of
this Tariff will remain in full force and effect.

226 Cooperation

Customer shall cooperate with the Company to the extent necessary for the Company to
discharge its obligations hercunder and as reasonsbly requested by the Company.

227 Govermng Law

Thas TanifT is 10 be governed by and construed in accondance with the rules and orders of the
Commission and the laws of the State of Georgia

Bj"'ﬂ_OCHdr,M

1901 Montreal Road, Suite 103
Tucker, GA 30084
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3.1

Services consist of (i) One Plus Service, (ii) Inbound Toll-Free Service, and (iii) Travel Card
Service and (iv) Prepaid Calling Card Service, as described herein.

3.1l

Ji2

313

One Plus Service is a switched, intrastate, telecommunications service which permits
Users 1o establish communications between points within the State of South Dakota.

{ Toll-Free Service is a switched. i . A -k
service. Customers shall be assigned an “800~, “888", “877" or other Toll-Free
incoming telephone number by the Company for termination and billing of Inbound
Toll-Free Service calls.

Travel Card Service is a switched, intrastate, teleccommunications service which
permits Users to establish communications between points within the State of South
Dakota. Users may utilize Travel Card Service 1o originate outbound, direct dial
calls, via Company-provided toll free telephone numbers in order to complete
switched, intrastate, telecommunications calls. Travel Card Services are subject to
the following terms and conditions.

313A Unit Value Travel Caed Servi &5 may be obtained from the
Company, from Agents or from Customers at various per-minute or
per-unit rates as set forth in Section 4.8, inclusive of all taxes. All
Travel Card calls are measured in one (1) minute increments, rounded
to the next higher full minute, except as otherwise set forth herein.

By: Thomas O. Cordy, President

Maxxis Commumications, Inc.

1901 Montreal Road, Suite 108
Tucker, GA 30084




Intrastate Telecommunications Services
South Dakota Public Utlities Commission Tanff No. 1

Oviginal Page 32

3.1.3B Other Conditions of Service

(1)

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Travel Card calls to 700, 800, £38, 877, 900, 950 and other
similar numbers will not be completed.

Travel Card: may not be used to make operator assisted calls.
However, upon request, the Company's customer service
personnel will provide Customers with call completion
assistance ai no charge,

Travel Cards may not be used to make third party billed calls
or person-to-person calls.

The Company will credit the account of a User's Travel Card
for calls that are Interrupted or are subject to inadequate
transmission due to Performance Failures. Credits will not
apply to Interruptions which are: (a) not reported to the
Company by the Cusiomer or User within ten (10) days afier
the Interruption; (b) not proximately caused by the Company
or its Agents, or (c) caused, in whole or in part, by the User.

Travel Card Services may be marketed in conjunction with
third parties for which the Company serves as the common
carrier.

Travel Card charges include per minute or per unil usage
charges and may also include a per call service charge.

1901 Moatreal Rosd, Suite 108
Tucker, GA 30084
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3.1 Descoption of Services (cont )

3.1.4 Prpaid Calling Card Service consists of (1) Toll-Free Access Prepasd Calli- ~ Card
Service and (1) Local Access Prepaid Calling Card Service. Users may atilize
Prepaid Calling Card Services 10 originate outbound, direct dial calls, via Company-
provided telephone numbers in order to complete swilched, intrastate,
telecommunications calls. Prepaid Calling Card Services are subject to the following

314A LUnit Vilue Prepaid Calling Cards may be obtained from the
Company, from Agents or from Customers in 60, 30 or 10 umit
denominations with a per-unit valuc as szt forth in Scction 4.9,
inclusive of all taxes. All Prepaid Calling Card calls are measured in
one (1) minute increments, rounded to the next higher full minute.

3.14B (ther Conditions of Service

(1) Prepaid Calling Card calls to 700, 800, 888, 877, 900, 950
and other similar numbers will not be completed.

()  Calls may only be charged against a Prepaid Calling Card that
has a sufficient available balance.

(m) Prepaid Calling Card balances will be reduced and depleted
based upon User’s usay +. Users will be given notice (e.g., by
aulomaled operator inlervention) one minuie before the
available cand balance is depleted, based on the terminating
location of the call. When the balance is depleted, the call
w1ll be terminated.

(iv)  Third party billing and person-to-person calls may not be
made with Prepaid Calling Cards.

By: Thomas O. Cordy, President

Maxxis Commumications, [nc.

1901 Montrea! Road, Suite 108
Tucker, GA 30084
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3.1  Descoption of Services (cont.)

(v)  Some promotional Prepaid Calling Cards are non-refundable
and will expire on the date specified on the card (or on the
package in which the card is included) as applicable.

(vi) The Company will credit the account of a User's Prepaid
Calling Card for calls that are Interrupted or zre subject 1
inadequate transmission due to Performance Failures. Credits
will not apply to Interruptions which are: (2) not reported to
the Company by the Customer or User within ten (10) days
after the Interruption; (b) not proximately caused by the
Company or its Agents, or (c) caused, in whole or in part, by
the User.

3.14C Prepaid Calling Card Recharge Ontion. Users of a Prepaid Calling
Card may be given the option of adding additional dollar or unit
values to the Prepaid Calling Card account associated with that card
by payment to the Company via 2 major credit card. This recharge
option may be available by contacting the Company’s customer
service department. The minute or unit value of a recharged Prepaid
Calling Card is set forth in Section 4.9.

1901 Mostreal Road, Suise 108
Tocker, GA 30084
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32

Timing of Calls

The Customer’s monthly charges for Services provided hercunder are based wpon it r (i)
the total tmue the User actually uscs the Services (rounded to the increments set forth in
Section 4), or (ii) the airline milcage between the originating and the terminating rate centers
of each call as calculated using the V and H coordinates set forth in AT&T's FOC Tariff No.
10 on file with the Commission, and incorporated herein by reference. The method of
calculation of the aurline mileage between rate centers

is calculated according to the fo'lowing formula.

vIVY1-V2 !’J'_uu_l:uf-
10

Where VI and Hi arc the V and H coordinates of point 1, and V2 and H2 arc the V and H
coordinaics of point 2. The mileage is rounded up 1o an integer value (o determine the airkne
mileage.
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4 RATES
4.1 Retum Check Charge

42

43

44

4.5

The Customer will be charged twenty dollars ($20.00) or the applicable statutory retumn
check charge (if any), whichever is greater, whenever a check or drafl presented for payment
of Service is dishonored by the institution upon which it is drawn.

Late Payment Charge

Invoices unpaid after thirty (30) days shall incur a monthly finance charge on the unpaid
balance at a rate equal to the lesser of one and one-half percent (1.5%) or the maximum rate

permitted by law.
Reconnection Fee

A charge of twenty dollars ($20.00) or the applicable statutory charge for reconnection of
Service (if any), whichever is greater, will apply whenever a User requests 1o be reconnected
to the Services after the Company has Terminated the Services to User for any reason
aliowed by this Tariff.

Promations

The Company may from time to time engage in special promotions of new or existing
Service offerings of limited duration designed to altract new cusiomers or 0 Increase
existing Customer awarcness of a particular offering. The promotional offerings are sabject
to the availability of the Services and may be limited to a specific geographical arsaorto 2

suhset of a specific market group; provided, however, all promotional offerings shall be
offered in accordance with applicable Regulations.

Miscellancons Rates and Charges

The Company may adjost its rates and charges or impose additional rates and charges on its
Customers i order to recover amounts it is required by governmental or quasi-governmental
authorities to collect from, or pay to others, in support of statutory or regulatory programs.
Exnnﬁuofnﬂmmhhhnmhmﬂnm:ummmm

Primary Interexchange Camier Charye, and compensation to pay telephone service providers
for the use of their pay tclephones to access the Company's Services.
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46 Onec Plus Service Rates

The following rates apply 10 all presubscribed One Plus Service Customers. Calls are
measured in one (1) minute increments, rounded to the next higher fiall mimute.

S S TR B
Rate Piams Day Rates RNWhkd /Eve. Moathly loatzzl
Rase Recurnag Set-wp
Fee Fee
LP: $0.10 s0.10 £3.00 Nooc
T | T T e e

4.7  |obound Toll-Fr.e Service Rates

The following rates apply to all Customers of Inbound Toll-Free Service. Calls are measured
in one (1) minute increments, rounded to the next higher full minute.

T

Rate Plans Day Rates NWkd/Eve. Maonthly Imatua?

R Recurring Sctup

Fee Fee

Plan | 50.12 50.12 $1.00 Nooc

Lesned: Effective

By: Thomas O. Cordy, Preuident
Mazxxis Commmmications, Inc.

1901 Montreal Road, Saite 108
Tucker, GA 30084
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48 Tmvel Cand Service Rates
Rates for Travel Card Calls are as follows.
o T S " = =7,
Rate Plans Day Rates NWEkd Eve. Mondhly lnstzal
Rate Recurnng Set-up
Fee Fee
Flan | $0.19 $0.19 Nonoe None I
49 Eqﬂ Calling Cand Service Rates
Rates for calls made with a Prepaid Calling Card arc as follows:
49.1 Toll-Free Access Prepaid Calling Card Service Rates
49.1.A Intrastate Rate
Rase Plans Day Rates NWkdEve. Rate Per Call
Fee
Toll-Free Access Plan 1 1 UnstMim, 1 Unst™Mm. $025
{1 Unst =50.12) {1 Unat = $0.12)

By: Thonms O. Cordy, Presadent

Mexxis Communcations, lac,

1901 Montreal Road, Scaee 108
Tucker, GA 30084
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49  Prepaid Calling Card Service Raies (cont.)
492 Local Access Prepaid Calling Card Service Rates
492.A Intrastate Rate

Raze Plams Day Rates
Local Access Plan | 1 Unit™Min
(1 Unit =50.07)
-

4.10 Payphone Compensation Surcharge

Customer dialed 800, 888, 877 and “10XXX" calls onginated from pay telepbones to obtain
access to the Company's Services will incur 2 per-cal’ surcharge of $0.30.

4.11 Dicectogy Assistance

The Company does not provide lirectory assistance. Access to long distance director)
assistance may be obtained by dialing | +{area code)+555-1212. User will be charged (or
Customer will be billed) $0.75 for each intrastate directory assistance call. The directory
assistance charge applies to each call regardless of whether the directory assistance burcau
is able to . :mish the requested telephone number.

By: Thomas O. Cordy, President

1901 Montres] Road, Saite 108
Tucker, GA 30084
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4.12 Rates for Hearing or Speech Impaired
For medically certified hearing or speech impaired Users who communicate via a TDD, the
Company will issuc upon request a credit in an amount of 25% of the regularly billed charpes
under Section 2.6 for calls made between TDDs. The credit will appear on the Customer’s
subsequent bill.

4.13  Application Peniods
The following application periods apply to the rates established in this Section 4.

MON. TUES. WED. THU. FRL SAT. SUN.

8:00 AM
o Day Rate Period N/Wkd
5:00 PM | 1 !

5:00 PM
to Evening Rate Period N/Wkd Eve.
11:00 PM | i i

11:00 PM
0 Night/Weekend Rate Period
8:00 AM | mo— L7

4.14 Holiday
On Holidays the rate applicable is the Evening rate unless a lower rate would normally apply.

Tacker, GA 30084
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4.15 Computation of Charges

4.15.1 Calls wili be billed in increments of either (i) an initial thirty (30 ) seconds penod &=
additioral periods of six (6) seconds, (ii) an initial sixty (60) seconds peniod and
additional peniods of thirty (30) seconds, or (iii) an initial one (1) minute period and
additional peniods of one (1) minute, as set forth in Sections 3.1, 4.6 or 4.7. Where
answer supervision is available, the time of each call begins as sct forth in Subsection
4.15.2 below, and ends when the calling party disconnects. In no event will the time
of a cail be deemed 1o begir prior to sixty (60) seconds from the time of intervention
by an operator or aulomated equipment with respect to said call, except where answer
detection ca; sbility exists.

4.15.2 Where answer supervision is available, the time of a call begins when the called
station is answered, as determined by the standard industry methods selected by the
applicable Other Provider. The Company will not knowingly bill any Cusiomer for
unanswered calls. Upon the Customer’s request, the Company shall promptly refund
or credit, as the case may be, payments or charges for any unanswered call
inadvertently billed due to the unavailability of Feature Group D or to the LEC's
failure to provide answer supervision. Where answer supervision is not available,
any call for which the billed duration exceeds one minute shall be presumed to have
been answered.

By: Thomas O. Cordy, President
Maxxis Communications, Inc.
1901 Montreal Road, Suite 108

Tocker, GA 0084




LIST OF MAXXIS COMMUNICATIONS, INC.'S MANACEMENT WITH SUMMARY OF
EXPERIENCE

THOMAS O. CORDY 1901 Montreal Road, Suite 108
Chief Executive Officer and President Tucker, Georgia 30084
(770) 552 - 4766

Thomas O. Cordy has served as Chief Executive Officer, President and Director of Maxxis
Communications, Inc. since its inception, and has served as Chief Executive Officer, President and
Drrector of Maxxis Group, Inc. since May 1997, Prior to that time, he has served as President and Chiefl
Executive Officer of C1 Cascade Corp., and has served as & Director of Southern Bell, Kimberly Clark
and First Union Bank. Mr. Cordy currently serves as Vice Chairman of the Board of Trusters for Clark
Atlanta University, Chairman of the Board of Renaissance Capital Corporation and a Director of Cox
Enterprises. Mr. Cordy has a bachelor’s degree from Morchouse College and a master’s degree from
Atlanta University, and he has attended the Stanford Executive Program at the Stanford School of
Business and the University of Oklahoma National Lending School.

PATRICK J. LENTZ 1901 Montreal Road, Suite 108
Executive Vice Presideat Tucker, Georgia 30084
(770) 552 - 4766

Patrick J. Lentz joins Maxxis Communications, [nc. after fificen years' expenence in the technical
aspects of the telecommunications and computing industry. Duning his employment with BellSouth
and LDDS Communications (now WorldCom), Mr. Lentz was instrumental in designing and
mmplementing network applications to process long distance, cellular and satellite telephony, to perform
tilling and customer care functions and to assist in administrative recordkecping. Mr. Leniz is also
experienced in Internet applications, having designed customer-registration software for BellSouth. Net.
He bolds a masters in Mathematical Sciences from Clemson University and a bachelors in Mathematics
and Computer Scienice from Georgia Southern College.

DANIEL MCDONOUGH 1901 Montreal Road, Sutte 108
Chief Financial Officer : Tucker, Georgia 30084
(770) 552 - 4766

Dasl« . .cDonough serves as Chief Financial Officer of both Maxxis Communications, Inc. and
Maxxis Group, Inc. Prior to his employment with Maxxis Group, Inc., Mr. McDonough provided
financial consv'ting services 1o a number of start up companies at Creative Benefits, Inc. In addition,
from 1992 10 1994, Mr. McDonough was the controlicr of Jostens Leaming Corporation, a $75 million
technology cor pany specializing in educational software. Prior to his employment with Jostens, Mr.
McDonough scrved as assistant controller to Alumax, Inc., a $2.5 billion integrated aluminum company
with more than 100 manufacturing operations throughout the United States. From 1973 to 1980, Mr.
McDonough was employed by Price Waterhouse & Co, Mr. McDonough is a licensed CPA and also
holds a master of business administration degree from the University of Buffalo.




OFFICERS OF MAXXIS COMMUNICATIONS, INC. (Cont)

ALBERT F. BOGHOLZ 1901 Montreal Road, Suite 108
Network Eagiaeer Tucker, Georgia 30084
(770) 552 - 4766

Albert F. Bogholz serves as Network Engineer for Maxxis Communications, Inc., bringing to the
company over thirty years' expenience in the telecommunications and cellular communications industry.
He began his career in 1966 at Western Union Telegraph Company, and, since 1983, Mr. Bogholz has
served us network engineer and transmissions director for several major telecommunications providers,
including LDDS/Metromedia, Resurgens Communications Group, Continental Telecom and ATC. Mr.
Bogholz has a bachelor's degree in physics from the City College of New York and an associate degree
ir Engincering from Bronx Community College.
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Payroll Texes Prysble
Diee o Affilisses
Ling of Credit

Total Current Lisbilides

Long Term Capital Lease Obligations:

Loag Tem Lease Obligations
Tomi L.T. Captial Lesse Obligations

Stockhokders’ Equecy

Paid is Copinal
Remziocd Esrmings

Tosl Stockbolders” Eque

Tomsl Lisbilities & Secholders’ Equicy

MAXXIS COMMIUNICATIONS, ING.

December 31, 1998

ASSETS

5 15851145
736,42331
102623797
£.877.00

<40,000.00>
12,400.00

—_—

1.902,449.73

5,864,764 31
0.00
1,75234
0.00

5 7.768.966.38

e

LIABILITIES

3 106,457.90
112.00

458,653.81

0.00

§70,520.64

£.00

1,475,744.35

4.866,179.00
4,866,179.00




Cost of Sales
Gross Profi

Seltng Expenon
Ouber Opemating Experses
Net [ncome

MAXCOS COMMUNICATIONS. INC.
Currest Month Incores Statemen
For the Six Months Ending Decesber 31, 1998

Current Moath

3 235148321
909,508.34
144197487

370,892.90
I96317.65
s 674,764.32




ASSETS

Cash and Cash Eqrnvadeany H 115860.19
Comwnizsons Receviable 15627224
Dus from Affifisses 66538408
m 0.00
Allow. for Doubtflal Acct <40,000.00>
Crher Corvest Assers 2.050.00

Totad Corrent Assees 1.099.566.51

Property & Eqe set, e 3751559
Orgasincicns) Costy, net 0.00
Capitsired Software Dev Costy, et 159.74
Oxier Asarts 0.00

Total Assers 5 LI137331.84

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable [ 1 32,850.70
Sales Tax Payable 0.00
Accraed Lishilici=s 2.047.08
Payrodl Taxes Pryshic 0.00
D to Affifiases 35037535
Lise of Credit 0.00

Total Correst Lishilities Ja5273.13
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MAXTIS COMMUNICATIONS, INC. .
Cusrent Mongh Income Stwcmoent
For the 12 Mostts End ag Jems 30, 1998

Current Month
Tl 5 279902068
Cost of Sakes 137133450
Gooez Profit 1,427,635.88
Selling Expuos Insse7
Other Operating Expenses 2567039

Na locome 5 §5447.02




SIS

hypny more for your lang dislonce

service or internal access only ko
inves! In corporcte odvertising ‘ond high
administrative cossl Your savings is the
botiom line. Quolity, service ond savings
are what you will get from va. You con't beat
nmm :ﬂ-mq Mok the dacision
to put those abyeting dollos in your pocke

hyduau Masis cmn

HISTORY OF

PREPAID CALLING CARDS

INTERNATIONAL

The bt propord calling cord wos inroduced in baly in
1974 Today the cords ore widely vied in over 150
counmes The cordy are available almoy everywhere
including vending mochines. siores ond port offices

in Asio, Eutope and cliewhern. the walletsized cords
which allow becrers lo corry around prapaid ielephone
wivice credi are o 34 billian buunes

DOMESTIC

Propand calling cords were introduced mnta the United
Sigtes in 1990 aher three ond oneholl yeors of
development  Unlike thet Euiopean counterparh,
American telecommunicotion techrology permity the
calling cards 1o be uied kom any louchione phone
This increases the Bewbshity of the cords ond the
potenhal yize of the market for them

In 1994, an estimated $200 million wotth ol phone debit
cords ware sold in this country. By the turn of the centuty
the dollar value 18 expecied 1o increase 1o §10 bellion or
mare This i3 lterolly the homest tend in the world
Telecommunicotion executives investing in debd cords
peadict the U S market i3 about o explode!

Fow odvonces n telscommunicahion lechnalogy have
made swch o sgnificanl impact on communications as
the prepoid colling cards It olse has given the
entrepreneut 0 unigue opportunity lo become pait of the
$100 billion T-:hphm industry

DOMESTIC SALES

1994 . 200 Million Dollars

1995 . 500 Million Dollars

1996 - 1 Billon Dollor

2000 - 10 Bilhion Dallars [Projecied)

Lonrtw Tewchore Teeken Auscgsshon
b Forpenw Micvember 28 1905 — B4 ey

MG ¥

oot Comnegted lofhe~
New Fronte I
e

s It

MAXXIS™

COMMUNICATIONS, INC.




Uial-One Senvice

IT'S YOUR DECISION...

0l One long distance service (ust go! better| In
this compethive marke!, savings and service
are paramount. Society’s dependence on
communicohon mediums increases daily Coth and
featres are major consaderations in beeping
ndividuay ond busineiisy connected throughout
‘the world
't
[ 4
?-rnambe: when you hod no choice o1 1o who
ltu long dislance cartier wend  Thot day s gone
never to return. Our hberoptic network provides
you with the highest quality long ditlance service
on the marke!, cooitiocony o worldwide. Moy
Communications, Inc prowdet you with o divense

line of products with valuable leotures thot can make

your communicahon neods coul effective ond simple

Ir's your decision|

Mo Hidden Cost

DISTANGE SERVICE

The company offers o Rt role seven doys o weel,
waniydour hours o doy.

local Exchonge Carrler billing = receive one
monthly bill from your LEC.

Your own personal Rot robe inbound 8O0 number

AWAY FROM HOME?
DONT WORRYI

Masods Communications provides you with o travel
card with fremendous savings end leatures such o3

* No first minute surcharge
iLEChilIng

“I DONT WANT
TO CHANGE CARRIERS.”

Although, no one likes change, most peopls today
would agres that if change soves monay, change s
good. Yeur ealls will be mode the some woy o
olways ond you will receive one bil. The only chonge
ﬂhhhhd;ﬂhmmu ]
YMW|

MaxiConnec

INTERNET SERVICES

ousConnec! provides you with direct accen o

the intetne! wo o highipeed, national

backbone You con connect hom any ol over
J00 local occen numbers covening over 90% of
the United Stotes and the 3 maor provinces n
Canodo  Relioble connechiom, outitanding
customer wervice ond naotonal coveroge make
MaouConnect the best lnernet value 1oday!

* NO Bury Signah

* Unbmited Accen®

» Emaod Accoum

+ JMB Webiite Space

® Quality Customer Suppon

* High Speed Accens

¢ No Setup Fee

* EauyierUse Signlp Disc

* All Internet Softwore Provided FREE

» 30Day Money Back Guarantes

*See polcy ond procedure
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TC 99-009

GERRY, FRIEND & SAPRONOV, LLP
Thres Ravinia Drive, Suitz 1450
Atlantz, Georgia 30346-2131
(770) 399-9300
FAX (770) 395-0000

FACSIMILE TRANSMISSION
IF YOU DO NOT RECEIVE ALL PAGES, PLEASE TELEPHONE IMMEDIATELY

TOTAL PAGES (including header): 4 DATE: April 22, 1999
FROM: Michael Stewart RE: Taclif changes
TO: Karen Cremer, Bsq. FAX NO.: 685-7T73-3809
Seuth Daketa
Pubtic Utilities Conmmisgion
[ ] For your lnformation [ ] In sccordance with your request
{ ] Picasc make changes and return [X] Picase review and give me your
o me a8 soon as possible ComEnents/suggestions
[ ] Please provide me with instructions ca [X] Enclosures:
bow you wish 0 procesd

[X] Message: Plesse find snclosed propeed changes to sections 2.6.4, 2.19.1, 2.19.4 and
2.19.6 of Maxxis Comsnanications, Inc.’s Proposed Tarllf, Please let me know
if these chemges mre acceptable.

[ ] Copies sout to:

This Sscaienile coptuing privieged sad coofidesial information iotended ooty for @ nac of the Addressse(s) camed
sbove. [T you are not the memnded reciprent of this facsimile or the eaployes or o eox respossible for defivering it
1 Be inteaded roclolent, you we hereby notified that ssy dissemiserion or copying of this facgiendle i sricty
probribiced  1f you beve reccived this facaimile in exror, plasse eresedistsly notfy us by wisphone sad retes e
erigizal Mesimile 1o s » B sbove sddress via the U.S. Postal Service. Thaak you.
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Intrasiae Telsconmmumicstions Services

Muxxy Communications. bnc South Dukota Pablx Utlities Coammsoon Tarill Noa. |

Original Page 17

26.1

262

263

264

265

Other than prepaud services, charges for Services will be billed to Customer on 2
mouthly (30 day) basis, in arresrs, based on the Users’ actual usage. Customers will
not be charged for uncommplcted calls.

All smounts stated on cach monthly invoice are dne and payable immediately upon
amoant (if any) prepaid t the Company.

lovoices unpaid after thirty (30) days shall mcor a monthly finance chargs on the
unpeid balance at a rate equal to the lesser of one and one-half percent (1.5%) or the
maxmum rate permitted by law,

Except as otharwise limited by Regulation, Customer shall be responmble for
poyment of all charges, whether suthorized or not, for any and all use of or access to
Services provided to i i iy HSE OF BoCes3
um&ﬁum&nnﬁubmmwmhy
any Regulation.

Except as otherwise provided berein, the Company, at its sole option, may Terminsts
Services in the event Costomer fails to pay any mveice within thirty (30) calendar
days after the dus date stated thereon, subject 0 written notice and 1o any other
spphcable Commission Regulstions. Notice, for purposcs of this Section 2.6.5, is
1o be doemed effective upon maifing of written notice, postage prepaid, to Customer's
Imhmﬂnnddrm.ﬁ:mtulﬁwufhﬁunbythcmntmcmmﬁr
zny reagon whatsoever will not relieve Customer of its payment obligations
bereunder for all Service charges incurred by Customer through the date of
Termination. Teronination by Customer for purposes of this Section 2.6.5 will be
decmed cffective five (5) business days following the date of Company’s receipt of
Customer's Termination notice. Customer will be liabls for all costs of collection
mmmu-ﬁmwwwﬂ&mummmw
thereof is to be deemed cooclusively comrect and binding upon the Customer.

By: Thomas Q. Cordy, President
Mcos Inc.

1901 Meontreal Rumd, Saite 108
Tocker, GA 30084



04s22/88 16:33 FAI TTO 168 ce00 GERRY FRIEND SAFRONOYV @oo3

Irtrasrer Telremmrurications Sernce

Muxis Comeressicaticns, [ac. South Dukota Pubtic Uhilides Commisrion Teriff Na. !

Qeiginal Pags 25

18

219

[iscl=rme;

The Compeny will have no hability whatsoever to User, to its employees, agents,
subcontractors, or amignees, of o wry ofher person for (i) damages arising out of eny Other
Providens' Perfosmance Falure, (i) any act or omission of amy thind party fumishing
equipment, faciliuee or service to sny User in comnection with this Tariff or with the
Services, or (i) say other act or omission of sy Other Provider, User or thind party related
to the use or provision of Services hereander.

THE COMPANY DISCLAIMS ALL REFRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES,
EXFRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING WITEOUT LIMITATION, ANY IMFLIED
WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A FARTICULAR
PURPOSE FOR OR IN CONNECTION WITH THE PROVISION OF SERVICES
HEREUNDER.

Limication af Lishiliry

2.19.1 Except &3 caused by its willful misconduct or negligence, tue Company's Lishility
with respect 1o any action, claim, judgment, demages, demand, lisbility or expense
(inchuding without limitation reasonable attorney'r fees) (i) brought or incurred by
my User or sny other party in conpection w th the installation, provision,

preamption, lermination, maintenence, ropair or resomation of Sarvice, or () enising
from sy Performance Failure, will be determined in sccordance with S CL 49

l.!-I and 49-13-1.1.

2.192 To tho extent permittad by my spplicahle Regnlstion, the Compeny's liability for
negligooce will also be limited 1o the amounts described in Section 2.19.1 hereof.

2.193 To “w extent permitted by oy spplicable Regulation, the Company’s kshility for
gross negligance will also be limited 10 tho mmounts described in Section 2.19.1
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Inrestats Telecomarrnicalions Sarvices
Mo Cacmssecs res e, Somth Dakota Publc Utihtiss Cossriesion Teilf Na. 1
Ongrral Fage 25

2.19 Limitstion of Lishility (cont)

2.19.4 The Company’s liability for loss of profits (even if the Company bas been advised
of the possibility of such joss) or for sy indirect, incidental, special, consequential,
excmnplary or punitive damages whaosoever arising, directly or indirectty, from or in
connection with the provisian or use of Sarvices hereunder, will be detegmuned m

sccordance with $.0.C.L, 49-13-1 sod 49-13-1.1.

2.19.5 Except as caused by its willful misconduct or negligence, the Company will not be
Eable for defacement of or damages to Users’ premiscs or for any porsonal injory or
death priging, directly or indirectly, from the fomnishing of Services, including
without limitmtion the installstion or removal of any facilitics, cquipment or wiring
essociated herowith. Customer is solely responsible for commecting any and all
spperatus, equopment and associated wiring on Users' premises to the Services, and
no other Carrier oc third party engaged in such sctivity is 10 be deemed e agent or
employee of the Company in this undertaking.

21945 [RESERVED FOR FUTURE USKE| [-_:_.#-,m&.d.ﬂj




GERRY, FRIEND & SAPRONOV, LLP
ATTORNEYSE AT LAW
BUTTE 1480
THEEE RAVINIA DRIVE
ATLANTA, ORONOLA 30340-2131

- RECEIVED

YT B SO0
[T E (TTE 3050000 :
e APk J - 1999
Sl SOUTH pakoT
UTILITIES CDB:..?H?;I?JH

April 27, 1999
YIA OVERNIGHT MAIL
Mr. Harlan Best
south Dakota Pubtic Utilities C 3 0
: State Capitol Building
500 East Capitol Avenue

Pierre, South Dakota 57501-5070

Re:  Joint Application of Cherry Communications Incorporated, WAXS INC., Maxxis
Group, Inc. and Maxxis Communications, Inc. (“Maxxis™) for Approval of
Acquisition of Assets and for Assignment of Authorizauion (“Joint Application™),
TC99-009

Dear Mr. Best:

In response to your letter of April 16, 1999 (attached hereto), the following additional
information is provided regarding the Joint Application and the transactions described therein.

1. Pursuant to discussions with Karen Cremer, Esq. of the South Dakota Public Utilities
_ ommission's (“Commission™) legal staff, Maxxis submits revised tanfT pages 17,
25 and 26 (attached hereto at Exhibit “A™), which amend its South Dakota Public
Utilities Commission Tariff No. | (“TarifT”) as follows:

(i) Section 2.6.4 (Billing and Payments) has been amended (i) to clarify that the
Customer’s responsibility does not extend to all unauthorized use of the
Services but, rather, extends only to all use of or access thereto by Users
(defined in Section 1 of the Tarifl as entities who are “authorized by the
Customer to use Service under this Tanfl™), including “any use or access by
Users which is unauthorized, unlawful or fraudulent™, and (i1) to delete the
phrase “whether authorized or not” after “Customer shall be responsible for
payment of all charges.....”

(i)  Sections 2.19.1 and 2.19.4 (Limitation of Liability) have been amended to
state that the Company's liability with respect to any action, claim, judgment,
damage, or expense shall be determined in accordance with South Dakota

Codified Laws Sections 49-13-1 and 49-13-1.1; and




GERRY, FRIEND & SAPRONOV, LLP
ATTORNEYS AT Law

Mr. Harlan Best

April 27, 1999
Page 2

(i) Section 2.19.6 (stxting that Customer claims are barred if not made in writing
within sixty (60) days from the date that the alleged act or omission occurred)
has been deleted.

Ms. Cremer has revicwed these revisions via facsimile and found the same to be in
complisnce with South Dakota Law. In addition, she has indicated that Section 2.21
(Credits and Credit Allowances) is similarly scoeptable without further amendment.

Maous is currently regastered or certificated to provide intrastate, inferexchanze long
distance iclccommunications servioes in the states of Michigan, Texas, Virgima, New
Jersey, Flonda, North Carolina, Hawaii, Colorado, Indiana Idaho, Pennsylvania,
lowa, Utah, Montana, West Virginia, Wyoming, Ohio, Oregon, New Hampshire,
Tennessoe, Kansas, Kentucky, Massachusetts, Arkansas, Rhode Island, Wisconsin,
North Dakota and in the District of Columbia.

Section 2.6.5 (Billing and Pazyments) has been amended to allow Customers to
dispute billings in writing within one hundred eighty (180), rather than ten (10), days
of receipt thereofl. A revised Taniff page 17 indicating this amendment is attached
bereto at Exhabit “A™,

Inasmuch as Maxxis docs nol currently intend to require Customers lo provide
Advance Payments (Section 2.8) or Deposits (Section 2.9), Maxxis has not yet
developed detailed guidelines for use in determining the amounts of such Advance
Payments or Deposits. As such, Maxxis will delete these sections from the TanifT
unhlm:hnmeuuhude&pedmphublepudﬂmndmﬂnwlym
Commuesnon with such gudeliacs prior to re-incorporating provisions for Advance
Payments and Deposits into the Tarifl. Revised TanifT pages 19 and 20 reflect the
delction of Sections 2.8 and 2.9 and arc attached hereto at Exhibit “B™.

Pursuant 1o Section 2. 10 of the Tanifl, Maxxis will establish credit limit amounts for
its post-paid services, if necessary, oa a service-by-service basis. Maxxis may
assign 2 lower credit limit amowunt 1o its travel cand services imasmuch as such
services are subject 10 a higher incidence of fraud, whereas it may assign a higher
credit limit amount to presubscribed long distance and toll-free services which
generally ar nol subject to such incidence of fraud. By way of example, Maxxis
may adopt a credit limit amount for post-paid travel card services of fifty dollars
($50.00) per month and for presubscribed long distance and toll-free services of one
bundred and fifty dollars ($150.00) per month. Such credit limit amounts will apply




GERRY, FRIEND & SAPRONOV. LLF

ATTORMEYH AT LAW

M. Harlan Best

April 27, 1999
Page 1

to all customers of 2 given service on 2 pon-discriminatory basis, irrespective of such
customer’s inc:me, residential location, employment, race, color, creed, sex, marital
status, age o national origin.

Section 2.27 (Governing Law) is amended to state that the Tariff shall be governed
by and construed in accordance with the rules and orders of the Commission and the
laws of the State of South Dakota. A revised TarifT page 30 is attached hereto at
Exhibit “C".

Section 4.4 (Promotions) has been amended to state that each Promotion shall be
submitted 1o the Commission for filing prior to the effective date of such Promotion.
A revised Tarifl page 36 is attached hereto st Exhibit “D".

The Taniff is amended to add new Section 2.28 (Inguiries or Complaints), which
provides Customers with appropriate contact information for Maxxis and for the
Commission in the event of inquirics, complaints o disputes. New Section 2.28 is
reflected in revised TarifT page 30, attached hereto ut Exhibit “C".

In addition, & revised Table of Contents, reflecting the revisions submitted herein, is attached

hercto at Exhibit “E™.

]

R

If you have any questions, plcase do not hesitate to contact me.

Very truly
Michael K. Stewart
{with enclosure)
Charles A. Hudak, Esq.

{without enclosure)
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Soutt Datota
Public Utilities Commission

State Capitel Building, 500 East Capitol Avenue, Pierre, South Dakota 575015070

SD PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMN ool

April 16, 1999

Michael K Stewar, Esq. VIA FAX ONLY
Gerry, Friend & Sapronov, LLP 770-335-0000
Three Ravinia Drive, Suite 1450 3 pages

Allanta GA 30346-2131

RE: Transfer ol Assets and Operating Authority of Cherry Communications, Inc.
to Mavods - TC99-009

Dear Mr. Stewart

The Commission received your Supplement to this docket on March 2, 1999,

After a review o lhe Supplement, the foliowing questions need 10 be answered by
Maods Communications:

1. Manods's tariff at 2.6.4, 2.19 and 2.21 attempts to limit lability of the
company. Under South Dakota law, specifically SDCL 48-13-1 and 49-13-
1.1, a person has tha right to claim damages from a telecommunications
compeny either before the Commission or a court of competent jurisdiction.
Before bringing this application before the Commissioners for
consideration, Is your client willing to voluntarily rescind thess tariff
provisions? If so, please resubmit the appropriate tarifi sheets with the
provisions removed. Should you or your client wish to discuss this further,
please conzact Karen Cremer, staff attomay,

2 Please list the states in which the applicant is registered or certified to
provide telecommunicalions services, not where it has applied. ARSD
20:10:24:02(10) requires "A list of the states in which the epplicant is
regisiered or certified lo provide telecommunications services ..”

3.  This Commission allows subscribers to dispute billings up to 180 days
foliowing the initial billing. PlemmarmﬂmmnﬂauESﬁun'mdays
{o “180 days".

4 thprmﬂuampydhguid]enmmdbymaapplmtfu
Mrgﬁd\'m Payments (tariff at 2.8) - mtt‘-quv,‘lrrfasulﬂ

opinion ...* "The Company, may, alnssdenphunmdﬁmﬂm
BMMHW&H‘BCW;W
satisfaction *
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' @4/1879% FRI 12:39 FAX 605 773 2800

s Please provide a copy ol the guidelines usad by the applican! for detarmining Deposits
(tariff 2t 2.9). "... inancial conditions is nol acceplable to the Company, as delermined
in its sole opinion and discretion ... ", as the Company may deem necessary in its
sole judgement and discration.™ “The Company may, at its sole option and discretion,
accept ..~

6. Please provide a copy of lhe gui-alines used by the applicant for determining Credit
Limit[s] (tariff at 2.10). “The Company may, at any lime and at ils sole discretion ,..”

7. Please replace “Georgia™ ‘aith “South Dakota™ al tariff 2.27.

8. Please submit all Promoticns (lariff at 4.4) to the SDPUC for filing in the tariff book
before the promolion lakes place.

9. Please add a subsection for Disputes or Billing lnquiries. This subsection should have
the company’'s name, addrass and loil free talephone number that a subscriber may call
with a bill ing inquiry or a Lilling dispute. Also include language that if the subscriber
does not agree with the result of the investigation undertaken by the company that the
subscriber may contact the South Dakata Public Utilities Commission. The contact
information should include the Commission's address and loll fre2 teiephone number

and the TTY Relay South Dakota toll free telephone number. Proposed language is
enclosed.

H you should have any questions regarding the above ilems, p.ease feel free o contact me.

Sincarely,

A/ A

HARLAN BEST, Utility Analyst

cc Karen Cremer, S_ 4 Atiorney
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3.2

o Ca (X

Customer Ccmplaints and/or Billing Tisputes

Customer inquiries or complaints regarding service or

accounting may be made in writing or by telechone to
the Company at:

SEgElE” 16ch Street, 2nd Floor

ey, Florida 13166

{800}
Any objection to billed charges should be reported
proaptly to Mmglilieess. Adjustments to Customers'
bills shall be made to the extent that racords are
available and/or circumstances exist which reascnably
indicate that such charges are not in accordance with

approved races or chat an adjustment may otherwise be
appropriate,

The Company will respond within seventy two (72) hours
of receipt of an inquiry. If the Customer is
dissacisfied with the Company's response to a complaint
or ingquiry, che Cuscemer may file the Commission for

resolution cf the conflict. The Souch Dakota Public
Utilities Ccmmission can be reached at:

500 East Capitol
Pierre, SD 57501-5070
(605) 773-3201

(800} 232-1782

TTY thzough Relay Service South Dakota-
(800) 877-1113

If a Customer accumulates more than One Dollar of
undisputed deli ent Blackstone B0O0 Service charges,
the_& reserves the right not to
honor that Customer's regquest for a Resp. Oro. change
until such undisputed charges are paid in full.







Intrastate Telecommunications Services
Maxxiz Communications, Inc. South Dakota Public Unhties Commussion TanfT No. |

Original Page 17

2.6  Billing and Paymenis

2.6.1 Other than prepaid services, charges for Services will be billed to Customer on a
monthly (30 day) basis, in arrcars, based on the 'sers’ actual usage. Customers will
not be charged for uncompleted calls.

2.6.2 All amounts stated on cach monthly invoice are due and payable immediately upon
Customer’s receipt thereof; provided, however, that charges incurred for Services
obtained via Prepaid Calling Cards will be first debited against the balance of the
amount (if any) prepaid to the Company.

2,63 Invoices unpaid afier thirty (30) days shail incur a monthly finance charge on the
unpaid balance at a rate equal to the lesser of one and one-half percent (1.5%) or the
maximum rale permitted by law.

264 Except a« iherwise limited by Regulation, Customer shall be responsible fur
payment of all charges and for any and all use of or access to Services provided to
Users, including without limitauon any use or access by Users which is unauthorized,
uniawful or fraudulent. Customer’s charges for Travel Card or Prepaid Calling Card
calls are subject to any applicable limitations established by any Regulation.

26.5 Exceptas otherwise provided herein, the Company, at its sole option, may Terminate
Services in the event Customer fails to pay any invoice within thirty (30) calendar
days after the due date stated thereon, subject to written notice and to any other
applicable Commission Regulations. Notice, for purposes of this Section 2.6.5, is
to be deemed effective upon mailing of writien notice, postage prepaid, to Customer’s
last known address. Termination of Services by the Customer or the Company for
any rcason whatsoever will not relieve Customer of its payment obligations
hereunder for all Service charges incurred by Customer through the date of
Termination, Termination by Customer for purposes of this Section 2.6.5 will be
deemed effective five (5) business days following the date of Company’s receipt of
Customer’s Termination noticz. Customer will be liable for all costs of collection
hercunder, including without limitation reasonable attomey's fees. Any invoice for
Services not disputed in writing by Customer within one hundred eighty (180) days
after receipt thereof is to be deemed conclusively correct and binding upon the
Customer.

lssued. Elfective:
By: Thomas . Cordy, President
Maxxis Commumncations, Inc
1901 Moatreal Road, Suite 108
Tucker, GA 30084

B et T B S R T S i N R TR M e e




Intrastate Telecommunications Services

Maxxis Communications, Inc. South Dainta Public {Milities Commission TarifT No. |

Original Page 25

218

2.19

Disclai

The Company will have no hability whatsoever to User, lo its employees, agents,
subcontractors, or assignees, or o any uther person for (i) damages ansing out of any Other
Providers’ Performance Failure, (ii) any act or omission of any third party furmnishing
equipment, facilities or service to any User in connection with this Tarifl or + th the
Services, or (iii) any other act or omission of any Other Provider, User or third party related
to the use or provision of Services hereunder.

THE COMPANY DISCLAIMS ALL REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES,
EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION, ANY IMPLIED
WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR
PURPOSE FOR OR IN CONNECTION WITH THE PROVISION OF SERVICES
HEREUNDER.

2.19.1 Except as caused by its willful misconduct or negligence, the Company’s liability
with respect to any action, clzsim, judgment, damages, demand, liability or expense
(including without limitation reasonable attomey’s fees) (i) brought or incurred by
any User or any other party in conneclion with -the instailation, provision,
preemption, lermination, maintenance, repair or restoration of Service, or (i) anising
from any Performance Failure, will be determined in accordance with S D.C.L. 49-
13-1 and 49-13-1.1.

2.19.2 To the extent permitted by any applicable Regulation, the Company's liability for
negligence will also be limited to the amounts described in Section 2.19.1 hereof.

2.19.3 To the extent permitted by any applicable Regulation, the Company's liability for
gross negligenie will also be limited to the amounts described in Section 2.19.1
hereof.

Effective:
By: Thomas O. Cordy, President
Maxxis Communications, [nc.
1901 Montreal Rosd, Suite 108
Tucker, GA J0084
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2.19.4 The Company's liability for loss of profits (even if the Company has been advised
of the possibility of such loss) or for any indirect, incidental, special, consequential,
exemplary or punitive damages whatsoever ansing, directly or indirectly, from or in
connection with the provision or use of Services hereunder, will be determined in

accordance with S.D.C.L. 49-13-1 and 49-13-1.1.

2.19.5 Except as caused by its willful misconduct or negligence, the Company will not be
liable for defacement of or damages to Users' premises or for any personal imjury or
death arising, directly or indirectly, from the fumishing of Services, including
without limitation the installation or removal of any facilities, equipment or wiring
associaled therewith. Customer is solely responsible for connecting any und all
apparatus, equipment and associated wiring on Users' premises to the Services, and
no other Camier or third party engaged in such activity is to be deemed an agent or

cmployee of the Company in this undertaking.
2.196 [RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE]

By: Thomas . Cordy, President
Maxxis Commumecations, Inc
1901 Montreal Road, Suite 108

Tucker, GA J00E4

Effective:
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27 Taxes

2.7.1 Al federal, state, and local excise, sales, use and similar taxes, will be billed by the
Company as separate line items on Customer’s invoice, and, except as otherwise set
forth in Sections 2.7.2 and 3.1.4.A hereof, are not included in any quotcd rates
described or contained in this TanfT.

272 The Company reserves the right to assess a surcharge on Customer’s charges for
outbound Services terminating at, or inbound Services originating from, locations or
addresses in those states levying, or asserting a night to levy, a gross receipts tax or
similar assessment on the Company’s operations or on intrastale access changes
incurred by the Company in snch state(s). The surcharge will be calculated pro rata
based on the amount Customer’s total meathly charges for Services provided to and
billed to a Customer’s location or Authorization Code in such state{s) bears (o the
Company's total monthly recetpts subject to said tax or assessment in such state(s).
The surcharge will appear as a line item on Customer’s invoice.

28 [RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE]
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29 [RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE)

210 Credit Limit

The Company may, at any time and at its sole discretion, sct a Credit Limit for any
Customer’s consumption of Services for any monthly period.
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Should any provision or portion of this TanfT be held by a court or administrative agency of
competent jurisdiction to be illegal, invaiid, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions of
this TanfT will remain in full force and effect.

Cooperation

Customer shall cooperate with the Company to the extent necessary for the Company to
discharge its obligations hercunder and 2s ressonably requested by the Company.

Governing Law

This Taniff is = be governed by and construed in accordance with the rules and orders of the
Commission and the laws of the State of South Dakota.

o - :
Customer inquiries or complaints regarding service or accounting may be made in writing
or by telephone to the Company at:

Maxxis Communications, Inc.
1901 Montreal Road, Suite 108
Tucker, Georgiz 30084

(800) 270-3788

If the Customer is dissatisfied with the Company's response (o an inquiry or complaint, the
Customer may petition the Commission for resoluti n of the dispute. The Commission may
be contacted at:

South Dakota Public Service Commission

500 East Capitol

Picrre, South Dakota $7501-5070

(605) 773-3201

(800) 332-1782

TTY twough Relay Service South Dakota - (800) 877-1113
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4 RATES
4.1  Return Check Charge

42

43

44

4.5

The Customer will be charged twenty dollars ($20.00) or the applicable statutory return
check charge (if any), whichever is greater, whenever a check or draft preseated for payment
of Service is dishonored by the institution upon which it is drawn.

Late Payment Charge

Invoices unpaid after thirty (30) days shall incur a monthly finance charge on the unpaid
balance at a rate equal to the lesser of one and one-half percent (1.5%) or the maximurmn rate

permitied by law.
Reconnection Fee

A charge of twenty dollars (520.00) or the applicab! ~ statutory charge for reconnection of
Service (il any), whichever is greater, will apply whex sver a User requests 1o be reconnected
to the Services after the Company has Terminated the Services to User for any reason
allowed by this TanfT.

Promotions

The Company may from time to time engage in special promotions of new or existing
Service offerings of limited duration designed o attract new customers or o increase
existing ( ustomer awarencss of a particular offering. The promotional offerings arc subject
1o the availability of the Services and may be limited 1o a specific geographical areaor to a
subset of a specific market group; provided, however, all promotional offerin:~ shall be
offered in accordance with applicable Regulations, and any promotional offering will be
filed with the Commission prior to the effective date of such promotional offering.

Miscellancous Raics and Charges

The Company may adjust its rates and charges or impose additional rates and charges on its
Cusiomers in order to recover amounts it is required hy governmental or quasi-governmental
authoritics to collect from, or pay to others, in support of statutory or regulatory programs.
Exampies of such programs include, but are not limited to, the Universal Service Fund, the
Primary Inter=xchange Camer Chasge, and compensation Lo pay telepbone service providers
for the usc of their pay iclephones 1o access the Company's Services.

By: Thomas O. Condy, Presadent

1901 Montreal Road, Suue 108
Tucker, GA 30084
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BEFORE THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
OF THE STATE OF SOUTH LAKOTA

IN THE MATTER OF THE FILING FOR } ORDER GRANTING
AFPROVAL OF TRANSFER OF CERTIFICATE ) TRANSFER OF CERTIFICATE
OF AUTHORITY FROM CHERRY ) OF AUTHORITY
COMMUNICATIONS INCORPORATED TO )

MAXXIS COMMUNICATIONS, INC. ) TC99-009

On January 26, 1999, the Pubiic Utilites Commussion (Commission), in accordance with
SDCL 49-31-3 and ARSD 20.10:24.04 01 and 201024 04 02, recerved an applicabon for the
transfer of a certificale of authorty from Cherry Communications incorporated (Chemy). to Maxxs
Communications, Inc. (Maxcas)

Maoas proposes 1o poovide resoid deect dad servce, measured ol service, 1ol free 800 and
588 services and prepasd caling cards withan South Dakota

On January 28, 1999, the Commussion electromcaily transmitted nobice of the filing and the
intervention deadiine of February 12, 1999, 1o mierested ndimduals and entihes. No petitions 1o
intervene or comments were fed and at its May 12, 1999, meéting, Ihe Commission considered
Maxxis’ request for transfer of a certificate of authonty. Commission Staff recommended granting
a certificate of authority.

The Commission finds that it has jurisdiction over this matter pursuant to Chapter 48-31,
specifically 46-31-3 and ARSD 20:10:24.04.01 and 20 10:24:04.02. The Commission finds that
Maxis has met the legai requirements establshed for the granting of a certificate of authority.
Maxos has, in accordance with SDCL 49-31-3, demonstrated sufficent technical, financial and
managenal capabiities to offer telecommumications services in South Dakota. The Commission
approves Maoos’ appication for a certificate of authonty. As the Commisson’s final decision in this
matier, # is therefore

ORDERED, that Maxxis’ application for transfer of a cartificate of authority from Cheny is
hereby granted. Rtis

FURTHER ORDERED, that Maxcus shall file informational copies of tanff changes with the

Dated at Pierre. South Dakota, this /¥ " “Gay of May, 1999

Ry BY ORDER OF THE COMMISSION:

Tt uroerEged hamby Cortfes Tl Pa
SoCurmert Ml Dewn serees! ociey upon sl perles of
record e doctes s inted on P dociat serecs
sl by fecsimis or by sl class . B property

s i Charpes Drenee Beon.
.,M

- 5/12]99
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SOUTH DAKOTA PUBLIC UTILITIES
COMMISSION

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

To Conduct Business As A Telecommunications Company
Within The State Of South Dakota

Authority was Granted May 12, 1999
Docket No. TC99-009

This is to certify that

MAXXIS COMMUNICATIONS, INC.

is authonzed (o provide telecommunications services in South Dakota.

This certificate is issued in accordance with SDCL 49-31-3 and ARSD
20:10:24:02, and is subject to all of the conditions and limitations contained in
the rules and statutes goveming ils conduct of offering telecommunications
services.

Datad at Pierre, South Dakota, this {fd’darof b 4 2141,’( , 1999,

SOUTH DAKOTA PUBLIC
UTILITIES COMMISSION:

%EF‘ A BSRG. é:rman g

_inq.w \,LL )_,{';') -

PAM NELSON Cofnmnssmn&t

> // S—dff{"‘l

LASKA SCHUENFELD,EH Commigsioner






